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Pilot

Season 1
Episode Number: 1
Season Episode: 1

4 N\
Originally aired: = Tuesday September 20, 2011
Writer: John Bellucci, Ed Redlich
Director: Niels Arden Oplev
Show Stars: Daya Vaidya (Det. Nina Inara), Kevin Rankin (Det. Roe Saunders),

Michael Gaston (Det. Mike Costello), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),
Poppy Montgomery (Carrie Welles)

Guest Stars: Ezra Knight (Hank Sturgis), Daniel Reton (Casino Dealer), Kyle Beltran
(Henry), Roxanna Hope (Wendy Wilson), Serafim Gan (Russian Priest),
Crystal Chiu (Girl’s Friend), Thomas Guiry (Ken Harbert), Samira Wiley
(Gina), Deanna Dungan (Alice), Sofia Jean Gomez (Catherine Grant),
Madison Arnold (Saul Wanamaker), Robert Vataj (Jerry), Alexandra
Fong (Girl at Midvale), Clem Cheung (Mr. Lin), Brian O’Neill (Frank
Harbert), Timothy Adams (Steve Latman), Temur Mamisashvili (Isaac),
Victoria Leigh (Young Carrie), Haley Murphy (Rachel), Andrew Katz

(Norman)
Production Code: 101
Summary: When a murder reunites former detective Carrie Wells with her old

colleague and flame, she must utilize her rare ability to revisit her
every memory to catch the kKiller.

Carrie hangs around the nursing home
where her mother doesn’t remember her.
Carrie goes to an underground casino
in a hot black dress. They pull her into
the back room and they say she is a fa-
mous card counter. The shot caller wants
his money back. They say she stole their
money in Atlantic City and they want the
money back.

Carrie says she was there, but to ask
the associate, for the one man to ask the
other, since he was in the other casino
and with a bald man with a missing
pinkie. The shot caller recognizes a busi-
ness rival and blows up at the associate.
They were talking about container trucks
and Bayonne. Some guy named Milos. The shot caller is incensed.

"'What? You told them about Bayonne?’

He gets angry the associate spilled the beans on the deal and tells him to leave.

Then Carrie pulls a gun on the man. Next she leaves, shoving her gun in the trash. Carrie
hears a killing in her apartment while she sleeps. She looks down the alley when she finds the
body and the old Japanese man finds her. She says to call 911.

Katherine Grant, the victim, lived there for three months. It happened around 3:15. Carrie
says she can’t remember anything more. They case the place and see blood stains on the wall.
No forced entry but no robbery her cash was still there. Her supermarket car says Katherine
Isaacs. Expired driver’s license says Gail Isaacs.
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Al recognizes the name of the witness C. Wells the redhead who lives in 2C. Al says what hell
are you doing here? Married? Children? Girlfriend, he says. He says she left her. She throws his
breakup words in his face. She says he thought she was obsessed with the past.

Al gave up, Carrie says. Carrie says the 'us’ did not turn out well so he didn’'t sacrifice the
case for her. Carrie heard the fight but she just hear s being knocked around. He leaves his card.

The woman worked as a temp but she has no past. Busted for prostitution 1985 as Jennifer.
Carrie’s prints date back to the Syracuse PD. They challenge Al to tell them about Carrie.

Hanging at the rest home, Carrie sees some young children laying and flashes back to when
she was a child and her sister Rachel was taken. Al comes to see her he says for her help as a
consultant. 'You know what I mean?’

At the crime scene, Carrie concentrates while the squad personnel mock her. Carrie finds the
missing kitchen knife covered with blood.

Al details how Carrie was the youngest detective. he wants to hire her as a consultant. Carrie
say her fingerprints were in the victim’s’ apartment because she carried in groceries once.

They chase down her last place of work. The say the borrowed a car and the woman said she
was in a hurry to move to on the boyfriend and she seemed in a hurry. Carrie says the woman
Catherine called twenty times is in the photo.

Carrie and Al have a night of sexual interlude.

They investigate her. Her fiancée says he doesn’t know her. the calls to and from a disposable
cellphone. She is in a photograph in a client with the deceased. Carrie asks the woman why she
has no past previous to her high school equivalency test.

Carrie slams the door and leaves after an argument with Al. He says case handling was her
weakness. Carrie washes her hands and has a flashback to her sister's abduction. Carrie gets
the water glass of Wendy Wilson and runs the fingerprints.

Carrie comes to the shop where Wendy Wilson works. Malory Evans is who Carrie wants to
talk about. She says she has nothing to say.

Carrie says that surprises her. Carrie says she is a very impressive woman. Born in Ohio,
alcoholic mom, abused as a stepfather. Did some bad things, even got herself a police record in
prostitution.

She pulled herself out of it and got an education and a career. And now she is about to marry
a very successful lawyer. Wendy says Katharine Grant was another woman who turned herself
around. Her boyfriend was going to marry her and go into business with her. But the brother got
suspicious. Katharine wanted help getting out.

Carrie discovers that the boyfriend of Katharine had a brother. He knew his brother marrying
the woman meant the business was half hers. He did a background check on her and then she
started talking divorce. Her walking meant half his business was gone. Carrie goes to him at
work packing boxes.

He gets worked up. She guesses he followed his brother to where he met Katharine to find
out were she lived. He came from the pizzeria to kill her in the middle of the night, then hid the
knife. The man assaults Carrie with a tire iron. He says it’s too bad she came alone. He says he
didn’t. Al arrives, saying sorry he was late his phone was on vibrate.

At the rest home, her mother remembers Rachel as a sweet girl but has no idea who Carrie is.

Carrie finds that Al has left the entire homicide file on Rachel for her.

At the remembrance ceremony, Carrie has a flashback to the murder of her sister and the
man standing over her at the time she found the body.
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Heroes

Season 1
Episode Number: 2
Season Episode: 2

4 )
Originally aired: = Tuesday September 27, 2011
Writer: Sherri Cooper, Jennifer Levin
Director: Niels Arden Oplev
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns), Kevin

Rankin (Det. Roe Saunders), Michael Gaston (Det. Mike Costello), Daya
Vaidya (Det. Nina Inara)

Guest Stars: Kyle Catlett (Max Seiferth), Deanna Dunagan (Alice), David Costabile
(Dr. McCardle), Annie Parisse (Elaine Margulies), Leo Aramburu (CSU
Cesar), Madison Arnold (Saul Wanamaker), Che Ayende (Dr. Raker),
Kyle Beltran (Henry), Michael J. Burg (Man), Frank Deal (Surgeon),
Omar Gonzalez (Mr. Banico), Steve Hamm (Uniform Cop), Mike Hous-
ton (Erik Newsome), Christina Jackson (Olivia), Victoria Leigh (Young
Carrie), Wayne Maugans (Dr. White), Haley Murphy (Rachel), Manu
Narayan (Sami), Steven Rishard (Tom Kunis), Danielle Skraastad (Liza
Newsome), Samira Wiley (Gina), Catherine Wolf (Eleanor Stein), Kenny
Wong (Cable Guy), Khari Wyatt (Keith)

Production Code: 102

Summary: Once Carrie is working as a cop again, she helps to solve when a
young boy becomes the witness of a double murder. Thus, she has
to put aside her memories about her past and her sister to help the
boy remember who was the killer.

Det. Carrie Wells is playing bingo with
her mother and friends. Wells is playfully
accused of counting cards because she
helps her mother win. During the game
she’s called to the scene of a double homi-
cide. When preparing to leave the scene,
she has a sort of flashback in which she
sees herself and Det. Al Burns walking
to the front door and she notices a tarp.
Her new teammates aren’t quite use to
the flashbacks and Det. Roe Saunders,
played by Kevin Rankin says, "Here we go
again.”

When the team, which also includes
Det. Mike Costello and Det. Nina Inara,
checks out the tarp they find the son of the murdered couple hiding underneath. Back at the
station, Carrie talks to the little boy. Before she goes into the room, she has a flashback to her
own childhood when she was in an interrogation room and the police are asking her about what
happened to her sister. A psychologist from child protective services shows up and asks Carrie to
speak to her outside. The doctor tells Carrie a mental health professional must be present when
interviewing children. The doctor also lets her know that she is Al's girlfriend and the tension
rises.

Carrie and Det. Costello visit the male victim’s business. While interviewing a worker, she
hears a mother telling her daughter to not play games on her phone. The kid says she just wants
to get to the next level of an app that changes sounds to a chipmunk sound. This triggers one of
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Carrie’s unforgettable memories. The murder victim’s son said his mother let him play that same
game on her phone when he is sick. She gets the phone from the evidence collected, starts the
game, and hears gunshots. The team decides the boys came downstairs during the commotion,
sees the murder, drops the phone, and takes off.

Wells goes to the home where the boy is staying with his aunt and uncle to talk to him. Just
as he’s about to talk, his uncle walks in, the boy freaks out, and goes into the fetal position. The
uncle tells Carrie to leave and stay away from his nephew. The uncle has an alibi but it doesn’t
convince her.

The team finds out the male murder victim is a problem gambler and he called in his bets to
an Indian restaurant every Friday. When Wells and Saunders visit the restaurant the bookie tells
them the victim paid with things from his home except for the last time. He came in and placed
a $100,000 bet in cash. The victim got money from a loan shark named Tom Kunis.

Carrie and Costello go to the home where the boy is staying to talk to the uncle about a gun
he owns. He says he lent it to a friend and tells them to leave and talk to his lawyer. As they
are leaving, Wells has another unforgettable flashback about a cable guy and his tool belt. She
notices a cable guy across the street is not wearing the same thing. She walks over to the truck
and asks to see what’s in his bag. He pulls out a shotgun but Carrie hits him with the door.
Costello comes around, the guy aims the shotgun at him, and Costello shoots him.

Detectives Saunders and Inara pay a visit to Tom Kunis the loan shark. He tells them he and
the victim were good. His wife came in and paid off his debt. Later, Inara calls Carrie and tells
her they found the uncle’s friend and the gun; the gun does not match the murder victim. The
guy Costello shot was supposedly hired to kill the little boy. The medical examiner says he has
a scar from kidney surgery when he sold it. Carrie has a flashback and remembers a photo of a
man with the same scar at the male victim’s business. Inara tracks down the man in the photo
and he received the dead man’s kidney. He tells her where he had the surgery. NYPD raid the
illegal clinic and find the names of doctor’s from the hospital where the female victim worked.
The team realizes the female victim, an anesthesiologist, worked in the illegal clinic on her own
time. She was getting out and that’s why she got killed.

Carrie and Det. Burns visit the hospital administrator and he says he will see if the names
match doctors at his hospital. Carrie notices and photo of the hospital administrator standing
in front of a plane. She has a flashback to when the uncle walked in and the boy freaked out.
She realizes the boy was freaking out because of a plane similar to the one in the photo and not
because of the uncle. She asks the administrator if he ever took the boy on flights and he said
yes.

The son of the victims comes to the station and Carrie talks to him, with the psychologist
present. She talks about how there are no superheroes for girls and how she and her sister made
themselves superheroes and she always got the bad guy, except for the murderer of her sister. All
of her super powers went away. The boy asks her if her powers ever came back and she said yes.
He asked if she gets the bad buys and Carrie says most of the time and now she needs his help.
He looks at a police lineup and the boy identifies the hospital administrator as the murderer.
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Check Out Time

Season 1
Episode Number: 3
Season Episode: 3

4 \
Originally aired: = Tuesday October 4, 2011
Writer: Joan Binder Weiss
Director: John David Coles
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),

Michael Gaston (Det. Mike Costello), Kevin Rankin (Det. Roe Saun-
ders), Daya Vaidya (Det. Nina Inara)

Guest Stars: Stephen Mailer (Brett Langley), Sarah Sokolovic (Lauren Garber), Heidi
Armbruster (Sandra Smith), James Waterston (lan Smith), Joseph
Amato (Miles Berkowitz), Lesley Stahl (Herself), Christopher McCann
(Thad Ralston), Jacob Ming-Trent (Walter), Ryan O’Nan (Tom Martin),
Linda Emond (Debi Moser), Victoria Cartagena (Maria Ortiz), Omar
Metwally (ADA Adam Gilroy), Dahlia Chacon (Lina)

Production Code: 103

Summary: A hotel maid is accused of murdering a guest who allegedly tried to
rape her. Carrie holds the key to decide if the maid is the victim or the
murderer.

Det. Carrie Wells uses her skills to catch
the bad guys and play three games of
chess simultaneously. During the game
she sees a man drawing a picture and has
a flash back but can only see a shadow
because of the sun, possibly a flash back
to her sister’s death. She receives a call
and heads to another crime scene: The
Hotel Ely. Carrie joins the team in the
room of the former living Brett Langley.
The victim is lying on the bed with a gash
on his head cause by someone hitting
him with a statue.

The only other person to go into the
victim’s room is housekeeper Maria Ortiz
and she didn’t show up for work. As Det. Burns is telling Det. Inara to track down the missing
maid, a television is showing breaking news with Maria Ortiz and her lawyer. When Ortiz was
attacked, she fought back in self-defense. If this sounds familiar, it’s because it is similar to the
Dominique Strauss-Kahn incident in New York City.

Carrie and Det. Saunders meet with Maria Ortiz and her lawyer. Maria tells her story about
how Langley attacked her and she hit him with the statue. Carrie asks if Ortiz ever met the victim
before and the lawyer shuts the interview down. Carrie and Det. Costello get a search warrant to
check out the maid’s house but find nothing.

Back at the office, Saunders finds out the room next to Langley’s was under the name of a
man who works security for the victim’s office. While checking out the surveillance video, he
notices every time Langley leaves and returns to the hotel, the man follows. Costello tracks down
the security guy and he has an alibi. He says he was after the victim because Langley was trying
to track down a family he thought might have been affected by a drug his company produced.

A woman comes into the station looking for Burns. He called her because she is the woman
Langley was looking for. She had a baby but gave it up for adoption because she was young.

7
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When asked if the child had any birth defects or problems she says no. Carrie says maybe they
can track down the father because Langley may have tried to find him. The woman says the
father was not involved. Carrie figures out Langley was the father and he was looking for his son.

Langley tracked her down because he wanted to see his son. He was sterile from radiation
treatment for cancer so she decided to help. Saunders tracks down the adoptive family and Carrie
and Burns go meet them.

The family says they met with Langley because the adoption agency told them he had not
been informed about the adoption and could cause trouble. They agreed on a visitation schedule
but Langley never showed for their last meeting. The couple said they didn’t know the maid.

The mother puts the boy down for a nap and Carrie joins her. When the mother goes to get a
monitor, Carrie looks into the bathroom and sees a yellow foam duck and has an unforgettable
flash back to the murder scene, which had the same duck.

Carrie confronts the mother about the duck. The mother breaks down and tells Carrie they’ve
known the maid for a couple of months. Langley wanted joint custody of the boy. Langley told
them if they didn’t allow joint custody he would sue them. They met Langley in his hotel room a
few times and that’s how they met Maria Ortiz. They had her over for dinner and persuaded her
to accuse Langley of rape for $30,000 but they couldn’t go through with it.

Carrie goes to Maria’s house to arrest her. While there, she gets a call from Burns. He says
the DA wants proof of money exchanging hands to seal the case. Carrie remembers seeing a
wire transfer slip in Maria’s house, so Burns sends Inara to check on it. She discovers the place
where Maria sends money to her son every month. The clerk says Maria only sent $500, her
usual amount. Inara also discovers the timestamp on the receipt is for 7:36pm. Burns says the
video shows the maid running from the room at the same time she’s at the store wiring money.

Carrie looks at the video and remembers the table by the room had roses on it when she
arrived at the hotel. The flower guy was trying to change the flowers at that time. The roses on
the table would've been placed there the night before and should be in the video. Instead, the
video shows sunflowers. Burns suspects the head of security for the hotel doctored the tape.

When Saunders calls the hotel, the head of security tells him the servers crashed and he lost
two days of footage, including the night of the murder. Carrie and Burns meet with Maria and
her lawyer. Maria says she told the head of security about her plan with the adopted family and
he said they could get more money from Langley.

He made a video of her running from the room and they would use it if he didn’t pay. Langley
agreed to pay but he didn’t show up. He later told Maria he got into a fight with Langley and
killed him but she should still tell her story. When she refused, he reminded her of the tape. She
agreed and let him hit her so she would bruise. He told her to call the lawyer and to keep saying
she was raped.

The police set up a sting operation and Maria meets the head of security. He figures out the
police know Maria wasn’t at the hotel during the murder and starts to rough her up. The police
move in and arrest him.

The adoptive father is charged with extortion because he was involved with the plan, without
his wife. Maria is charged with conspiracy. The episode ends with Burns setting Carrie with a
computer in the basement so she can continue to search for her sister’s killer.
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Up In Flames

Season 1
Episode Number: 4
Season Episode: 4

4 N\
Originally aired: = Tuesday October 11, 2011
Writer: Erik Oleson
Director: Niels Arden Oplev
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),

Michael Gaston (Det. Mike Costello), Kevin Rankin (Det. Roe Saun-
ders), Daya Vaidya (Det. Nina Inara)

Guest Stars: Brad Heberlee (Gary Wright), Maury Ginsberg (Isaac Brezner), Chris
Bauer (Dennis Halsey/Guard), Jose Soto (Pablo Hortua), Eden Mar-
ryshow (Ramon Garza), Chad Lindsey (Young Doctor/Tom), Adam Mc-
Nulty (Sgt. Patrick Woodson), Michael Basile (Firefighter), Edwin J.
Birmingham (SWAT Commando), Quinn M Colgan (Anna Halsey), Paul
Urcioli (Sydney Burrell), Angela Christian (Allison Forrest), Omar Met-
wally (ADA Adam Gilroy)

Production Code: 104

Summary: When a crime scene is destroyed in an explosion moments after Carrie
catches a glimpse of the room, her memories become a crucial piece of
the investigation.

Det. Carrie Wells is sitting in a restau-
rant timing herself while she completes
the puzzle. A man comes over to hit on
her and asks if they've met before. Carrie
says no and he asks if she’s sure because
he is really good with faces. Little does he
know, Carrie remembers everything. Just
as the man is winning her over, Carrie
gets called to a crime scene.

As the team arrives at the scene, peo-
ple are frantically moving about because
of a gas leak. When Carrie and Det. Al
Burns try to enter the apartment, the fire
chief stops them until the gas leak is off.
While chaos ensues, Carrie sneaks into
A the apartment to look around. The body
of a man is on the floor with a gunshot wound to the chest. Just as Carrie is taking in the scene
the fire chief yells, "We can’t shut off the gas!” Al gets Carrie and they run out of the building just
as the apartment explodes.

Back at the office, Det. Nina Inara identifies the victim: Peter Forrest. The victim worked
for Sims-Bennett and lived in a different apartment than the one his body was found. Carrie
remembers seeing Sims-Bennett boxes in the apartment. On one of the boxes Carrie sees two of
three letters for an account: H H. Det. Roe Saunders and Nina leave to track down the wife while
Carrie, Al, and Mike head to the victim’s office.

At Peter Forrest’s office, Carrie, Al, and Mike meet with the victim’s boss and the company’s
lawyer. The boss gives them the only account corresponding to H H. The account is for Harry
Hinkle, one of the oldest but the boss can’t think of a reason the account would get him killed.
Mike asks if they know where they can find Harry Hinkle but he’s dead. Al asks if there were any
problems with clients but the lawyer says they need a court order to give out that information.

9
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They all get up to leave, Carrie approaches the victim’s boss. She tells him she knows the two
were good friends and they will do their best to find the killer. The boss tells Carrie there was
a problem with one client who lost a lot of money when the housing bubble burst. The client,
named Isaac Bresner, threatened to kill Peter.

Roe and Nina meet Issac Bresner at one of his photo shoots and he admits threatening to kill
Peter but he has an alibi. Isaac was in the front row of a fashion show during the murder. He
tells the detectives to look for a jealous boyfriend because he had lots of women.

Carrie, Nina, and Al finally track down the wife. She tells the detectives Peter was living at
the other apartment because they separated but were planning to get back together. Nina asks
why they split up and the wife says it was because of his job and freewheeling lifestyle but he
changed. She says a woman called the house often but Peter would yell at her to leave them
alone.

Nina confirms the wife’s alibi and Roe tracks down the number calling the victim’s house. It
was coming from the phone extension of an assistant at Sims-Bennett but she got fired a few
weeks ago. The team goes to the assistant’s apartment and finds her dead. Nina finds a ring in
the apartment, supposedly from Peter, with an apology note. Al tells her to check to make sure
Peter bought the ring.

While in the apartment, Carrie notices a glass on the counter with the initials HyH. This takes
her back to Peter’'s apartment and the Sims-Bennett box with the partial initials H H. In the
office Carrie and Nina figure out HyH is an organization called 'Help your Homies’. Peter set up
the organization and managed their money but he recently closed the account with no sign of
the money.

The organization’s president Pablo Hortua is serving 25 years to life in prison. Carrie and Al
meet with Pablo Hortua and his associate at the prison. Hortua says he called Peter after seeing
him in the news involved with a cancer charity. He helped them for a while but recommended
someone else who could devote more time. He moved their money to a different bank. Mike
checks out the bank and Peter did in fact move the money.

Nina finds out Peter did not buy the ring for the assistant, her ex-boyfriend did. The ex-
boyfriend is a former marine who was discharged a few weeks ago for pulling his weapon on a
superior officer. Nina and Mike interview the ex-boyfriend and he admits to buying the ring and
proposing but the assistant said she needed more time. He says he didn’t know about another
guy and he was in New Jersey during the shooting and asks for a lawyer.

Roe finds out the gas leak started two floors above Peter’s apartment. At first the idea doesn’t
make sense but Carrie figures the police response was so fast, the kKiller didn’t have time to get
out so he or she goes up two floors, starts the leak, and slips out with the crowd. Carrie goes
back through her memory of the first crime scene and she remembers seeing a man come out of
the building, the associate of Pablo Hortua, but he’s in prison.

Carrie goes back to the prison to speak with a corrections officer as he’s leaving. He is the
officer in charge of the inmates and bed check. Carrie asks him if he’s sure if the man was in
his cell and he says yes. Carrie gets a look at the officer’s license plate and remembers seeing
the corrections officer in his car at the Peter Forrester's crime scene. The team thinks maybe
Peter got killed because he knew about the HyH’s finances, which were in good shape until Pablo
Hortua took over the group.

Al and Mike bring the corrections officer in for interrogation but the officer refuses to talk.
Carrie remembers the officer on the phone at the prison saying, "she is safe with me.” Carrie
goes into the interrogation room and asks why the officer hasn’t asked for a lawyer. He says he
doesn’t need one. She asks him if his daughter is safe or in trouble. He says nothing. She says
they will get him a lawyer and word will get out that he’s talking to the cops. He finally breaks
his silence and tells them he can’t say anything because they have his daughter Anna and they
will kill her.

The corrections officer says he was supposed to get his daughter back that day but the gang
saw Carrie in the parking lot. The corrections officer says Pablo got a visit from a man after Carrie
and Al left the prison. The police bust down the man’s door and rescue the girl. Pablo and his
associate get charged with both murders. At the end of the episode, Carrie gets together with the
man she met in the restaurant at the beginning.
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With Honor

Season 1
Episode Number: 5
Season Episode: 5

( )\
Originally aired: = Tuesday October 18, 2011
Writer: Erik Oleson
Director: Peter Werner
Show Stars: Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns), Poppy Montgomery (Carrie Wells),

Michael Gaston (Det. Mike Costello), Kevin Rankin (Det. Roe Saun-
ders), Daya Vaidya (Det. Nina Inara)

Guest Stars: Lenny Venito (Det. Stan Moyer), Annie Parisse (Elaine Margulies),
Alfredo Narciso (Det. Richard Franco), Stivi Paskoski (Det. Anthony
Cantone), Charlie Hudson III (Jerome "J-Dog” Dixon), Ejyp Johnson
(LeShawn Doyle), Thuliso Dingwall (Malcolm), Elain R. Graham (Vir-
ginia White), Gary Basaraba (Lt. Willard), Emma Ramos (Snack Bar
Cashier), Edwin J. Birmingham (ESU), Frank Harts (CSU Tech), Dei-
dre O’Connell (Sue Kelly), Malachy Cleary (Det. Jim Kelly), Tom Mason
(Pat Burns), Amy Tribbey (Woman/Julie)

Production Code: 105

Summary: When Al's ex-partner is gunned down and the investigation reveals he
may have been a dirty cop, Carrie must decide how to support him
without getting too close.

This episode of Unforgettable starts with
Det. Carrie Walsh and Det. Al Burns par-
."BLI.IE oBAL( ' _ ticipating in a NYPD bowling league. It
NYPD BOWLING 1 ' appears Carrie is a stand-in for someone
else because she is not wearing the req-
uisite bowling shirt. Jim Kelly, a member
of the other team, was a partner for five
years with Al after he moved to New York.
Over the loudspeaker, the license plate
number for Jim’s truck is announced be-
cause his lights are on. Jim and an-
other friend go outside, the friend needs
a smoke. Suddenly shots are heard in the
bowling alley. Carrie and Al run outside
to see both cops down, bleeding.

Det. Mlke Costello and Al’s girlfriend Elaine, played by Annie Parisse, arrive at the hospital.
Mike says the wives have been notified and are on the way. Al walks out of Jim Kelly’s room and
shakes his head; Jim didn’t make it. Just then, Jim’s wife arrives at the hospital and sees the
look on Al's face and starts crying. Al gives her a hug and asks his girlfriend to take care of the
wife while he gets to work. The other wounded officer, Moyer, is still in surgery.

Mike, Al, and Carrie get together to get the investigation started and Mike believes the shoot-
ings were a hit. Carrie has a flashback from the scene and notices the headlights on Jim’s car
were not on. Someone used it as a ruse to lure him outside. Al tells Mike to get Det. Roe Saunders
to follow-up with the bowling alley to figure out who informed them about the headlights. Mikes
goes to check out Jim’s case files to see if there’s a connection.

At the crime scene, Roe finds out someone called the bowling alley to report the lights on. Det.
Nina Inara is working on some paint and a broken tail light left when the getaway car hit the
victim’s car. Nina and another officer figure out the make and model of the car, a 2009 Escalade,

1L OU CAN BO'
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right tail light. Nina tells Roe to get an APB on the car and get a record of incoming calls to the
bowling alley.

Back at the office, Mike and Carrie walk in while Al is yelling at someone on the phone about
jurisdiction on the case. Mike tells Carrie Al will never give up because Jim saved his life. A call
comes in saying the Escalade was found. The car was reported stolen a couple of days ago and is
wiped clean. Al thinks there was more than one person involved but Nina says the crime scene
techs only found shell casings from one gun. Carrie has a flashback to the time of the fired shots
and says the shots happened simultaneously with the screeching tires; meaning one person was
driving while the other was shooting.

Nina and Carrie see a tech picking up a container of bleach wipes. Behind that is a box of old
nachos with the receipt, order 197, which means one of the killers came inside the bowling alley.
Carrie has a flashback to the bowling alley when the food counter is calling out order numbers
and sees one the guy pick up order 197. At the station, Carrie identifies the man as Theo Walker,
aka, Zippy. Nina finds an address for Theo and they bust down the door. Al grabs the guy and
throws him to the floor but it’s not Theo, it’s his brother. Theo’s mother tells the police he doesn’t
live there; he only uses the address for mail. She kicked him out because he was dealing drugs.
The mother tells the police he works for a drug dealer named LaShon. Al receives a call from
Elaine and they rush over to Jim’s house. Internal Affairs showed up with a search warrant to
take Jim’s files and computer. Al asks why they are at Jim’s home but the IA detective tells Al he
can’t tell him and walks away. Carrie says IA thinks Jim is dirty.

Mike and Nina get information on LaShon and find out Jim and Moyer were checking out
LaShon for a double homicide but he was cleared. Al tells his team to look further into Jim’s case
files but IA, which also wired Jim’s car for surveillance, restricts them. At the hospital Al shows
Moyer a picture of LaShon but he says they cleared him in the double homicide because they
found another guy with the gun. Al asks Moyer about IA and he tells him some officers allegedly
took around $100,000 to $150,000 from a crime scene. But Moyer insists Jim is clean and had
nothing to do with it.

When Al gets back to the station the IA detective is waiting for Al and asks if Jim gave him
something to hold on to. Things get testy but Al says Jim never gave him anything. The IA
detective tells Al it is alleged Jim was tipping LaShon to drug raids. He also tells Al that Jim was
using a stolen access code to get the information. The IA detective also tells Al Jim was heavily
in debt because of his wife’s cancer but he recently paid a $27,000 hospital bill in full.

Al goes to Jim’s home and asks his wife about the money he used to pay the medical bills.
She says Jim handled the money so she doesn’t know. She goes on to say she doesn’t know
where Jim got the money but he was on edge and he brought files home from work. She says IA
didn’t find them but tells Al where to look. Al goes into the basement and finds the files in a bag
underneath a poker table. Al takes it back to the office and finds a case file for a raid on LaShon
and crack. Carrie tells him it may not be what it seems but Al is convinced Jim is dirty.

Al gets a call from Roe and Theo is dead. At the scene, Nina interviews the cops that killed
him and they say he resisted. Back at the station, Carrie is going over the information found in
Jim’s bag. Carrie asks Mike to take a look at the files and they discover LaShon was getting a
pass while his rivals were getting arrested. When they look up the names of the cops on those
cases, they are the same ones that killed Theo. Jim was looking into other cops.

Carrie says they should wait to tell Al before getting his hopes up. Mike finds LaShon and
holds him while Carrie goes to the police bar to tell the dirty cops about the arrest for Jim’s
murder. When Carrie leaves, one of the cops makes a call and LaShon’s phone is ringing off the
hook.

At the station, Carrie and Mike explain the ruse to Al. Nina tells everyone another set of
prints was on the gun and Theo’s phone wasn’t used to call the bowling alley. J Dog, the man
whose prints are on the gun is in danger. The team brings in Theo’s younger brother to see if
he knows where J Dog hangs out. He tells the police where to find him. Al and Moyer, who is
out of the hospital, head over to the site. Carrie says the younger brother confessed to hindering
without asking for a lawyer. Nina says the boy’s mother said Moyer promised he wouldn’t face
prosecution.

Al didn’t say anything about a deal but the mother trusted Moyer because he used to coach
her son in little league. Carrie has a flashback and remembers Moyer and the boy introducing
themselves like they didn’t know each other. Nina and Carrie look at Moyer’s personnel file and
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realize he worked in narcotics with the suspected cops. Carrie has another flashback to the
bowling alley and sees Moyer making a phone call. She realizes he called in the headlights.

Al and Moyer are looking for J Dog when a car pulls up and two of the dirty cops get out with
shotguns. Al tells Moyer to call for backup while he gets J Dog. While Al is looking, J Dog takes
a couple of shots at him. Al tells him Theo is dead and the cops that killed Theo are coming for
him. J Dog thinks Al is there to kill him but Al says J Dog can'’t testify if he’s dead and he needs
him alive. J Dog slides his gun to Al and gives up. Al calls for Moyer and J Dog looks worried.
Moyer and the other two cops come in while Al and J Dog hide. Moyer comes around the corner
and sees Al, points his gun at him, but Al gets off the shot first. The other two cops come out
with their guns just as Carrie and other police show up to arrest them. Moyer is also arrested.

Jim’s memorial is held at the bowling alley. The IA detective apologizes to Al and says the
$27,000 came from Jim selling his boat. The detective asks if there’s anything he can do and Al
tells him to give Jim’s widow the same information. Carrie comes over to congratulate Al but he
says he lost faith while she didn’t. Carrie says she had faith in Al that he would find the answer.
Al’s girlfriend Elaine calls him over and stares at Carrie while she and Al hug.

13



Unforgettable Episode Guide

14



Unforgettable Episode Guide

Friended

Season 1
Episode Number: 6
Season Episode: 6

4 )
Originally aired: = Tuesday October 25, 2011
Writer: Sherri Cooper, Jennifer Levin, John Robert Lennon
Director: Niels Arden Oplev
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),

Michael Gaston (Det. Mike Costello), Kevin Rankin (Det. Roe Saun-
ders), Daya Vaidya (Det. Nina Inara)

Recurring Role: Deanna Dunagan (Alice)

Guest Stars: Kristen Bush (Laurel Harrison), Patrick Heusinger (Dean Mark Cla-
man), Terrence Mann (Stephen), Ari Fliakos (Joseph Farley), Justine
Lupine (Ashley Phillips), Jason Ralph (Zeke), Kahan James (Trent),
Juan Luis Acevedo (Building Manager), Grim Reaper Q (Bouncer),
Alesandra Assante (Socialite #1), Samantha Silverman (Socialite #2),
Khari Wyatt (Keith), Nicole Guidetti (Woman), Kelly Deadmon (Kelly La-
timer Voice), Jason Pendergraft (Mark), Ejyp Johnson (LeShawn Doyle)

Production Code: 106

Summary: Carrie and Al’s investigation into the murder of a hard-partying heiress
takes an unexpected turn when they discover that the woman appar-
ently didn’t exist until 18 months earlier.

This episode of Unforgettable starts with
Al and Carrie visiting her mother in
a nursing home. Before reaching her
mother, Carrie is on the phone talking
about something to do with her sister’s
murder. Al is holding a drawing of a man
of the possible murderer. Carrie’s mother
was also in the first episode of the series
playing blackjack.

Carrie tells Al the mother thought Car-
rie was Carol Burnett the last time she
visited. This is the first time it’s revealed
the mother is suffering from Alzheimer
Disease. When Carrie and Al walk in,
the mother immediately recognizes both,

: which is a surprise. Then she tells them
they need to go on vacation more often because the trip to Vermont they just took did them good.
While Al gets a call, the mother tells Carrie if she keeps dragging her feet, she’s going to lose Al.

Al and Carrie arrive at the crime scene but the body is missing. A security officer found a car
idling with the door open but no driver. The car is registered to Harrison Publicity. Carrie and
Roe check out the address the car is registered to. The manager says the lease is in the name
of Harrison Publicity but Kelly pays the rent. The manager says he got a noise complaint about
the apartment, Kelly was arguing with a man. After the manager knocked on the door everything
calmed down.

As Carrie is looking around the apartment and looks at a picture, she has a flashback to a
newsstand and recognizes the woman as Kelly Latimer. According to Carrie, gossip magazines
say Kelly and another girl, Ashley Phillips, hate each other. Carrie looks up a blog with one post
saying, "Ding dong, is the bitch dead?” Back at the office, the team is trying to figure out if the
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whole affair is a publicity stunt but Carrie isn’'t so sure. Why does a very wealthy woman live in
a studio apartment in Queens?

Carrie and Al go to a bookstore to see Dean Clayman, an author and the missing woman’s
ex-boyfriend. He denies harming Kelly but says she has no real friends and her family cut her off
financially until she turned 25. After the fight in Kelly’s apartment where they broke up, Dean
went to see Ashley Phillips, his other ex, just to talk. Dean says Kelly’s only been missing 12
hours and she’ll show up.

Al calls Mike as he and Roe are going to visit Harrison Publicity to tell him Kelly’s last call was
to the firm. Roe asks the firm’s manager why Kelly called her at 2:15 am but it was the manager’s
assistant who took the call. The manager says the assistant told her about the call so she called
Kelly later but it went to voicemail. The manager says Kelly took all the blog post and negativity
personally.

Back at the office, Carrie suggests she and Al go undercover at some big party so they can get
closer to Ashley Phillips. Al doesn’t want to go so Carrie takes Nina instead. When they arrive at
the club the bouncer won't let them in because they’re not on the list. Carrie recognizes a guy
and calls him over. She tells him a story about Kate Moss and leather pants. The guy remembers
the story and they get in. Carrie doesn’t know the guy; she remembers reading the story in a
blog.

Inside the club, Carrie and Nina see Ashley Phillips arguing with her publicist. Carrie and
Nina approach Ashley and tell her they are developing a reality show about celebrities but they
know it's bad timing with Kelly being missing. Ashley thinks the whole thing is a joke. They
confirm Dean’s alibi that he was with Ashley after leaving Kelly’s apartment. While in the club,
Carrie gets a call from Al. Carrie and Nina arrive a dockside crime scene where Kelly’s body has
been found. Roe reveals that Kelly is a fake Latimer and in fact, the Latimer family doesn’t exist.

At the office, the coroner’s report reveals Kelly was tossed in the water while she was still
alive. She also had drugs in her system. Roe thinks it is possibly a suicide. Nina agrees with Roe
but Al and Carrie don’t. Mike and Roe head back to the PR firm to speak with the manager. The
manager says a guy was accosting Kelly at an event a while back and maybe the paparazzi got a
picture of the guy.

Carrie and Nina go back to Kelly’s apartment but the manager says the paparazzi broke in
and took almost everything. While in the apartment, Carrie has a flashback to her first time there
and remembers seeing a snow globe with the words "Mountain State” engraved on it. Back at the
station, the team figure out Kelly Latimer is actually Leanne Farley. Her deadbeat husband, he
beat her, filed a missing persons report. Al got a photo of the man who was stalking Kelly at the
event, compares it to Leanne Farley’s husband and it’s the same guy.

Joe Farley is having a good time in a hotel with two prostitutes and drugs when the team
busts the door down and arrests him. Joe tells Al and Carrie that Leanne took $15,000 and left
but she gave him the money back when he found her. Joe says he was in the hotel bar every
night and didn’t know Leanne was dead until he was arrested. He reveals Leanne actually have
him $150,000 plus $10,000 a month so he had no reason to kill her. Al wonders where she got
so much money.

Carrie looks at a robbery report Kelly filed for a bunch of stolen jewelry and pays a visit to
the man she told the Kate Moss story to at the party. The man says his club is in a tough
neighborhood so crime happens all the time. She accuses the man of fencing the stolen property
to get Kelly money. He admits it and he found out about Leanne and wanted to help her. He says
Dean found out about the scam.

After the interview, Carrie has a flashback to the bookstore where Dean was reading his book.
He got a date wrong. Carrie and Al get Dean in an interrogation room and Carrie tells him his
book is crap and has about 12 inconsistencies in the first 60 pages. Al asks if Kelly figured out
his book was fake but Dean insist Kelly was the only fake thing. Dean says he figured out Kelly
was fake after the robbery. She didn’t care when she found out his book was fake but he couldn’t
be there for her when she revealed herself to him. He then asks for a lawyer.

Carrie and Nina bring Ashley Phillips in for an interview with her lawyer. They ask her what
she was arguing with her publicist about but Ashley doesn’t remember. The detectives tell her
they know she spent a lot of time with Kelly and asks why the fake hatred in the blogs. Carrie
confronts her about the act at the club when she called Kelly being missing a joke. Ashley said
her publicist made up the whole act, including the hatred.

16



Unforgettable Episode Guide

Ashley says they were best friends but she couldn’t go to Kelly because they were supposed
to hate each other. Dean never dated Ashley. He went to her after the fight because the two girls
were friends and he wanted Ashley to help Kelly. Ashley goes on to say that she called the PR
firm’s manager to help Kelly and the manager said she would check on Kelly. Carrie and Al bring
the manager in for an interview. She says she got the call from Ashley but never called Kelly.
Kelly called her but the assistant took it.

Carrie and Al interview the assistant and tell him they know it was his idea to fence the
jewelry. The assistant says he was helping Kelly pay her husband. Carrie tells the assistant she
knows that no one initially knew about Kelly’s real identity accept the PR manager and once Kelly
started telling people who she really was, she had to go. The assistant admits he didn’t take the
call from Kelly, the manager did, but he recorded it. Carrie and Al tell the PR manager they've
identified the killer and want to see if she can identify him and she agrees to go.

They take the manager to the crime scene and tell her they knew she was at the crime scene.
Carrie plays the recorded message where Kelly says she tired of pretending. The manager says
she will come to Kelly, at the crime scene. The manager admits meeting Kelly and putting her in
the river.

At the end of the show, Carrie asks Al to not visit her mother with her anymore because they
are no longer together and doesn’t want to give her mother any ideas. Carrie visits her mother
again. Her mother sees the drawing and asks why she has a drawing of Jonathan.
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Road Block

Season 1
Episode Number: 7
Season Episode: 7

4 )
Originally aired: = Tuesday November 1, 2011
Writer: Heather Bellson, Christal Henry
Director: Jean de Segonzac
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),

Michael Gaston (Det. Mike Costello), Kevin Rankin (Det. Roe Saun-
ders), Daya Vaidya (Det. Nina Inara)

Guest Stars: Jo Armeniox (Angie), Joey Auzenne (Jose), Clark Carmichael (Pierre-
Henry), Steve Cirbus (Lou Nagle), Deanna Dunagan (Alice), Chance
Kelly (Alex Logan), Kevin O’'Donnell (Marshall Green), Sherri Saum
(Rosario Sanchez), Nilaja Sun (Ivory), Brian Anthony Wilson (Bert)

Production Code: 107

Summary: Carrie’s investigation into the death of her sister moves forward, but
her inability to let go may hinder the search for a missing infant whose
father was murdered.

This episode of Unforgettable starts with
a flashback to the end of last week’s
episode. Carrie pulls some papers out of
her bag and her mother sees a draw-
ing of a man, a sketch of the man who
allegedly murdered Carrie’s sister. The
mother asks why she has a picture of
Jonathan? When Carrie asks for more
information, her mother struggles to re-
member anything. Carrie is telling the
story to Al when they get called to a crime
scene.

Marshall Smith is found dead in his
apartment after a delivery driver saw
/' blood seeping from under his door. The
victim is in rough shape with stab wounds and burns. Both Carrie and Roe separately find out
the victim has a child, 18-month-old Bianca, and she is missing. Carrie finds a list of phone
numbers taped to the phone, one being for Children’s Family Services. She visits the case man-
ager who tells Carrie that Marshall was a model father and was not in trouble. Carrie continues
questioning the case manager but she needs to leave for court. Carrie gets upset and starts
yelling at the woman because she’s trying to leave. The woman tells Carrie to call her supervisor
and leaves. Carrie has a flashback to when she got angry on another case and roughed up a
suspect. She’s getting too involved emotionally.

Nina, Roe, and Al hit dead ends on their searches for missing Bianca so Al and Mike go to
Marshall’s workplace. The boss tells them Marshall was a good, hard worker with no problems
until a couple of days ago. He got into a fight with another worker, Jose Alvarez, and punched
him in the face. Al and Mike find Jose and bring him in for questioning. Jose says he did nothing
wrong and Marshall hit him for no reason. Al thinks maybe Marshall wanted to get fired so he
staged the fight for the manager to see.

Nina visits Bianca’s daycare and the worker tells her Marshall pulled the child out a few days
ago because an unknown man saying he was Bianca’s uncle tried to pick her up before. She
gives them a copy of the surveillance tapes but it doesn’t show a face because the cameras are
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pointed at the floor to see the children. Al notices a tattoo on the man’s arm in the video and it
looks like the one on Marshall’s arm. Was Marshall formerly in a gang?

Carrie has another flashback to the day she lost control with a suspect. Al tells her to get
control because he can’t keep covering for her. Al tells Carrie he’s suspending the investigation
into the death of her sister because she is losing it, it’s for her own good, and for the good of
their relationship. Carrie tells Al she knows what’s good for her and storms off. Maybe this is the
prelude to the end of their previous relationship.

Mike tracks down Bianca’s mother and finds her in prison. Mike tells her Marshall is dead
and Bianca is missing. At first, she doesn’t believe him so Mike shows her Marshall’s autopsy
photo. He asks the mother about the tattoo and she tells him to find her child. Mike tells her he
knows how she left Bianca outside while buying drugs and he thinks maybe Marshall is dead
and Bianca is missing because of some drug debt she owes. If she doesn’t cooperate, he will
make sure her stint in prison is longer. She tells him Marshall worked for Logan Security and
the workers had the same tattoo.

Carrie meets with the case manager again and apologizes for her earlier behavior. The manager
gets Carrie a list of Marshall’s known associates. She’s about to tell Carrie something when she
sees a man and suddenly changes her mind and quickly leaves. Back at the office, the team
is looking into Logan Security. When they’re looking through photos, Carrie has a flashback to
earlier when speaking with the case manager as notices one of the men from the photos. Al and
Carrie go to the case manager's home but she is gone. She left in a hurry, and while looking
through the place; Carrie sees a sippy cup with Bianca’s name on it in the sink.

Nina finds out the case manager has been holding Bianca for a couple of days. The neighbor
says she identified the Bianca as her niece. Nina thinks the case manager is involved but Carrie
thinks she’s protecting the baby. She’s getting emotionally involved again. Carrie flashes back to
the past and Al tells her she needs to take a break. Carrie says she needs to get away from crime
scenes and be normal. She turns in her badge and leaves the Syracuse police force, and Al.

Mike and Roe pay a visit to the head of Logan Security but he isn’'t much help. He tells
the detectives the tattoos are a bonding experience and helps identifies his men if something
happens. Back at the office, Roe finds out the security company is on police radar because
they may be involved in smuggling small arms. The team believes the security firm tried to get
Marshall to help move the weapons through the shipping company he worked for. So Marshall
tried to get fired by starting the fight so he wouldn’t be involved.

Nina gets information on the case manager’s cell phone, she’s heading north. Carrie flashes
back to the manager’s apartment and remembers a photo of a fishing camp in Rybeck, NY. Also,
someone else ran a trace on her cell phone, maybe the security firm? When Al and Carrie reach
the fishing camp, they hear a gun shot in the woods. As they move through the woods, a man
with a gun is spotted. The man points his gun at Al but Carrie shoots him first. She continues
through the woods and hears a baby crying. She comes to a shed and finds Bianca with the case
manager.

The case manager confirms the team’s theory about the weapons. Marshall asked her to take
Bianca for a day while he sorts out a problem from the past. She forgot the diaper bag so she
went back to Marshall’'s and a couple of men came over. She hid beside the bed. Carrie tries to
get the case manager to flashback to when she was in the room and she remembers the men
fighting with Marshall. She remembers seeing a man’s reflections in a mirror, the head of Logan
Security; he’s quickly arrested. The case manager later files for custody of Bianca.

Al tells Carrie she’s getting better with controlling herself and she did good work with the
case manager. He tells her she’ll get even better is she learns to not get so emotionally involved
and learn to chill and relax. She props her feet on the desk and leans back to show Al how she
relaxes. When she closes her eyes, she has a flashback to her sister's murder and remembers
the jacket he was wearing, which tells her where he worked.
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Lost Things

Season 1
Episode Number: 8
Season Episode: 8

4 )
Originally aired: = Tuesday November 8, 2011
Writer: Jan Nash
Director: John Showalter (I)
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),

Michael Gaston (Det. Mike Costello), Kevin Rankin (Det. Roe Saun-
ders), Daya Vaidya (Det. Nina Inara)

Guest Stars: Drew Powell (Kevin McMillan), Michael Arden (Joe Williams), Gillian
Alexy (Laura), Susan Cremin (Young Alice), Victoria Leigh (young
Carrie), Robert Turano (Lou Kestler), Liam Craig (Manager), Danny
Henriquez (Frank Antos), Marisa Redanty (Annoying Woman), Jordan
Leeds (Reginald Donner), Daniel Breaker (Checkout Guy)

Production Code: 108

Sumimary: Carrie and Al investigate the murder of a public defender. They soon
find out that the kKiller has bigger plans that may include a second
death.

Carrie is patiently waiting to buy a bottle
of water and a candy bar at a convenience
store but is waiting for the woman in
front of her. Apparently she was search-
ing for something else in the store. When
the clerk starts to ring her purchases, the
woman starts a dispute about a price.
While this is going on Carrie’s phone
rings and she’s having trouble hearing.
Finally frustrated, she tells the woman
the price of all her items and her grand
total so they can move on. When the
clerk asks if she wants to pay with cash
or credit, the woman says check. Carrie
gives the clerk $20 and tells him to keep
the change.

Carrie arrives at the crime scene where Al and Roe are waiting. A friend found Mary Hanson
dead in her apartment. While Al and Roe are talking, Carrie takes a look around the apartment
and notices a male uses the second bedroom but he is not in the apartment. Behind the building
Mike and Nina are looking for clues and he finds a fabric sample on a banister. Talking to Mary’s
friend, Carrie and Al find out the male roommate is a court officer named Kevin McMillan.

Al gets more information on the man, including his car, a blue Blazer. Carrie has a flashback
to when she drove into the neighborhood and remembers seeing the same vehicle with a man
sleeping in the passenger seat. They wake him and ask if he killed Mary. He looks at his hands
and they are bloodstained. He doesn’t know if he killed her. Kevin says he went bar hopping with
his friend Joe, blacked out in his car, and that’s all he remembers.

Roe finds out a former client of Mary’s, she worked as a legal aid, was attracted to her and he
showed up at two in the morning to profess his love. Roe visits the man at his gym and he says
Mary was giving mixed messages so he went to be sure. When Roe tells him Mary is dead the
man says he didn’t kill her and he has an alibi.

Mike brings Joe in to ask about Kevin’s night. He confirms they were out drinking and Kevin
was very drunk. Joe cut his hand because he broke a glass in the bar while watching a football
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game. Joe says Mary started using a dating service to find men. A blood test also confirms
that Kevin was too drunk to even walk, let alone kill Mary. Nina thinks CSI made a mistake
in calculating distance from the hole in the window to the latch. Carrie has a flashback and
remembers dish soap on the floor in the kitchen, a wet sponge, and a wet towel. This leads her
to believe the broken window was staged and Mary actually knew the killer and let him in.

Mike finds out Mary looked up the sociology department at Fordham University then sent
Kevin an e-mail asking him to see her before he went to work, but Kevin never saw the e-mail.
When Nina meets with Mary’s friend she says Joe is a student of sociology at Fordham. At a
party, another friend of Mary’s who worked in criminal justice asked Joe about his research and
he got defensive. Mike checks out Joe at Fordham and he does not exist at the university.

Mike, Al, and Carrie are wondering why Joe came in if leads are pointing to him. Carrie has
a flashback to when Joe was talking with Mike and figures out he was making things up on the
fly Keyser Soze-style. When Mike and Nina go to his apartment, Joe is gone. They find the jacket
that matched the fabric found at the crime scene and a shooting target in the sink. Joe’s been
practicing.

Roe found Carrie’s papers related to convenience stores and he has a family member high up
in a convenience store chain, he offers to make a call. Roe and Carrie go to the courthouse to
ask Kevin about Joe. He says there is no reason for Joe to kill Mary. Kevin says he met Joe in a
coffee shop when he started asking about trials and the courthouse. Joe interviewed Kevin and
other guards in the courthouse and he met Mary through Kevin.

Joe’s father and brother were killed in an explosion at a factory. The man charged with creat-
ing the explosion got two years prison and a fine. Carrie has a flashback to the courthouse and
the official sentencing is today. The team believes Joe got close to Kevin so he could have easy
access to the courthouse. Mary found out who he really was so Joe killed her.

Carrie and Al get with the head of security at the courthouse but he’s not buying their bill of
goods. The courthouse has new metal detectors and the building is safe. There is no way to bring
a gun in. But Joe doesn’t need to bring a gun in because Kevin already has one inside. He made
a copy of Kevin’s gun safe key while he was passed out. Al finds clothes in a garbage can and a
missing guard uniform.

The head of security evacuates the courthouse and the team goes looking for Joe. Carrie
notices a guard going to opposite way of everyone else and follows him. Joe finds the man re-
sponsible for his family’s death and pulls a gun on him. Carrie tracks down Joe and gets him to
talk. He says Mary had a feeling about him, she knew about Fordham, and she was going to tell
Kevin. He didn’t mean to kill her, she fell and hit her head.

Carrie tells Joe that he’s right; the man took something very special away from him, but not
to let him take away anything else. She asks him when the trial started, when it ended, and the
best vacation they ever had. Joe answers all of them and Carrie tells him shooting the man will
be a bad memory that will be with him forever. Eventually the bad memories outweigh the good
ones. Joe puts the gun down.

Throughout the episode, Carrie remembers things about her past, specifically how after her
sister was murdered; her mother got rid of everything belonging to her sister. At the end, Carrie
explains to Roe and Al about how she remembers everything. When her mother cleared out her
sister’s belonging, she vowed to always remember things exactly as they were. Roe says he’ll ask
his uncle to check out former employees at his chain of convenience stores.
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Golden Bird

Season 1
Episode Number: 9
Season Episode: 9

e A
Originally aired: = Tuesday November 15, 2011
Writer: Michael Foley (III)
Director: Paul Holahan
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),

Michael Gaston (Det. Mike Costello), Kevin Rankin (Det. Roe Saun-
ders), Daya Vaidya (Det. Nina Inara)

Guest Stars: Marilu Henner (Edie Tripp), Deanna Dunagan (Alice), Kellie Overbey
Shane (Erin O’Malley), Jack Gwaltney (Sean O’Malley), Derek Cecil
(Adam Collier), Peter Benson (Father Anselm), Anna Friedman (Katie
Monaghan), Drew McVety (Daniel Monaghan), Mark Zeisler (Attorney),
Anne Rose Hopkins (Shannon Spicer), Jamil Mena (Ruben Lobato),
Anne Clare Gibbons-brown (Hannah), Aaron Sauter (Gregory Smith)

Production Code: 109

Summary: Al and Carrie investigate the murder of a teen who seemed to have no
enemies. Meanwhile, Carrie looks to her estranged aunt for help with
the investigation into her sister’s murder.

This episode of Unforgettable starts with
a distracted driver talking to her mother
on the phone. She bumps a couple of cars
while parallel parking then gathers her
belongings. As she turns to walk away the
windows of the car explode out. When she
turns back to check out the car, the body
of a dead teenage girl has fallen from the
roof and landed on top.

In a different part of town, Carrie is
meeting her Aunt Edie, played by Mar-
ilu Henner, to show her the sketch of her
sister’s possible killer. Marilu Henner is a
consultant for Unforgettable because she
has the same condition, Highly Superior
Autobiographical Memory (HSAM) as Poppy Montgomery’s character Carrie Wells. Carrie desper-
ately tries to get her aunt’s attention but she is hell-bent on getting away from Carrie. When
Carrie tries to make plans with Edie, she finds a bunch of excuses to get out of it. When Carrie
gets to the crime scene, she tells Al the story and they’re both confused.

Amy O’Malley is the victim on top of the car. Carrie and Al notice defensive wounds on the
Amy’s wrist. Up on the roof, Roe is checking the wall and notices scuff marks; maybe she was
fighting to stay on the roof while someone tried to push her. Carrie and Al meet with Amy’s
parents to get an idea about her routine. While Al continues with the parents, Carrie checks out
Amy’s room to search for clues. The mother comes into the room and tells Carrie she’s usually
home when Amy arrives but roofers were working on the building next door and the fumes
bothered her so she left. Carrie has a flashback to the roof and remembers seeing a bucket of
hot tar on the roof next door. When she and Al check it out, the bucket is still there along with
footprints of someone walking away.

Mike and Carrie visit Amy’s school to ask a few questions. While waiting, Carrie calls Aunt
Edie to try to set up a get-together and Edie agrees to meet but quickly gets off the phone before
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Carrie can confirm a time. Mike and Carrie speak with some of the students Carrie hung out
with on her roof but none of them have any information. They do get a lead on initials carved on
the roof. AO+KS; Kenny Smith is one of Amy’s friends but find out he was at orchestra practice
during the murder.

Mike is telling the team about a neighbor hearing the O’'Malleys get into a heated argument
about Amy when Nina comes in to say Amy’s cell phone reveals she was making calls to Planned
Parenthood. Maybe Amy was pregnant and her parents were fighting about it. A poem Amy wrote
makes it seem like her father was inappropriately touching her. She makes a reference to an
“irrepressible rhythm” and Carrie has a flashback to meeting the parents. Amy’s father kept
tapping a beat on the table while being interviewed. Al tells the team to check the father’s alibi.

Carrie meets with Amy’s mother again and asks if she thought her daughter was pregnant
and she said no. Carrie asks about the fight and the mother says it was about money stolen from
their shop. The father thought Amy took it because she took money from her mother’s purse
earlier, around the same time as the calls to Planned Parenthood. Al finds out the father didn’t
show up for work like he was supposed to.

Carrie goes to Aunt Edie’s hotel because she waited at the restaurant for an hour and she
didn’t show up. Carrie asks why she didn’t call her and Edie says she doesn’t have her number
but she really does. Carrie shows her the sketch and Edie thinks it looks like a guy named
Jonathan her mother dated before getting married. But Jonathan died in a car accident before
her sister’s murder.

Back at the station, Nina comes into Al’s office to tell him Amy’s father may be going after a
kid named Jared Raines from Amy’s school. When his wife told him Amy could’ve been pregnant,
he said it was Raines and went after him at soccer practice. When Nina and Al arrive, Amy’s
father is beating Raines but they pull him off. Mr. O’'Malley accuses Jared of killing his daughter.

In the interview room, Mr. O’'Malley tells Mike he read Amy’s journal and saw she messed
around with Jared during homecoming but he didn’t think they took it that far. Mike asks him
why he wasn’t at work and O’Malley tells him he was out drinking and people could vouch for
him being in the bar. Nina tells Al and Carrie that Amy was not pregnant and Jared did not
know Amy. Carrie goes into the interview with Mike and O’Malley to tell him his daughter wasn’t
pregnant. She asks him if he remembers anything else from the journal. Mr. O’'Malley says a
poem was about a golden bird living in a golden world. The bird fell from the sky and couldn’t fly
anymore. Carrie has a flashback to their visit to the school and remembers one of Amy’s friends,
Katie Monahan, was a gymnast who broke her ankle.

Carrie gets a call from Aunt Edie and she wants to meet. She tells Carrie that her memory is
going. Edie thinks she is developing Alzheimer’s disease and is struggling. She doesn’t want to
see her sister because it is a reminder of what is coming. Interesting Marilu Henner is playing a
person who is losing her memory while her life is the exact opposite.

Nina and Roe track down the roofer and he says Amy and Katie were arguing on the roof but
Katie left. A little later a guy shows up and pushes Amy off the roof. The roofer left because he is
an illegal immigrant and didn’t want to get deported. Katie comes in with her dad and lawyer for
an interview. Katie says she and Amy argued about Amy stealing money from her parents. Carrie
tells Katie either she can tell her father about the pregnancy or she would. Katie tells her father
about the pregnancy and said they argued because Amy wanted her to come clean about why
she stole the money. Katie says she left Amy on the roof alive but refuses to tell who the father
is.

Al tells the team to find out whom Katie was seeing two months ago and Carrie has a flash-
back. She remembers being in the school and seeing a Mr. Collier in a photo of a class trip with
Amy and Katie; he was standing next to Katie. She remembers seeing Mr. Collier in a classroom
rhythmically tapping a ruler on the desk. She also remembers how defensive he looked when
Mike and Carrie spoke to Katie during their school visit. Somehow this reveals Mr. Collier is the
father of the baby. The poem in Amy’s journal is about Katie and Mr. Collier, not Amy and her
father.

The team realizes Mr. Collier stashed the journal where he killed Amy, and they converge on
the apartment building to find Collier retrieving the diary. When he sees them, he tries to fun but
he’s surrounded and arrested. The case is solved and Carrie returns the diary to the O’'Malleys.
Carrie visits her mother to play cards and Aunt Edie shows up.
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Trajectories

Season 1
Episode Number: 10
Season Episode: 10

)
Originally aired: = Tuesday November 22, 2011
Writer: Erik Oleson
Director: Anna Foerster
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),

Michael Gaston (Det. Mike Costello), Kevin Rankin (Det. Roe Saun-
ders), Daya Vaidya (Det. Nina Inara)

Guest Stars: Greg Serano (Det. Ben Cortez), Erik Jensen (Jim Clayburn), C.S. Lee
(Frank Lang), Jonathan Hogan (Priest), Daniel Flaherty (JJ Clayburn),
Tino Sutras (Tito Alvarez), Robert Funaro (Herb Waters), Maria Elena
Ramirez (Hilda Perez), Jennifer Restivo (Beverly Jackson), Iris Delgado
(Mrs. Garcia), Dascha Polanco (Estella), Luke Rosen (Uniform Cop)

Production Code: 110

Sumimary: When investigating on a gang related crime scene suddenly gunfire
goes off and a second murder occurs. Al and Carrie have to go through

hundreds of bystanders to find out who is responsible for the Killings.
| J

At the start of this episode of Unforget-
table, Carrie uses her ability to play in
an illegal poker game. She’s doing a lot of
winning when she notices the game man-
ager pick up the money bag and leave.
She excuses herself just in time to avoid
the police raid, and score some money
from the bag.

Back in her legal profession, Carrie
gets called to a crime scene at a bas-
ketball court. A young woman, Marissa
Perez, was shot right before the first game
started. As the team is surveying the
scene, shots rings out and everyone runs for cover. After the smoke clears, another person is
dead on the court. The scene is chaotic, guns litter the ground, and a couple of people are
wounded. Police managed to grab a couple of the shooters. Carrie flashes back and remembers
a white man running towards Marissa’s body but the police stop him. Roe says the man, Jim
Clayburn, is one of the victims of the second shooting. Jim works with gangs to get them help.
Al thinks maybe the shooting was gang-related and not accidental.

Carrie speaks with Marissa’s mother and she tells her Marissa joined a gang when she was
13. She was trying to leave the gang and was going to college. A couple of weeks ago, she went
back to the gang but her mother doesn’'t know why. The second victim is identified as Oscar
Mendoza. Al brings in Detective Ben Cortez from the gangs unit to get them more information.
There are two gangs in the area: Dominican Killer Kings (DKK) and Queens Bronx Six (QB6).
Marissa was a part of the DKK. Mike and Carrie arrive at the meeting a few minutes later. When
Al introduces Det. Cortez, Carrie has a flashback and sees him at the basketball court during
the shooting.

Det. Cortez admits he was there when Marissa was killed. Carrie tells him that he knew
Marissa, based on his expression at the court and he admits it. She was his confidential in-
formant for the DKK. Carrie accuses Det. Cortez of getting Marissa killed. Carrie and Roe head
back to the crime scene to try to piece everything together. Carrie has a flash back to the second
shooting to see who’s doing the shooting.

25



Unforgettable Episode Guide

Jim Clyburn was the first to get shot during the second shooting, while going after Marissa’s
shooter. Five shots from a different area, one bullet hits a bystander. Four more shots ring out
but Oscar Mendoza is still standing. A final shot is heard and Mendoza is down. The crime scene
techs picked up ten shell casings but 11 shots rang out. The area of the lone shot is where a
parks and rec officer was standing, ushering people out. He said in his statement that he didn’t
see any of the shooters.

Roe meets with the parks and rec guy and asks what he saw. He claims he only saw Jim
Clyburn get shot but didn’t see the shooter. Roe asks if he saw anyone pick up a shell casing
and the guy gets nervous. Roe tells the man he needs him to tell what he knows. The man says
it looked like Oscar Mendoza was reaching for a gun so he shot him.

Al calls Carrie into his office and asks why her fingerprints were found at an illegal poker
game. She says it’s to supplement her income and pay for her mother’s care. Al tells her she
could go to jail and then what would happen to her mother? Nina walks in on the argument and
says the gun used to shoot Marissa is the same gun used to shoot Jim Clyburn, but they don’t
have the gun.

Back at the station, Det. Cortez tracks down Carrie and asks if he can sit in on an interview.
She asks him about what he had on Marissa since she was getting out of the gang and going to
school. Cortez says she was in a car with a kilo of cocaine in the truck. She wasn’t driving so the
charge wouldn'’t stick to her but she didn’t know that. Cortez says he didn’t force her; she came
to him.

The bystander who was shot comes in for an interview and she does not like Carrie’s attitude.
At first she says she didn’t see anything but Carrie and Roe tell her they’ll arrest her for obstruc-
tion if they found out she’s lying. She changes her story and says she saw Marissa arguing with
a man. He was holding her arm and she was trying to get away. She identifies the man from a
photo, Tito Alvarez.

Al gets a call from the hospital and Jim Clyburn is awake. Carrie and Al visit him to see
if he can pick the shooter from a lineup. He picks Tito Alvarez as the shooter. Mike and Det.
Cortez arrive at the front door of Alvarez’s girlfriend but her mother denies knowing Tito and her
daughter isn’t home. Along the side of the house the daughter tosses some clothes out a window
and Tito hops out into the waiting arms of Al and Nina.

Tito says he was at the park but he didn’'t shoot anyone. He says Marissa was mad at him
because he didn’t want her anymore. He didn’t have any problem with Jim and he didn’t run
from the scene. He was frisked by a cop and gave a statement. Carrie has a flashback and sees
the cop frisking Tito without his jacket on. That means he didn’t have a gun so he couldn’t be
the shooter. Roe comes in and says another inmate heard Tito ordering a hit on the person who
got him locked up.

Carrie and Al return to the hospital to confront Jim about his memory. Jim says Tito shot him
and he’s a Killer. He then says he doesn’t know who shot him. Al asks whom is he protecting but
Carrie has a flashback to their previous visit and sees Jim’s son tearing a sheet of paper from
a notebook. Jim was writing instead of speaking because of the tube in his throat. When Carrie
retrieves the paper from the trash it says, "I forgive you.” Jim’s son shot him.

Jim says it was an accident and his son just wanted him to feel the pain he feels when his
father is gone helping the gang kids. He’s not in the gang but they let him hang out. He says Tito
passed the gun to Jim’s son because they knew he wouldn’t get searched. Marissa called Jim
and told him the gang found out she was helping the police. The hit Tito ordered is on Jim’s son.
Jim sent him home to pack some things to leave town for a while.

Carrie and Al arrive and Jim’s home in time to see two men pull a gun on the boy. Carrie
rushes over and shoots one of the men and Al tackles the other. Jim’s son, with his lawyer, give
the police the gun Tito passed him.

The episode ends with Al telling Carrie he will fix the poker game problem with the other police
but he thinks she does it, not for the money, but because she gets bored. She is a cop and needs
to be more careful.
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Spirited Away

Season 1
Episode Number: 11
Season Episode: 11

4 )
Originally aired: = Tuesday December 13, 2011
Writer: Erik Oleson
Director: Anna Foerster
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),

Michael Gaston (Det. Mike Costello), Kevin Rankin (Det. Roe Saun-
ders), Daya Vaidya (Det. Nina Inara)

Guest Stars: Audrey Amey (Nurse #1), Ayana Brown (Mom), Scott Cohen (Dr. Sam
Barlow), Lucy Cottrell (Young Coed), Jennifer Ferrin (Janine Bar-
low), Samuel Ray Gates (Louis), Gabe Hernandez (Man), Paula Leggett
Chase (Wife), Britt Lower (Tanya Sitkowsky), Benjamin Pelteson (Dad),
Mason Pettit (Arthur Greene), William Rogers (Denny), Martin Shakar
(Gordon Kemp), David Thompson (Skate Punk #2), Luke Vexler (Skate
Punk #1), David Raymond Wagner (Husband)

Production Code: 111

Summary: When a renowned ghost hunter is killed, Carrie and Al discover that
his death is linked to a chilling discovery he made on a recent assign-
ment.

he show starts with a couple of Kids
skateboarding through an abandoned
mental hospital. One of the skaters trips
and falls. When he get up blood was on
his pants. That’s when the boys noticed
the dead body on the floor.

The team shows up to investigate the
death of Peter Suderman, a partner at
the ghost hunting firm Spirit Truckers,
Inc. A homeless man name Gordon lives
in the hospital and Carrie pretends she’s
a nurse and gets Gordon into another
room. He talks about a nurse who sucks
the soul out through the eyes. Nina and
Roe find a thermal imaging camera, a tool
of the ghost hunting trade that senses body heat. The camera picks up a large heat source then
it falls to the ground with Peter. Whatever was in front of Peter attacked him.

An audio technician checks out an audio recorder the victim had and she was able to clear
it up so Nina, Roe, and Mike hear "Denny, is that you?” Al and Nina check out Peter’s place of
employment and his boss tells them Peter was at the hospital because he thought ghost were
there. The boss also identifies Denny as an assistant who was recently fired. They get a list of all
of Peter’s clients and check them out. Everyone checks out and they have one name on the list:
Dr. Barlow.

The team gets together in the office to go over Peter’s records. They find a record for Walker/Dunlap
Forensics Lab. Carrie has a flashback and remembers Gordon had an envelope with the same
name on it in his pile of stuff at the hospital. Al sends Roe to get the envelope; Mike and Nina go
to see Denny, and Al and Carrie visit Dr. Barlow. When they arrive at the doctor’s house, he says
his wife is not feeling well but they just want to ask him a couple of questions so he lets them in.
Peter Suderman checked on their home because of noises but he didn’t find anything.
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Carrie asks to see the basement and Dr. Barlow takes her down. Carrie sees broken glass on
the floor and she asks if Peter might have sent something from his home to the forensics lab and
the doctor says no. He seems in a hurry to get out of the basement and says he wants to check
on his wife.

Nina and Mike arrive at Denny’s apartment to find a girl dead on the floor with a knife in
her chest. Mike pulls his gun out and yells freeze. A couple of people come from behind a wall
and the dead girl sits up; they’re shooting a movie. Denny says he was at the hospital but didn’t
kill Peter. He was fired because he borrowed some film equipment. For revenge, he set up some
special effects to look like heat signatures to scare Peter. He says he filmed the whole thing.

Roe and Al get the envelope to the forensics technician, and after some theatre, a bone frag-
ment from a pinkie finger is found inside. The technician determines the bone fragment is from
a 15-year-old female. In the office Mike says he watched Denny video and he’s in the clear. The
bone had zinc oxide on it, consistent with rat poison. Carrie remembers Dr. Barlow’s basement
has rat traps all over the place. Carrie returns to the house to speak with the couple again.
Carrie says evidence was found in their basement and she wants to talk to his wife. Obviously,
she doesn’t know if the bone fragment was found there. He refuses to let Carrie speak to his wife
and tells her to leave his property.

Carrie calls Al and asks about a warrant to search the house and he says they’re close. Carrie
says she hears an argument going on inside the house and Al tells her she doesn’t. She says it's
getting heated and Al says don’t even think about it. Now she hears glass breaking but Al assures
her she doesn’t. It is a ruse to get into the house without a warrant. Al tells her to back off but
she pretends like she lost the signal and climbs into an open window. She goes downstairs into
the basement and gets hit on the back of the head and falls downstairs, unconscious.

Dr. Barlow wakes Carrie up and she says her husband hit her. She unties Carrie and says he
took her gun. Carrie tries to get the wife to go upstairs with her but she says she hears a voice
and her husband is going to kill them. Back at the office, Al asks if anyone has heard from Carrie
and Nina says she tried her cell phone but she didn’t answer. The team heads to Dr. Barlow’s
house.

Carrie tries to find a way out but the basement is locked up tight. Dr. Barlow’s wife says she
knew what happened but didn'’t tell anyone. She met a girl at a park and decided to help her so
she had the girl move in to help around the house. She found out about Dr. Barlow’s involvement
with the girl. A few days later, the girl was gone but the doctor told his wife he fired her. Since
then, the wife has heard voices. Carrie finds a flashlight, shines it on the door, and sees smoke
billowing. She finds an old coal chute to get out of the basement. When she opens it a body falls
out.

They make it out of the house and Carrie sees Dr. Barlow’s car in the driveway; he’s still in the
house. She breaks a window and goes in and finds him slumped in a chair and an empty liquor
bottle on the floor. Roe shows up just in time to help her drag Dr. Barlow from the burning house.
Mike finds a scalpel with Suderman’s blood on it and the mud on his tires from the hospital. Nina
is not convinced about the doctor’s involvement. Why would he hire Peter to check for ghosts in
his home when he knew a body was in the basement?

The forensic technician discovers a flashlight in the thermal-imaging camera video. Carrie
remembers the doctor’s wife giving her the same type of flashlight in the basement. She realizes
the nurse Gordon saw was the doctor’s wife. Carrie calls the hospital to check the doctor’s blood
alcohol level and it's zero. The wife set the fire, not the husband. Carrie and Al rush to the
hospital because they believe the wife is going to finish the job.

When they arrive, they're told he was taken for inhalation therapy but the nurse who took
him came back. He said another nurse said she would take him. Al and Carrie take separate
elevators to cut her off. Carrie finds them as the doors are closing and she sticks her hand in to
stop the door. The doctor’s wife pulls out a scalpel and cuts Carrie, causing her to drop her gun.
She said her husband was going to tell everything but Carrie says he was protecting her.

The wife tries to plunge the scalpel into the doctor’s chest but Carrie stops her. They get into
a fight; the woman is surprisingly strong. She finally subdues the woman as the elevator doors
open and Al takes her away. Carrie is taken for stitches. Al later tells her the husband admits
to the cover-up but denies Killing the woman or Peter Suderman. He says the wife made up the
idea about his affair with the girl.

The bone fragment is from the girl the wife invited into the home and Peter found it. After
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he found out she killed Peter he told her he was done covering for her and was going to tell the
police. So the wife set it up to look like he did it and she tried to burn the house down with both
inside.
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Butterfly Effect

Season 1
Episode Number: 12
Season Episode: 12

e )
Originally aired: = Tuesday January 3, 2012
Writer: Sam Montgomery
Director: Jace Alexander
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),

Michael Gaston (Det. Mike Costello), Kevin Rankin (Det. Roe Saun-
ders), Daya Vaidya (Det. Nina Inara)

Guest Stars: Nicole Brill (Donnamarie Recco), James DiSalvatore (Jerry Mason),
Jackson Hurst (Steve Cioffi Jr.), Albert Jones (Ron Pappas), Caitlin
O’Connell (Edith Feeney), Kevin O’'Rourke (Jack Feeney), Nick Sandow
(William '‘Bud’ Spence), Cotter Smith (Jay Barrett), Peter Van Wagner
(Saul Timkin), Isidra Vega (Tori Guerrero)

Production Code: 112

Summary: When a construction worker with a promising future is murdered, Car-
rie and Al wonder if his ties to the mob were the cause of his death or
an unrelated coincidence.

Carrie races up steps of a construction
skyscraper and is knocked down by a
man in night time. She hangs from the
edge miles above

36 hours earlier, Al buys Carrie a cof-
fee and says he found a kitten. He heard
a meow and couldn’t find the mother and
took it home. Stanley, it has name. Carrie
gets a bagel, Toasted plain no fat schmear
an onion, The man says he has a mind
like a steel trap.’Have a great day carol’
They smile. Carrie hates onions.

Ironworker Christopher Feeney is
dead, Al meets them at the scene. Hey,

= _—— says one worker, Carrie is a Charlie’s An-
gel. 'Which one is she?’” She says she is he one with a big gun. The men laugh. Carrie gets a good
look at the construction premises.

The victim has a dent in his head like that it wasn’t an accident. The M.E. puts the time of
death at ten so what was he doing that time of night. Carrie asks by surveillance cameras, and
Al says one was blocked by a shipment of lumber. Al will look for gambling debts, and problems
in the victim’s life.

They talk to the boss. Feeney was working posting tension he worked on everything, rigging,
precast. They never had trouble had anyone on the site. Like all of the new guys had to keep on
him about safety. The Boss had no idea what he was doing there so late. They have an occasion
when employees are bringing a girl. Carrie harps on security problems with thefts.

Five theft reports of building materials in the last five months. The man says Chris was a
third generation ironworker no way he did it. His father is in a wheelchair from a construction
accident. Personal and financial trouble is a motive they say. The boss says they are going the
wrong way, guys.

Carrie spots the wrench in one of the worker’s belts as the dent material cause. Carrie matches
the site and nods at Al, this is likely the murder weapon. A black trash bag gets thrown around.
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Carrie pulls a bloody wrench from the black bag that was supposed to be hauled out of a dump-
ster

Later they visit the wake of the dead man. Carrie meets the father of Chris Feeney in a
wheelchair. They begged their son to take the scholarship but he insisted on working and helping
out.

The owner of the construction project, Barrett, arrives at the scene. He says that all access to
records and files is now stopped and they have to go through a judge. Access to company records
is limited. Al and the detective staff need to go to a judge.

The head of the detectives asks where Barrett himself was the night before, daringly. He was
looking at a purchase, he doesn’t remember stopping by to kill anybody.

Carrie goes to the victim’s home again to talk to the parents. She says 'We think Chris was on
the job site after ten’ The father can’t think what he was doing there.

The head of detectives investigates Barrett. He lives the high life with high profile divorces.
The deal-maker Barrett is leveraged to the eyeballs, waiting for the turnaround.

Carrie remembers the card a woman left t the funeral wake. From the Jiaffee Family. This is
a known organized crime family. Al asks where she is going. She says to get Jiaffee to tell her
what happened to Chris. Al is not sure she will succeed but humors her.

Carrie goes to a Jiaffey owned restaurant. One of the managers (pit bosses) asks what she
wants. She says she is detective Carrie Wells to see Mr. Jiaffee.

The man returns and says she can’t see him. She says tell him it’'s about Chris Feeney. He
then comes back and conducts her down a stairway and a lower tunnel and into wine cellar and
locks her in the boss’s office. The lock is turned behind her. She tries to get out.

A man comes in. Carrie attacks him. She flashes her handcuffs, He bows to her authority and
apologizes. Marco makes a mistake. At least it’s a wine cellar, he says, 20 years ago it would be
a box.

Carrie isn’t amused. She wants to know why he has an affinity with Chris and who murdered
him. He wants to know why she thinks he’d know. He says he is a legit arm of the family and
doesn’t participate in the family business mores.

Jiaffee says they used to vacation at the same shore where Chris was a lifeguard in his teens.
Chris saved his cousin from a riptide and the cousin was in the hospital for two weeks and Chris
visited her every day, Jiaffee got him a job at Barrett. And they organized the scholarship. Carrie
guesses and he confirms. He says he liked Chris and he’ll help any way he can to find the killer.

‘See you around’: he says as she leaves. 'You should hope not.” She says.

The cops find out Chris had a fight with a truck driver named Manny about a girl. They caught
him on camera putting a roach in his food, and he has a girlfriend named Torie in Uniondale.
Carrie checks out the girlfriend.

Al Burns goes to Barrett. At the curb of their limousine they step onto the sidewalk. Al sees
Barrett and his wife, and Al thanks his wife for her attempts to the PDA. Barrett gets the hint
and sends his wife inside.

Al threatens to tie up his lawyer in court and halt construction again with his evidence. Barrett
says he won’t win but Al says the court hearing would age his $200 million loan another day,
costing him tens of thousands of dollars.

The girlfriend says Chris screwed up at work or something. Carrie sees a hose behind her
as they talk. She can’t reach Manny on his cellphone. He is using his cousin’s phone. Carrie
memorizes the number. They go to the construction site and find Manny’s body hidden in some
concrete.

Steve Jiaffey runs a restaurant. He asks her out. She is surprised. He really want s to ask
her out. he drops a hint for her. It might be helpful to watch the construction site. He isn’t in the
family business but he has friends who dabble.

They find a pattern in the construction financier’s doings. Barrett creates a false identity to
cover. The guard says Barrett did not have a good night. Chris Feeney and Manny were part of
something. They think Chris’ body was left as a warning and Many knew too much. The robbery
material could repay the finance loans.

Carrie drops hint to Al something is going down at the construction site that night. he says
he has to Cal organized crime about Jiaffee. She says there are thousands of dollars of copper
pipe waiting to be lifted. Carrie says he needs
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They gave him a key to the warehouse. Carrie asks him to sign a statement. Al says they
could build a case he killed Chris Feeney. The matrimonial issue is another thing. Al says with
the evidence he has he wants access to records, or in return he doesn’t blow a big gaping hole in
Barrett's marriage.

They find records of how the company does business. Carrie and Al stake out the construction
site. Carrie sees the coffee cups on the dashboard and remembers another time when she and
Al had sex during a stakeout with coffee cups on the dashboard. Al interrupts her reverie when
a truck pulls up across the way. A man unlocks the gate.

They catch a man loading copper pipe but when they pull their guns he runs into the site and
the chase him through the construction levels. He runs high up and kicks Carrie to where she
dangles off the roof and then she crawls back to the ledge and up to safety. She runs around and
tackles the thief when Al is there with the gun and then puts the cuffs on him.

In the interview room Al starts the interrogation but Carrie busts in and says she was on the
edge she gets to ask the questions . Carrie says he doesn’'t want a lawyer. Because the people
who killed Chris and Manny will just kill him too. He will sign a statement.

But Carrie listens to what the man says about being paid to farm out the delivered goods
because Manny was late making the delivery. Carrie realizes that Manny delivered the cement
wet. She goes into Al's office where the Barrett kingpin is being interviewed. She demands to
know if he knows about real construction besides the business side. He says he does.

She says what would happen if Manny and Chris were delivering wet cement every day to the
construction site, for use in the building. They both realize at once. It would weaken the building
but only after the concrete had been poured and dried. The man realizes the building had been
systematically weakening the building as payback for the man getting injured.

Carrie goes to the construction site and loads cement bags on the end of the top floor. She
then dares the one worker to come and stand by her on the end. he does not because he knows
he floor s to weak. She handcuffs him and then he freaks out, fearing he will fall.

Then Al comes and arrests him and say why wasn’t she scared. She says that she filled the
concrete bags full of popcorn from storage boxes 'repurposing’.

Carrie and Jiaffee have a fun date and they talk and laugh at the restaurant. he tells a story
about how his prom was ruined when the Feds were inside his limo because they thought his
father was going to to leave the country. Carrie tells a story about pig’s blood and he gym caching
fire, a joke on her name.
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Brotherhood

Season 1
Episode Number: 13
Season Episode: 13

Originally aired:
Writer:

Director:

Show Stars:

Guest Stars:

Summary:

Production Code:

Tuesday January 10, 2012

Jim Adler

John Coles

Poppy Montgomery (Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),
Michael Gaston (Det. Mike Costello), Kevin Rankin (Det. Roe Saun-
ders), Daya Vaidya (Det. Nina Inara)

Robert Clohessy (Jack Healy), Daniel Cosgrove (Chad Martin), Ja-
son Dworak (Miles Novak), Tom Lipinski (Colin Marsh), Britt Lower
(Tanya Sitkowsky), Chazz Menendez (Frank Dorner), Nicolette Robin-
son (Mena Levy), Mike Steinmetz (Jonas Heller), Barrett Helms (Jeremy
Hall), Brendan Dooling (Frat Boy #2), Adam Huber (Frat Boy #1), Brad
Aldous (Suit), Nikki E. Walker (Paramedic), Tim Barker (Officer), Omar
Evans (Delivery Man), Chris Critelli (Pledge)

113

A routine investigation into a college student’s death takes a disturb-
ing turn for Carrie when a suspect makes a dangerous move to outwit

her memory.

This episode of Unforgettable finds the team inves-
tigating the death of Miles Novak, a 19-year-old
sophomore in college. Miles’ roommate brought a
girl to their room for some private time. He pushes
the bottom of the bed to wake Miles, but instead the
body falls to the floor. The body has ligature marks
around the wrist and burn marks on the neck. It
looks like Miles was tortured.

Carrie and Mike go back to the campus to try to
track down some of Miles’ friends. They see a young
man in the student lounge with Miles’ laptop and
similar marks on his wrist. The guy takes off run-
ning but Carrie chases him down. In the interroga-
tion room, the guy tells Mike the marks are from zip
ties and he and Miles were pledging to a fraternity,
Omega Theta Rho. He had the laptop because he
got an “assignment” from the fraternity. Miles was
kicked out so he got a note under his door telling
him to get Miles’ laptop and wipe the hard drive.

At the office, Carrie receives a large bouquet of
flowers from a man named Steve but she doesn’t
seem too inclined to take them. She instead gives
them to the CSI tech and says they were left for
her. She asks if there are any updates but the tech
is still searching. Carrie has a flashback to Miles’

dorm room and remembers he had a lot of Nikola Tesla items so she has the tech search that

name.

Tesla works as a password for a video on Miles’ laptop. The video depicts a hazing ritual where
mud and water is thrown on pledges and they are sprayed with fire extinguishers while being
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told they are scum. Carrie and Al visit the fraternity and speak with the pledge master. He denies
he or the fraternity had anything to do with Miles’ murder. Miles was kicked out as a pledge
because he couldn’t keep up.

Later, the CSI tech finds an e-mail Miles sent to the local district attorney offering the name
of a drug ring if he is immune from prosecution. Nina finds out Miles flew to Toronto a few times
and the credit card used was addressed to the fraternity. Nina, Al, and Carrie think the drug ring
might be in the fraternity so Carrie goes back during a party she was invited to so she can check
it out. As she’s walking through the house, Carrie notices a wall and has a flashback to Miles’
room and pictures on the wall of different guys in Toronto.

She decides to find out about the guys going to Toronto and challenges them to a drinking
game. She lays all 52 playing cards on a table face down. The guys call out one and she has to
find it on the first try. If she does they have to take a shot. Obviously she is doing better than
they are. A man comes up to her and asks if she wants a shot when all of a sudden, she is woozy.
The next scene, a woman is asking her if she’s all right and if she knows where she is. A police
officer finds her in a car and thinks she’s been drinking.

The next day the team goes back to the house to look around. Carrie has a flashback and
remembers drinking from a bottle of water when she started feeling woozy. As she heads to the
restroom upstairs, she can’t remember everything but she remembers slumping to the floor and
the pledge master asking, "Why couldn’t you just leave it alone?” He seemed to be scared when
he said it and them another man comes into the picture and helps take her outside. They try to
put her in a van but she manages to get away to her car.

Four members of the fraternity admit to going to Toronto to import t-shirts for the pledge
master, now the pledge master is missing. Carrie has another flashback and remembers the
pledge master yelling at a recruit to take off a t-shirt with a maple leaf on it. Maybe, they figure,
the guys are bringing liquid cocaine in from Toronto by soaking the t-shirts in it. Roe says they
can get the cocaine out by soaking the shirts in water and industrial cleaner. When everyone
looks at him he says, "What? I read.”

Carrie remembers the van she was being taken to was a dry cleaner’s on campus. The team,
along with other NYPD officers, raids the dry cleaner and finds the pledge master beaten and tied
to a chair. A man jumps out from the clothes, tackles Carrie, and starts choking her. Al comes
along and hits the man on the head with his gun and the cops grab him. The entire drug ring
gets busted.
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Carrie’s Caller

Season 1
Episode Number: 14
Season Episode: 14

4 N\
Originally aired: = Tuesday February 7, 2012
Writer: Ed Redlich, John Bellucci
Director: Aaron Lipstadt
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),

Michael Gaston (Det. Mike Costello), Kevin Rankin (Det. Roe Saun-
ders), Daya Vaidya (Det. Nina Inara)

Guest Stars: Britt Lower (Tanya Sitkowsky), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster), Chris
Beetem (Duane Tate), Harriett D. Foy (Nurse), James Urbaniak
(Richard Simmons), Michael De Nola (Cook)

Production Code: 114

Summary: A serial Killer with knowledge of Carrie’s memory abilities taunts the
Queens PD as his list of victims grows.

Carrie speeds through the streets of New
York, sirens blaring and dodging cars,
to get to a crime scene. She skids to a
stop at a park and gets out of the car
to the hustle and bustle of nothing. She
looks around but the park is quiet. Car-
rie walks over to a food vendor and asks
about a shooting in the park. He asks if
she’s Detective Wells, and when she says
yes he hands her a bag of food and a bill.
Carrie has been sent for lunch.

As Carrie hands out the food order
and warns her fellow detectives about
their payback, her telephone rings. When
she picks it up a voice says, "Good af-
ternoon detective, I'm about to kill some-
one.” She thinks Roe set up another prank but he’s busy eating his food. The caller continues,
“It's 1:38 now. At 1:56 someone else will die.” He tells her about the other person whose already
died and reminds her she only has 15 minutes.

Carrie quickly flashes back to the phone conversation and remembers hearing the sounds of
a subway near Court Square so the team quickly race to the scene. As they search the area the
team finds nothing and Al thinks maybe the caller is a kook. Just then, a man jogging through
the square falls down.

As Carrie and Al are talking, she notices a woman kneeling down and examining the body.
Carrie goes over and starts yelling at the woman about it being a crime scene when Al comes
over and tells her the woman, Joanne Webster as played by Jane Curtin, is the medical examiner.
Jane Curtin is probably best known for playing Dr. Mary Albright in ‘3rd Rock from the Sun’.
She says it’s her second day on the job and her badge is not ready. She goes on to tell them the
guy was killed by a sniper.

Back at the office, the killer calls again. She asks him where he’s going to strike next and he
says not where he’s going but where he’s been. She thinks he wants her to go to Jersey where
the first victim was killed. After searching around, she sees a wooden hand pointing to Lover’s
Loop. Al and Carrie discover where the sniper positioned for the first shot. They also find a photo
of her from the second crime scene tacked to a tree.
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The killer calls again and Carrie names him Fred. He asks if she got the picture, she says yes
and tells him she doesn’t have time for him, and hangs up. Carrie says she taking control and
he’ll call back. Sure enough he calls back and tells Carrie he’s impressed with her and to enjoy
the hunt. Al tells Carrie she’s being reckless and tells her she’s staying at the precinct to be safe.

Carrie gets a call in the middle of the night and when she answers it, it’s not Fred. Instead,
it’s a nurse from a hospital calling about a woman whose been shot. The nurse says Fred told
her to call Carrie because she was taking care of the victim.

Al and Carrie speak to the victim at the hospital. She says she was kissing her husband as
she dropped him off at the train station when she was shot in the arm. Carrie asks her how she
was standing when she kissed her husband and realizes she was shot from behind. The woman
wasn't the target, her husband was. They need to find the husband because he went home to get
some things.

They find the husband at home alive. Al shows him pictures of the other two victims and asks
if he knows them. He remembers them from a work camp. After he grew up he would go hiking
in that area known as Crown Gorge. The man tells Al and Carrie him and the other guys played
a game where they hunted a local kid they called Sparky at Crown Gorge. He tells Al to contact
Dick Simmons for more information. Mike and Nina meet with Mr. Simmons and he tells them
Sparky is Lester Collins. Lester wanted to fit in with the other kids but couldn’t and that made
him an outcast. He was later dishonorably discharged from the Army.

Back at the office, Tanya the CSI "borrowed” an FBI/NSA program to find the number of the
phone the killer is using and came up with three possibilities. She got the idea from Joanne who
shows up to find out if it worked. Al, along with the three women, calls the numbers and the
third one works. They find his general location and he tells Carrie they've got one hour to save
the last guy.

The team figures out the last guy to be killed is getting on a ferry to Jersey because the killer
told Carrie the victim will be trapped with no way out. Carrie and Al get on the ferry and find
the man and the shooter in time. She tells Lester to put his gun down but he fires and so does
Carrie. Luckily for Carrie she’s wearing a bulletproof vest. Not so lucky for Lester who was killed.

The team is in Al's office, along with Joanne, when Roe comes in and says they found Mr.
Simmons body and he’s been dead for three days. That’s not possible because Mike and Nina
spoke to Simmons the day before and the guy looked nothing like Lester. A phone number is
carved into the dead Simmons’ back. Carrie calls the number and the mysterious voice answers
and congratulates them on finding Lester but he was just a pawn. He tells Carrie he’ll see her
later and hangs up. A woman walks into the man’s office and calls him counselor; he is a lawyer
but they don’t show his face.
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The Following Sea

Season 1
Episode Number: 15
Season Episode: 15

( )\
Originally aired: = Tuesday February 14, 2012
Writer: Michael Foley (III), Jan Nash
Director: Oz Scott
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),

Michael Gaston (Det. Mike Costello), Kevin Rankin (Det. Roe Saun-
ders), Daya Vaidya (Det. Nina Inara)

Guest Stars: Britt Lower (Tanya Sitkowsky), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster), Al
Sapienza (Joe Hagan), Armand Schultz (David), Deborah Baum
(Gwen), Frank Lewallen (Bill), Frank Ridley (Burly Man), Kate Skin-
ner (Judge Wilkinson), Kim Director (Kate), P.J. Sosko (Jake)

Production Code: 115

Summary: A key witness in Al's case suddenly disappears, now he must find her
before he has to turn his suspect loose.

| mm The scene opens with Nina inquiring

» ‘ “ ” I|II l” |'|Ii'|

$ U

about a woman, Kate Jordan, asking peo-
ple to identify her photograph. Mean-
while, in a pub, we see people watching
‘ the news, where the murder of Nora Ha-
gan is being reported. The accused being;
her husband, Joe Hagan. Next we see Joe
being all huffy at Burns, for falsely ac-
cusing him of his wife’s murder. But Al
realizes that Joe was nervous. Nina and
Roe are still seen inquiring about Kate.
Next we see Carrie informing Burns that
he was all over the television and that she
has come to help him. Burns tells Car-
rie that Joe was a powerful man and he
would turn this murder into a suicide. He says that only Adam could buy them some time. Next,
we are taken into the court room, where we see Adam informing the judge that Kate was to reach
the court to testify, but now she is missing. He suspects that something is happened to her.

He asks the judge for some more time. But Joe’s lawyer wants this case to be declared as a
mistrial. On Burns assurance of finding Kate, the judge grants a two day recess. When Burns
comes out of the court room, Carrie informs him that Nina had found out where Kate was resid-
ing. They reach the hotel room. But they don’t find her; no wallet, no id. But they find traces of
an expensive perfume. Nina comes in announcing that the manager told her about an emergency
exit door being tripped the previous night. The trio concludes that Kate was kidnapped. Back at
the office, the team is shown discussing the possibilities of how the murder would have taken
place. Burns explains to Nina that Kate’s testimony was very important, as she had seen Joe
hit his wife and threatened to kill her. Roe presents a 3-D representation of what could have
happened the day Nora was killed.

They explain the same to Nina. Burns tells Nina that the couple was on a romantic cruise.
Nora had a little too much to drink and had gone to the deck to get some fresh air. Joe went to
the deck to check on her every 15 minutes. Their friend Watts said that Nora went to the deck
at 9.30pm. Watts is ready to testify that he could hear the couple talk until 10.15. Joe comes
down and informs Watts that Nora was gone. But the team realizes that according to the current
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patterns and the manner in which Nora was washed onto the shore, did not match with the time
Joe claims. They also conclude that a person of Nora’s height could not accidentally fall off that
railing as it was too high. She had to be thrown off. Carrie suggests that they re-examine the
old forensics in the next 44 hours, as it could be difficult to find Kate. Burns finds it to be an
inconceivable task; but the expert says it could be done faster. Just then Carrie sees a picture of
Kate’s roommate from Ohio, Gwen Turning.

Carrie, owing to her extraordinary ability, visualizes a scene, where she sees Gwen at the
court talking to Clancy Watts, the same person on the boat; the night Nora died. Carries has
a hunch that she was asking Watts about Kate. Next, we see Burns asking Gwen about Kate.
Gwen tells Burns that Kate had called her last week, informing her about her arrival in town
and also that she would change her testimony. That astounds Burns. Next, we see Mike and Roe
talking to Watts, enquiring about Kate. Watts tells them that he did not know Kate well. At this,
the detectives tell Watts that Gwen has updated them about him being friends with Kate. Despite
hearing that, Watts refuses to help and walks away. Back at the office, Burns reruns the tape of
Kate’s testimony and tells Carrie that she did not notify the D.A. about changing her testimony.

Just then Nina walks in announcing that, as per the phone records; Kate did call Watts last
afternoon at 3 and more importantly, she got a call 7 minutes before the emergency door was
tripped. Burns wants Watts in the box. But Carrie thinks that Watts will not talk and decides to
talk to someone else. Next, we see Carrie meeting Watts with her name changed and befriends
him. Carrie informs Burns that she suspects that Watts has something on his mind. Next we see
Tanya updating Roe about Kate’s movements before she disappeared. She tells him that after
Kate reached the boat parkway, her mobile phone got lost. Tanya thinks that she either removed
the battery or she never made it to the signal tower. Next we see that the forensic expert informs
Nina that, Nora Hagan belonged to the fishing dynasty, which proves that she could swim and
she was very fit.

Next the team is shown searching for clues on the dock. In the meanwhile, Carrie meets
Watts at an eatery. Carrie sees that he is carrying the same jacket which was found in Kate’s
hotel room, with the expensive perfume on it. He tells her that it belonged to a friend of his and
Carrie confirms that Kate and Watts were more than friends. Back at the docks, Burns and his
team pull out a car from the river and horror meets him when he sees Kate’s dead body in it.
Burns calls Carrie. Back at the office, the entire team is discussing the case and they conclude
that Watts’ involvement in the case is more than what meets the eye. They decide to call in
Watts. Next, we see Burns interrogating Watts, with his lawyer beside him. They ask Watts as to
why didn’t he inform them about his romantic involvement with Kate. He tells them that he had
known Kate for a long time, but their affair had ended a year ago. The team informs Watts about
Kate’s murder. He is shocked and leaves the room with his lawyer.

Carrie feels that Watts is being duped by Hagan and she goes to get the proof. Carrie goes
to Watts and tries talking to him about his girlfriend. Just then Hagan walks into the room. On
asking about Carrie, Watts tells him that she is a customer and that he is helping her with her
boat. After a brief talk, Carrie takes her leave. But she eavesdrops into their conversation. Next,
we see Roe informing Burns about Kate’s new testimony which could land her in jail; because
Hagan asked her to falsify accounting documents and stealing people’s money. Nora had not only
threatened to leave him but also expose is deeds. Next, in the court room, David, Hagan’s lawyer
asks for the dismissal of this case, as Kate was not available to testify. Adams informs the judge
about Kate’s murder but there was no proof to accuse Hagan for it. The judge dismisses the case
declares Hagan to be a free man.

Embittered by this, Burns leaves the court. Back at the office, the forensics expert informs
Burns that there was a combination of drugs found in Nora’s body, which was very lethal. And
it was this that caused her to drown, despite her knowing how to swim; as this combination of
drugs made her unable to move. But there was more. The expert informs Burns that the same
combination and concentration of the drugs was also found in Kate’s body. A worried Carrie calls
Burns and tells him that Hagan could harm Watts, as Watts now knows that Hagan killed Kate.
She tells him that she did not know where Watts was. But just then she recalls an incident at
the eatery, where a man named Billy was talking about his boat; which was on Hagan’s marina;
Claire Anne. She figures out that Watts could have gone to help Billy. She rushes to the boat.
She finds an unconscious Watts and calls for help. They are able to save Watts.

Burns suspects that they could find the same combination of drugs in Watts’ blood, which
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would help them convict Hagan. Next, the team barges into a party to arrest Hagan. When the
people protest, Burns tells them how Hagan stole his employees’ money for gambling and how he

murdered Nora and Kate and also that he attempted to kill Watts. The episode ends with Hagan’s
arrest.
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Heartbreak

Season 1
Episode Number: 16
Season Episode: 16

e N
Originally aired: = Tuesday February 21, 2012
Writer: Spencer Hudnut
Director: Anna Foerster
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Det. Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),

Michael Gaston (Det. Mike Costello), Kevin Rankin (Det. Roe Saun-
ders), Daya Vaidya (Det. Nina Inara), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)

Recurring Role: Britt Lower (Tanya Sitkowsky)

Guest Stars: Jackson Hurst (Steve Cioffi Jr.), Marin Ireland (Sarah Green), Sebas-
tian Roché (Victor Cushman), Jacqueline Hahn (Evelyn), Gabriel Gas-
ton (Spence), Ernesto Rosas (Don), Aaron Serotsky (Glen), Carmine
Famiglietti (Tony), Jennifer C. Johnson (Mona), Carl Ducena (NYPD

Officer)
Production Code: 116
Summary: Carrie and Al are confused when a murder victim suddenly appears in
an empty ballpark, and determining cause of death.
| J

The episode begins, and a groundskeeper
who works at a baseball stadium brings
his girlfriend to the field one late night to
: e — B propose marriage; he has chalked out an
S B B claborate plan for his proposal. He gets
' : down on one knee, presents the ring, and
in a romantic fashion asks her to marry
him. She lets out a scream so he’s not
sure if her answer is a yes or a no, as the
message she sent out seems mixed. She
screams again; shock and horror clearly
essayed on her face, all this while she is
: looking at something behind him, so he
turns around and sees a dead body 1n center field; much to his shock and horror. Carrie gets
called out of bed to work the case.

The medical examiner after an examination concludes that, the dead body has almost every
bone in his body broken. His injuries are consistent with a fall from a significant height; which
might the reason for his demise. Since he was found in the middle of a baseball field, it’s possible
he fell from an airplane, as there is hardly any other possibility that can be taken into consider-
ation, given the circumstances. The ME also finds bruising at the base of the skull which means
someone hit him before his fall; thus the victim was assaulted before his ultimate demise. Al gets
called away so he tells Nina and Mike to find out the victim’s name and if he was a stowaway.
Later, Mike goes into Al’s office to tell him the victim was not a stowaway. Al tells Mike he got a
call from Spence because he’s in a little trouble at another precinct.

Apparently Mike’s son and some of his friends dined and ditched at a restaurant but the
owner decided to not press charges. Mike says Spence is grounded for life, again, for this latest
transgression of his. Roe comes in and identifies the victim as Jason Kubiak, a bank manager. Al
and Carrie visit Jason’s apartment and a woman is exiting as they get there. She is Sarah Green,
Jason’s girlfriend. She last saw him the day before and they were supposed to meet for dinner to
celebrate their three-month anniversary. When he didn’t contact her, she thought he got scared
off because their relationship was moving so fast. Al and Carrie check out the restaurant and
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Jason never showed. As they're leaving, Carrie sees a florist and has a flashback to the crime
scene. She sees pollen on Jason’s shirt so they check the florist shop and it has surveillance
from the previous night, which they monitor for relevant clues. They see Jason get into the back
of a black van and it drives away.

The team thinks he was kidnapped because of his job position. The next morning the team
goes to Jason’s bank to make further inquires and when the other bank manager opens the vault,
the safe deposit boxes have been broken into and their contents stolen; much to their surprise.
Back at the office, the CSI find a thermal imaging camera facing the stadium during the time of
death. The video shows a body falling from the sky into the stadium; it obviously was the victim.
She is able to find, through the FAA, an airplane in the area at the time of body falling; the victim
might just have been pushed from this very airplane. Nina and Roe head to the airport to make
further inquiries. There they find the plane and also find the can from the flower shop. The man
washing the van says it belongs to a man who rents a space for his airplane. He took the plane
out the previous night around 1:00 am with two other people but he didn’t notice if Jason was
among them.

Al finds out the van was reported stolen and the plane is registered to a fake company; thus
it is difficult to lay their hands on any leads. The ME finds DNA under Jason’s fingernails that
traces back to a Mark Payne who is a mechanic at the airport Nina and Mike visited. Al and
Carrie pay a visit to Mark Payne’s house and he comes out shooting much to their surprise; Al
returns fire and kills him, as an act of self defense. Carrie looks around and sees a can of tea on
a table. She has a flashback and remembers the same tea sitting on Jason’s table. His girlfriend
Sarah likes to drink it and she’s now a suspect; based on the present set of clues available at
hand. Nina finds photos of Sarah tied up like a hostage. She thinks they showed the pictures to
Jason and then had her tied up in the van, which is why he got into it in the first place and that
too without any resistance.

Sarah’s mother comes in and tells Carrie her daughter was always trouble; thus it might not
be surprising for her to be involved with the whole thing. Carrie asks about the burn scar on
Sarah’s neck and her mother says it happened when Sarah was with her husband in a hotel fire.
She tells Carrie her father was smoking in her room when she was a child. Sarah’s mother says
the marriage ended when he left Sarah in the hospital after the fire. She shows Carrie a photo
of the two and she has a flashback. The man in the photo came in to discuss his safe deposit
box from the bank Jason worked at; that is from where she remembers him. Carrie finds out
his name is Adam and he is wanted in a string of international bank robberies. In one case, he
crashed his plane and fled with the diamonds but Sarah didn’t get away and was burned in the
accident.

They didn’t have enough to charge her so she was released; despite being with him at the time
of the accident. Carrie has a flashback to when Adam came in to check his box; he was relieved
to see a key was still inside, a fact that had caught her attention. The team believes Sarah wanted
revenge so she broke into the bank and made a copy of the key to get inside a high-end storage
facility where Adam kept his stolen jewels; just so she could get her hands on them and thus
teach him a good lesson in the process. The team goes to the facility and sees Adam; who is
immediately on the alert on seeing them.

He takes off but they catch him; he tells them they're too late, Sarah got into the box; and
has managed to steal everything. Adam tells them Sarah will probably wait a couple of days and
then fly away to somewhere safe. Al and Carrie catch her in the nick of time, just as she is trying
to take off in an airplane. Carrie shoots a tire and Sarah stops the plane; as she knows her gig
is up. She admits her partner pushed Jason out of the plane but she feels responsible for it. She
really did love him; and had no intention of actually hurting him.
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Blind Alleys

Season 1
Episode Number: 17
Season Episode: 17

( )\
Originally aired: = Tuesday February 28, 2012
Writer: Erik Oleson, Heather Bellson
Director: Peter Werner
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Det. Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),

Michael Gaston (Det. Mike Costello), Kevin Rankin (Det. Roe Saun-
ders), Daya Vaidya (Det. Nina Inara), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)

Recurring Role: Britt Lower (Tanya Sitkowsky)

Guest Stars: Carl Ducena (NYPD Officer), Boris McGiver (Martin), Clark Johnson
(Clay Jacobs), Jasmine Carmichael (Kim Jacobs), Stephen Tyrone
Williams (David Jacobs), Bianca Camacho (Delores Gonzales), Mateo
Gomez (Juan), Alexis Suarez (Uniform), Ann Sanders (Reporter), Jill
Paice (Molly Benedict)

Production Code: 117

Summary: Al and Carrie are forced to the sidelines by a negotiator when the father
of a suspect that Roe shot takes members of the Queens PD, including
Nina, hostage in a desperate quest for justice.

The team on Unforgettable is immediately
thrown into the thick of things when Roe
shoots and Kkills a suspect. Roe fired be-
cause he thought he saw a gun but un-
fortunately, the suspect wasn’t armed. In
the office, Mike tells Roe he needs to calm
down because he made a good shot. The
father of the suspect, Clay, shows up to
the precinct to meet Roe. Al tells Clay he
can’t divulge information about the case
but he’s not hearing it. He wants to file
i charges against Roe for killing his son.

Nina takes him to the office to file a complaint but he wants a murder charge. A police officer
comes over to calm him down but Clay grabs his gun and holds it to the officer’s head. Nina pulls
her gun but Clay says he’ll shoot the cop unless she puts it down. Nina puts her gun down and
he clears the room of civilians and now has police hostages.

The medical examiner tells Al the suspect didn’t have any drugs in his system nor did he have
any gun shot residue on his hands. This does not look good for Roe but the ME says she’ll sit on
the information for a while. Clay somehow gets a hold of the media and says the NYPD killed his
son and won't let the coward who shot him come out. Roe is watching this and Al tells him to go
home.

Mike tells Al and Carrie someone called to report a police shooting but Carrie says that’s
impossible because no one could see street level. She has a flash back and remembers seeing
a shadow from above. Someone saw the shooting. The hostage taker is looking at the news and
the reporter says his son didn’t have a gun. While he’s distracted, the police officer kicks him in
the knee and lunges for the gun. Unfortunately, Clay has another gun and pulls it before the cop
can get a handle on his gun. Nina begs him not to shoot the officer so Clay hits him in the head
instead.

Clay’s daughter shows up and the hostage negotiator wants her to say certain things to him
but she’s not hearing it. Carrie takes the girl to the side and talks to her. She tells Carrie her
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brother didn’t have a gun. Al and Carrie decide the girl isn’t going to help them because she
thinks her brother is innocent. Al tells Carrie to get Mike and go look for the gun and the un-
known caller.

Carrie and Mike return to the alley where the shooting happened. She climbs the fire escape
and finds a man’s ID. They track down the man and he says he saw what happened but it was
too dark to see if the man had a gun.

Back at the precinct, Roe goes to the room with the hostages. Roe tells Clay the police thought
his son shot a drug dealer but he doesn’t believe it. Roe gives him the case file so he can read it
for himself. The S.W.A.T. team is ready to bust the door down when it opens and Clay releases
the hostages, except for Roe.

Roe tells Clay he chased his son down the alley and when he turned around, Roe thought he
saw a gun so he shot him. He tells Clay he’s sorry but he thought the man had a gun. Clay says
his son couldn’t shoot a gun because of an incident in the military.

Al calls the room and tells the man to look at the picture under the door. It is a photo of the
gun his son had and used to kill the drug dealer. Clay says there was no gun and holds a gun
to Roe’s head. The hostage negotiator wants to take the room but Carrie says there are other
options. She notices the negotiator scratching his head and has a flash back to him doing it
earlier and the dead man saying something was personal. She asks Al to buy her ten minutes to
check something out.

Carrie talks to Clay’s daughter and she shows her the gun. She asks the girl why would the
victim fight with a drug dealer when he didn’t do drugs but she doesn’t know. Carrie says the
girl knew the drug dealer and she tells Carrie her brother found out she was running drugs. Her
brother and the dealer get into a fight over this and the dealer says he’s going to kill her brother.

Clay’s daughter goes to talk to him about what happened. She tells Clay it’s all her fault
and she took the gun and shot the drug dealer. Her brother was just trying to protect her. Clay
surrenders but asks to see his son first, and they oblige.

46



Unforgettable Episode Guide

The Comeback

Season 1
Episode Number: 18
Season Episode: 18

4 )\
Originally aired: = Tuesday March 20, 2012
Writer: Michael Foley, Christal Henry
Director: Jean de Segonzac
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Det. Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),

Michael Gaston (Det. Mike Costello), Kevin Rankin (Det. Roe Saun-
ders), Daya Vaidya (Det. Nina Inara), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)

Recurring Role: Britt Lower (Tanya Sitkowsky)

Guest Stars: James Urbaniak (Walter Gordon), Nneka Okafor (Kayla), Stu ’'Large’
Riley (Augie Security Guard), Michael Ingram (Norman), Lee Sellars
(Barry), Jill Paice (Molly Benedict), Robert M. Jimenez (Cop), Will Chase
(Reed), Jay O. Sanders (Jonathan), Sophia Rokhlin (Ella), Andrew
Stewart-Jones (Ken)

Production Code: 118

Summary: Carrie’s latest case is stalled the influence of a powerful family’s, she
then receives assistance from a lawyer who maybe behind a serious of
sniper attacks.

In this episode of Unforgettable, Carrie’s
mysterious caller is back. In a previous
episode, a man was killing people and
it was up to the team to find them be-
fore the murder. They killed a guy who
they thought was the killer but he is still
at large. The episode centers on a mur-
dered tennis pro. Kayla Yancy, the tennis
player, walks out of the gym and the se-
curity guard hears a gun shot. He rushes
outside to find Kayla dead in the street.

Al and Carrie were attending a law en-
forcement gala when they are called to
the scene. Mike and Roe send them back
to the party while they handle the mur-
der. They meet up with Jo, the Medical
Examiner, and she introduces her to a number of people. One of the men, a lawyer, she intro-
duces Carrie to sounds eerily similar to the mysterious caller.

Back at the office, Carrie has a flash back to the security video. She remembers Kayla walking
to her car when she slows her pace. Carrie thinks Kayla saw someone she knew. Carrie visits Jo
and she tells her the kill shot was up close and personal. Jo tells her the man she introduced
her to is Morgan and is a lawyer. Roe and Nina interview Kayla’s coach and he tells them her
boyfriend Troy was a drug peddler but she was too smart for that.

Carrie is still looking into Morgan. She calls his law firm to talk to him but he’s not in; he’s
at the zoo. She heads over to the zoo to chat with him. They talk about various mundane things
when she gets a call from Al to head over to Kayla’s boyfriend’s house. When she arrives at his
house, he walks out and heads in the opposite direction. Carrie chases around the corner when
she sees him on the ground; he’s been shot.

Kayla and her friend were receiving money from an unknown source to help pay bills. Carrie
and Roe visit the girl and she tells them they were at Troy’s house when someone came over.
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They both went out the window to the fire escape and Kayla hurt her ankle. A couple of days
later, someone contacts them and has them sign a bunch of papers and gives them money. The
man is Reid Benedict and he’s running for Congress.

Nina finds out the trust that’s been paying Kayla and her friend belongs to a law firm. When
Carrie looks at the list of employees, she notices the name Hegstrom. She has a flash back to her
zoo visit and notices the name on a park bench. She realizes Jonathan Hegstrom is the fixer for
Reid Benedict. He fixes whatever trouble he gets into. That’s why no one knew about the payouts.

Carrie calls Morgan again but he’s not at his office. But he left a message: "you're welcome.”
He knows that she is on to him and he sat at that bench to give her some information. Carrie
and Al meet with Reid Benedict about his involvement with Kayla. When Al tells him a car with
a partial plate matched a car belonging to his family was seen at the scene, he looks genuinely
surprised and says he didn’t hurt Kayla, he had a doctor’s appointment.

Al calls Carrie into his office and tells her the corruption commission about her. They're
opening an investigation about her income and expenditures. She thinks Hegstrom is coming
after her but Al wants to know if they’ll find anything. Carrie says she’ll be fine but Al is upset
she’s screwing up. She tells Al she’ll handle it. Carrie bursts into Hegstrom’s office and tells him
she’s on him until she brings him down. Benedict tells her she should take some time off and
clear her head. He’s not worried about her; he’s had better adversaries before.

Back at the office, the team is trying to find out why Hegstrom is involved since Reid Benedict
has an alibi. They believe he’s protecting someone other than Reid. Carrie has a flash back to
the interview with Reid and she remembers his wife had an abrasion on her wrist. They found a
bracelet at the crime scene for Kayla and think she pulled it off of the wife during the shooting.
Roe finds another video from the neighborhood and it shows Mrs. Benedict getting out of the
car shown at the crime scene. She also registered a handgun recently. They go to the Benedicts
house and Reid thinks he’s there for him but they take his wife instead.

At the station, she confesses to killing Kayla. Carrie wants to get a search warrant for the
house but Al doesn’t think a judge will give them one just for the wife. She has a flash back
to the gala when Morgan introduces her to a judge, Leo Silverman. Carrie has Roe search for
records on the judge and Benedict and finds they ran against each other in politics. The race was
ugly and the judge lost by 30 points. She’s found her judge.

Carrie and Roe show up at Hegstrom’s office. They tell him they found a parking receipt in
his car putting him a block from where Troy was killed. They also found the gun and Benedict's
bracelet in his safe deposit box, and now he’s under arrest. Carrie tells Al about Morgan and his
connection to the mysterious caller. She tells him he helped her with the case but Al tells her
he’s using her.

Carrie meets with Morgan and she tells him she knows who he is and how he played Mrs.
Benedict, and she’s coming after him. He tells her the penguin exhibit has been rebuilt. He says
goodbye and walks away. She has a flash back to the zoo and sees a message saying he can help
her find her sister’s Kkiller.
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Allegiances

Season 1
Episode Number: 19
Season Episode: 19

( )
Originally aired: = Tuesday March 27, 2012
Writer: Joan Binder Weiss
Director: Oz Scott
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Det. Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),

Michael Gaston (Det. Mike Costello), Kevin Rankin (Det. Roe Saun-
ders), Daya Vaidya (Det. Nina Inara), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)
Recurring Role: Jackson Hurst (Steve Cioffi Jr.), Britt Lower (Tanya Sitkowsky)
Guest Stars: Ami Brabson (Sonya), Anthony Mangano (Michael), Arthur J.
Nascarella (Stefano Cioffi), Corinna May (Libby), Fulvio Cecere (Har-
low), Joe Passaro (Guest #1), Joshua Biton (Tommy), Rachel Ticotin

(Sharon)
Production Code: 119
Sumimary: Carrie’s personal and professional lives collide when her boyfriend,
the son of a mob boss, is revealed to have ties to suspects in a murder
investigation.
. J

The episode begins, with Carrie at Steve’s
party, where she meets his parents.
The two of them later catch a moment
alone, and get cozy. Later Steve’s cousin,
Tommy who is on the phone borrows his
pen and writes a number down on the
palm of his hand. Once he leaves the
two again get cozy. Later Carrie is at
a crime scene, there is a battered body
of a young female, dead in a bath tub.
There are no signs of forced entry, and
the windows were locked. Whoever did
this, didn’t force his way in. They presume it could be a boyfriend. She then finds a photo of
the victim with a man lying on a table. She is shocked to see the man, as it is a guy called Eddie
who she was introduced to, at Steve’s party.

She shares this with Al. She tells him, that Eddie works with Steve. Later Carrie is informed
that Eddie is basically clean, and is married. Carrie presumes that, it could be his wife who is the
murderer, as she might have found out about his affair. Al feels the killing is mob related Carrie
takes offence at this. Al decides to talk to Steve about it, but Carrie is totally against this idea. In
the end, she decides to talk to him. Later, a colleague of the victim is brought in for questioning,
she is asked about the victim’s boyfriend. It turns out she had met Eddie once. It also turns out
that the victim was unaware of the fact that Eddie was married; they were as a matter of fact
going to get engaged. She also tells the cops that a guy has come to meet the victim a few days
ago, it wasn’t Eddie, but a bald guy, and victim was visibly disturbed after meeting him.

Meanwhile, Carrie tells Steve the whole thing about Eddie and the murder. Steve is pissed
about the fact that Carrie suspects that he knows something, about the whole issue. Later at the
forensics, Carrie is informed that this might be a crime not of passion, but to make a point and to
send out a message to someone. She is also told by the forensic that there was something in the
bathtub water that is yet to be identified, and the results are being awaited. Later, Al is informed
by an officer from OCID by the name Sharon, that Eddie is affiliated with one Ray Mazola,
who the guys from organized crime have been tracking for years. He operates his business with
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restaurant supply companies as cover, for his organized crime. Carrie is informed of an address
Eddie was frequenting, according to his car GPS records. Sharon, Carrie and Al go to check out
the address. It’s a big storage space of some sort, which they break into. All they find inside are
lots of kitchenware.

It turns out all the stuff might be from the truck hijackings that Ray has been involved in.
Inside, Carrie sees the same crate of wine, she had seen at Steve’s party, gifted to him by Eddie.
She tells Al about it. They also find the dead body of Eddie stuffed inside a crate. Later, Carrie and
gang are informed by Al that OCID is taking over this investigation; much to everyone’s displea-
sure. Al in his office shows photographic evidence to Carrie that she has been under surveillance
by the OCID. Al questions Carrie about Steve, as he clearly suspects Steve of somehow being
involved in all of this. She tires her best to defend Steve to Al. She urges Al to prove to her that
Steve is a criminal. It is also discovered by the forensic, that Eddie was with the victim, but he
didn’t kill her, which can be ascertained from the evidence at hand. Later, Carrie tells Steve about
them being under surveillance, but he doesn’t think much of it.

She also tells him, how the authorities feel about him. He tells her that, the money to open the
restaurant came for a Cayman Island account of his, which is legitimate. She warns Steve that
the OCID will come after him, as they think he is complicit. She then asks him about Mazola,
and where he can be found. Later, based on Steve’s tip off Carrie goes to a restaurant where she
might find Mazola. Inside, the bartender says he has never heard of Mazola. Suddenly in front
of her she sees a piece of paper with a number scribbled on it, pinned to a board, and recollects
that it’s the same number that Steve’s cousin Tommy wrote on his palm in the party, when he
borrowed Steve’s pen. The bartender though is still as uncooperative as ever, so Carrie leaves,
having acquired at least some bit of information. Turns out, it’s the password to the security
alarm, at the victim’s house, as Carries suddenly seems to recollect. It turns out; Steve’s cousin
Tommy might have something to do with it, after all.

Later, at Steve’s restaurant Carrie tells Steve about the number and it being the pass code,
to the front door of the victim. Steve is incredulous, and doesn’t believe that Tommy can do
such a thing. She warns him not to tip Tommy off, as then she and Steve both would become
accessories. Steve leaves saying 'guess you shouldn’t have told me then’. Meanwhile, Al is trying
his best to get through to Carrie, but she is constantly avoiding him. He then instructs that
her cell phone location be found out, to find out where she is. Meanwhile, Carrie sees Steve go
somewhere and follows him, suspecting that there might be something amiss. She sees Steve
talking to Tommy at a distance. Meanwhile, Carrie’s phone location has been established. Al
heads for the location. Vega tells Al, about Steve secretly meeting Tommy; they all seem to be
heading for that very location. Al warns Carrie, by messaging her about it. Not knowing what else
to do Carrie reveals herself and urges Tommy to come to station with her and come clean. Steve
agrees with Carrie and urges Tommy to do what Carries is saying. Just then the OCID arrive at
the scene, and surround the area, seeing them Tommy panics and runs for it, he then takes out
a gun, seeing this OCID take him down, barely missing Steve and Carrie in the process. Later
Steve too is arrested, with Carrie standing by and looking on helplessly.

Later at the precinct, Carrie is absolutely distraught about how things turned out. Al repri-
mands her for not listening to him, and still involving herself in the case despite him telling her
otherwise. She reasons that she wanted to warn Steve regarding Tommy. And also reason with
Tommy to come in and talk to the cops. Al tells Carrie that he was trying to protect her from the
OCID as they are convinced she is dirty. She tells Al that Tommy confessed to her that he didn’t
kill the victim. Al is incredulous, and completely dismisses Tommy’s confession. Carrie still feels
the real killer is out there, and it wasn’t really Tommy. Al in the end relents, and gives her a
chance to prove her theory. Later, Carrie goes to the forensic, and reviews the evidence.

She is informed that the stuff found in the bath water of the victims bath tub is a solvent that
is used as a pesticide and adhesive. Suddenly Carrie is reminded of the uncooperative bartender
from earlier, she remembers him building a model plane, and using a liquid adhesive to join the
parts. Later, she pays the bar a visit, and finds the bartender there. The bartender pretends he
knows nothing, when questioned by Carrie, but is alarmed when told about the bath tub water.
He tires assaulting Carrie, but gets his ass kicked by her, with Al who is sitting nearby restraining
him. Later, Carrie meets up with Steve. She tells him, Tommy was innocent. The episode ends,
with Carrie bidding Steve a tearful goodbye.
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You Are Here

Season 1
Episode Number: 20
Season Episode: 20

e )
Originally aired: = Tuesday April 10, 2012
Writer: Jim Adler
Director: Jean de Segonzac
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Det. Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),

Michael Gaston (Det. Mike Costello), Kevin Rankin (Det. Roe Saun-
ders), Daya Vaidya (Det. Nina Inara), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)

Recurring Role: Britt Lower (Tanya Sitkowsky)

Guest Stars: Adam Trese (Jay Krause), Socorro Santiago (Lorena Cruz), Omar
Chagall (Mario Cruz), Charise Castro Smith (Audrey Cruz), Nicholas
Maccarone (Thom Muso), Nicholas Webber (Adam), Peter Bradbury
(Nicholas), Nick Lashaway (Max), Jennifer Joan Thompson (Sarah
Calvin), Brad Cassini (Uniform Cop)

Production Code: 120

Summary: Carrie and Al must understand the mind of a deranged conspiracy
theorist before setting off bombs in New York.

Carrie and the crew play computer games
while Krause obsesses to Al about his
Facebook password being changed. He is
worried the kid is in trouble again.

They are notified of a fire in a lab,
which has been shown to be incendiary
device. A young woman finds it and the
lab explodes. A box of stuff arrives and Al
says it is not his.

Al and Carrie are talking in his office
when he admits he has been out of his
relationship. The stuff in the box is from
their past. His breakup was OK and Car-
rie says she is there if he needs to talk.

Sinclair Labs rents space to private
clients and researchers. Audrey Cruise was the victim. Carrie uses her memory to get additional
information from the cop at the scene. Carrie speaks to Audrey’s family. The father is furious.
She was very serious about her work. The father says she was working so much she had a hard
time connecting. Carrie learns Audrey had a job. She said it was easy money a side project.

Carrie remembers the bomb device shared the same company logo insignia as the new com-
pany. The security cameras show Audrey got a note on her car before she went in and blew up
the lab. SPI is a defense contractor. Their projects are classified.

The crew visit the SPI and the manager in charge. He says a number of activist groups were
targeting Audrey’s work, even though Al can’t get the man to talk about what she was working
on. They raid the activist group. Carrie says they are liable for murder and arson. Carrie works
the activist computer network password to get access to the data about SBI attacks.

A map with targets was sent to the group. A man named Faraday sent the data There are
four more targets. In red is written 'They All Must Burn’. They can’t get prints and have a muddy
picture for the Faraday profile.

The head of the activist group says the man is external to their group and crazy. Carrie
investigates the Faraday targets. In the lab they giggle over the switched ground wire and the
trigger wire. A shared hotspot is where the IP address originates.
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The building manager, Max,lets them in when he sees the warrant. Before they can call Krause
they find a huge setup of media clips and drawings on the wall detailing Faraday’s thinking. They
find a map to the logic of all Faraday’s hits and bomb making materials. But Max flips a light
and the spark blows up the wall and the room.

Carrie sees a blinking red light. Carrie Wells stares into the abyss of the killer. But the surveil-
lance video shows Max leaving when Faraday should have been there. They are working together.
Al thinks Max is the inside man. They research his work history. They go to Max’s sister. She lets
him live in the basement while she manages work and two kids.

They talk about Faraday. He is an older man who has partially brainwashed her brother. He
was making files. The sister details how Max has wandered around and it is like he is still in
high school. Carrie looks at dated pictures of Faraday and asks if he was ever psychiatrically
diagnosed.

Carrie realizes Faraday has been dead for five years. Carries realizes Max is Faraday, assum-
ing his identity as a form of mental illness. Carrie hunts down Max at the next bomb spot. He
has another bomb in the bag. Faraday appears as a delusion and tries to talk Max into bombing
again. Carries argues that Audrey was innocent and she can help him.

The Faraday delusion yells at Max for writing the the warning Audrey and war her off. At the
critical point they get the bomb but Tanya and he exchange the ground wire and the trigger wire.

Care screams for the bomb guy to stop and takes his hands away. She pulls the other wire at
the pivotal second and the bomb does not go off. Carrie smirks at Al, who has Max in a vise. Al
grimaces at Carrie’s ways being right again. At the office, Tanya works on Facebook. They joke
about Spence isn’t building a bomb. Tanya finds hidden plans of anniversary surprise party for
Krause.

Al takes Carrie into his office, admits he lied about his breakup. Al's feelings about Carrie
were in particular the cause of it. His girlfriend packed up his stuff and left it in the station
pointedly. He could not let go. He does not look happy telling Carrie about this. Carrie is not
exactly displease by these disclosures.
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Endgame

Season 1
Episode Number: 21
Season Episode: 21

( \
Originally aired: = Tuesday May 01, 2012
Writer: John Robert Lennon, Jan Nash, Steven Maeda
Director: Ken Girotti
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Det. Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lt. Al Burns),

Michael Gaston (Det. Mike Costello), Kevin Rankin (Det. Roe Saun-
ders), Daya Vaidya (Det. Nina Inara), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)

Recurring Role: Britt Lower (Tanya Sitkowsky)

Guest Stars: James Urbaniak (Walter Morgan), Laurence Blum (Robert Jensen),
Stacey Yen (Mina), Ro Boddie (Pizza Guy), Jenny Mercein (Reporter),
Olli Haaskivi (Man), Caris Vujcec (CSU Investigator), Karl Bury (Detec-
tive Franks)

Production Code: 121

Summary: Walter Morgan unexpectedly turns up dead, Carrie must work hard to
locate his killer while in order to clear her name as she’s the prime
suspect.

The episode begins with, Walter offer-
ing Carrie some wine at the dinner ta-
ble. The two make small talk. Carrie asks
Walter what he knows about her sister’s
murder. He in return tells her to be pa-
tient. Walter says he wants Carrie to need
him, in return for him giving informa-
tion. Later when at home, Carrie receives
a call informing her that a body has been
found at a particular address that she
has heard before. The body is of a mid-
dle aged man with most of his head miss-
ing. Al too arrives at the scene. The ID
of the person reads Walter Morgan. Al is
shocked to see the ID. Meanwhile, Carrie
arrives at the scene and is briefed by Al. The two speculate as to who his killer might be.

Once near the body Carrie is reminded of the interactions, she has had with Walter Morgan.
Later, Joanne asks Carrie if she told Al about her personal interactions with Walter. Carrie it
turns out couldn’t because Al had told her to stop investigating Morgan. Carrie in the meanwhile
isn’t convinced the body is Walter’s and checks the body once again. Just as she sees the body
she is reminded of her meeting with Walter and the conversation they had. Carrie then confesses
to Joanne that she was at the warehouse the previous night and had met Morgan. Joanne asks
her if she has any idea who Jenson is. Carrie says she has a number and plans to do a reverse
lookup. She then tells Carrie that there is some DNA under Stanley’s fingernails, which just
might be of the killers. Carrie remembers Walter grabbing her hand; hence the she assumes that
the DNA might be hers.

Meanwhile, Carrie is worried to hear that the video footage from the warehouse is coming
in. The ballistic report for the shotgun shot is also coming in. Meanwhile, Carrie, Al and team
reach Walter's home and see an elaborate table set for dinner. The table is not cleaned up, and
his housekeeper comments that it's a bit odd for Walter not to clean up. Carrie is worried that
her prints are on many of the items on the table. The housekeeper meanwhile tells Al that he
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was having problems with a woman, whose name she doesn’t know. Carrie then pays Joanne a
visit. Joanne tells Carrie that it’s definitely Walter’s body, as the fingerprints check out. Joanne
asks Carrie about her DNA being found under Walter’s nails. Carrie tells Joanne that Walter is
framing her for his own murder. It also turns out that the shotgun which is the murder weapon
is Carrie’s very own shotgun.

She tells Joanne that she doesn’t know how Walter got his hands on her department issue
shotgun. Joanne tells Carrie to confess everything to Al. Carrie then says that she knows there
was a third person in the warehouse that night, and she has to find that person, if she is to prove
her innocence. Meanwhile, guys at the precinct are shocked to see Carrie in the video footage.
Meanwhile, Carrie recollects her conversation with Jenson. Meanwhile, Joanna tells Al about
Carrie thinking that Morgan is framing here for his own death. Joanne then tells Al about how
Carrie was investigating Morgan aggressively behind his back. Al is also disappointed in Joanne
for hiding all these things from him. Meanwhile, Carrie is making her investigations about Jenson
based on the cues and leads she has. She comes to a Pizza place; it’s from a payphone there that
Jenson had given her a call.

At the joint she bribes a guy working there and is informed by him that two guy use the
payphone. She then tells the guy to call her, the next time either of them uses it. Meanwhile, Al
is informed that the fingerprints on the body come up as a match with a sexual assault convict in
Utah, and Morgan at that time was trying a case in New York, hence at that time it was considered
a glitch. Al wants this looked into in detail. Meanwhile, Carrie sees Mamaroneck mentioned on a
van, and remembers Walter mentioning it during their dinner together. She checks out the van
closely and sees blood dripping from behind the van. Just then Al reaches the spot; Carrie points
their attention to the dripping blood. Inside the van they find Jenson’s dead body. She then tells
them that she didn’t kill Walter Morgan and that Jenson was her best chance to prove that.

It is later found out that Jenson was killed with the same shotgun as the one that killed
Morgan, their time of death was also around the same time. Al meanwhile doesn’t know what
to do, and tells Carrie that she should have come to him first. She is reminded of a poem by
Robert Frost that Walter quoted at dinner called 'miles to go before I sleep’. Carrie feels Walter
is not done and is surely still alive. Nina, Mike and Roe decide to help Carrie with the case as
they believe that she is innocent. Meanwhile, Carrie looks at the photographs of Jenson’s dead
body and how his hand is placed and figures out something. Meanwhile, Roe is told that the time
the cops had a confusion regarding Morgan’s fingerprints, it was found out that it belonged to
someone called John Fox, who was also Walter’s last client 25 years ago, before he left Kansas
and headed for NY.

But then Roe is shown on the computer that John Fox’s DMV photo which was found on the
system, when aged looks like Walter Morgan. Meanwhile, Carrie tells Al and Roe about the arms
of both Walter and Jenson being place at particular angles. When the angles are calculated, they
reveal a phone number. Carrie’s plan is then to convince Walter that he has succeeded and she
has been abandoned by her own people. It also turns out, John Fox traded places with Walter
Morgan 25 years ago. Meanwhile, the media is also informed that Carrie has been arrested;
with TV news channels reporting the same. Meanwhile, Carrie calls up the number that has
been found out, and Walter Morgan picks up the phone. Later Carrie proceeds to meet Morgan,
the team covertly watches over her so that Walter doesn’t suspect anything is amiss, or he will
disappear.

Al moves in after he gets a signal from Carrie that she sees him. Carrie in the meanwhile
comes face to face with Walter, who asks for her to surrender her weapon. She tells Morgan that
she would go anywhere with him, as she has no one else left in the city. Suddenly Morgan figures
out that he has been setup. He rushes Carrie out of there at a gunpoint. Al in the meanwhile,
loses them. Later John Fox confesses to Carrie that it was the real Walter Morgan who got killed
by him at the warehouse the other night. He had called him from Kansas City. Then, just as
John is about to shoot Carrie Al comes and from behind, and after a scuffle, John hangs from
the side of the bridge with Carrie holding on to him.

She then asks John about Rachel, but isn’t able to hold on to him, with John falling into the
river below. Later, Carrie is informed by Al that John’s body hasn’t been found yet. Carrie is also
informed about John’s and Walter’s deal of switching identities and how John paid him a stipend
for 25 years for the switch. Meanwhile, a phone is found on Jenson’s body and it has one missed
call. Carrie calls back the number and tells the person who picks up that the phone is evidence
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in the Walter Morgan case. The man on the other side says 'you mean detective Morgan, I have
been trying to reach him all morning’; its detective Franks from Syracuse PD who is on the other
side.

He tells Carrie that Morgan contacted them for a case, regarding the abduction and murder
of a young girl. The body was found 2 days ago, and the murdered too has been found with the
Syracuse PD talking to him. He then sends over the picture of the murderer. Carrie on seeing the
picture recognizes the man as the murderer of his sister.
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The Man in the Woods

Season 1
Episode Number: 22
Season Episode: 22

' )
Originally aired: = Tuesday May 08, 2012
Writer: Ed Redlich, John Belucci
Director: John David Coles
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lt. Al Burns), Michael

Gaston (Det. Mike Costello), Kevin Rankin (Det. Roe Saunders), Daya
Vaidya (Det. Nina Inara), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)

Recurring Role: Britt Lower (Tanya Sitkowsky)

Guest Stars: Elias Koteas (Sam Rhodes), Matt Servitto (Dan Marston), Stephen Lee
Anderson (Will), Tracy Sallows (Karen), Justin Adams (Young Sam),
J. Tucker Smith (David), Beatrice Miller (Katrina), Tina Benko (Lois),
Scott Barrow (Worker), Olivia Flynn (Young Carrie)

Production Code: 122

Sumimary: Carrie and Al travel to Syracuse to confront a suspect, when a murder
takes place that resembles that ofher sister’s.

The episode begins, with little girls cheer-
leading for a team playing football. Then
everything stop and they all stare at a
young girl, Carrie then comes back to the
present. Carrie tells Al that the first thing
she remembers after her sister’'s murder
is football. Carrie and Al then meet up
with Dan an old acquaintance of Carrie
and the cop handling the case; at the
crime scene. A 14 years old girl has been
murdered. The girl was hit on the back of
her head and then drowned under water.
The suspect Sam has been cooperative,
and hasn’t asked for any lawyer. Carrie
wants to meet Sam. Carrie then comes to the station and sees Sam, and recognizes him as her
sister’s murderer.

Later, Sam is interrogated by Dan, and tells him that he doesn’t know anything about the
14 year old girl Becky’s death. He then tells Dan that he was at the crime scene because he
got curious after hearing about the death on the radio. He also has an alibi. He was installing
security systems all over Columbia. Al is in the meanwhile is informed that Sam has been spotted
trespassing numerous crime scenes in the past few years. Meanwhile, Al tells Dan that he might
be able to help get Dan a promotion. All he has to do is let Carrie meet Sam. Al then tells Carrie
that she has 10 minutes to talk with Sam. Carrie enters and asks Sam if September 14th 1983
means anything to him. She then tells Sam how her sister Rachel was found dead on that day,
and also the state she was found in. Carrie tells Sam that he murdered her sister, and she wants
him to say it. Sam says 'no you didn’t’. Later, Dan tells Carrie that they have to let Sam go as the
trespassing charges against him have been dropped. Dan then tells Carrie to help him get Sam
for the Becky case.

Carrie and Dan then pay a visit to Becky’s parents to find out any details they can, which
shall help the case. Becky’s mother tells Carrie that there is one thing that is worth mentioning,
which is that Becky and her best friend Katrina had a fight a few moth before her death. Becky
had come home crying. All Becky had told her mother was that Katrina had betrayed her. Carrie,
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Al and Dan then head for Sam’s house. Inside Al finds a file with the newspaper cutouts of
various cases of murder. There are numerous such files with the crime scene photographs of
all the victims. Meanwhile, Dan comes in and informs Carrie and Al that Sam has disappeared.
Meanwhile, Carrie and Al bring in Joanne to help them with the case. Al and Carrie then head to
meet Katrina.

Carrie tells Al while waiting for Katrina in their vehicle that, new memories about the day
Rachel died are coming back to her. Once Katrina and her family are back, they are shown
Sam’s photograph, and don’t recognize him. Katrina then tells them that she had a fight with
Becky because Becky spoiled her name by talking about sexual things with others about Katrina.
Katrina claims none of them were true. She also tells them that Becky had an older guy who was
her boyfriend. She unfortunately doesn’'t know how the guy looks like and has never met him,
since the time he and Becky have been dating each other, which was but a few months ago. The
aim now is also to find the guy Becky was seeing. Later, Al and Carrie sit and chat at a deli.
Carrie goes to the loo, Sam creeps in behind her and sticks a gun to her back. Al after waiting
for Carrie goes looking for her outside, after he realizes she isn’t in the loo. He is then told by a
guy standing outside that, she took off with some guy in his car.

Meanwhile, Sam is taking Carrie somewhere with her hands restrained. Meanwhile, Al is
informed thanks to Carrie’s GPS as to where Carrie exactly is. Al realizes that Sam is taking
Carrie to the woods where Rachel was killed. Meanwhile, Sam takes Carrie to the spot where
Rachel was murdered in the woods. Sam suddenly tells Carrie to kneel down. He then tells her
that he was beginning to think he was safe. Sam tells her that he won’t be safe from Carrie until
she remembers everything. He then hands over his gun to her. Sam then tells Carrie that he
didn’t kill her sister; his only crime was being in the woods that day. He tells Carrie that he had
heard her and her sister scream in the woods that day, and reached the scene to investigate it.
Carrie then remembers what Sam is saying, to be true. With her memory revealing to her that
Sam on that day had come to the scene and had asked her about where her parents are, and if
she is alright.

She then remembers Sam picking her up in his lap and taking her out of there. Just then Al
and team arrive at the scene and tell Sam to go down on the ground. Carrie stops them from
harming Sam. He tells Carrie that he was a cop, and was going to take a bribe from a drug dealer
in the woods, and hence couldn’t approach the law about why he was there that day. He tells
Carrie that, on that particular day something snapped inside of him. He then started drinking
and in a year’s time left the police force. Meanwhile, Al and Carrie check into a motel. Later in
a room the two begin to make out. Later Joanne, Carrie and Al meet up with Sam in a diner, so
he too can help with the case. Joanne tells the others that, on Becky’s pants, was some sort of a
dust which Sam recognizes as the dust of granite.

Sam takes a few possible names of construction companies. Carrie then remembers that she
had seen the name of one of the companies on a construction sack at Katrina’s house. Carrie
feels that Becky was seeing Katrina’s step father till he got married to Katrina’s mother. Becky
probably felt betrayed because of this. Al and team then get to finding something definitive
against the step dad. They then find through cell phone records that he and Becky were in touch
with each other till the night Becky got killed. Al feels that’s evidence enough to at least pick him
up. At Katrina’s home they are informed by her mother that Katrina has just left with her step
father. Turns out they have gone camping. Carrie then figures out that the mother is lying and
the step father did not take Katrina for camping.

The mother then breaks down and admits that he has threatened to kill Katrina, if her mother
says anything. She doesn’'t know where he has taken her. Al in the meanwhile calls for an
amber alert. Carrie in the meanwhile figures out that Sadler the step father has a boat, which
is confirmed by Mrs. Sadler. She is then told by Mrs. Sadler where he keeps it. Sadler might be
trying to escape to Canada, by water. Meanwhile, Sadler is shown driving with the boat in tow to
the river. Al catches up with him and is shot at by Sadler, from his car window. He manages to
dodge the bullet, and a car chase ensues. Sadler manages to get away, but after sometime his
overturned boat with his abandoned car is seen by Al, Sam and Carrie.

Sadler seems to have escaped into the nearby woods, and Carrie, Sam and Al enter the woods
to pursue him. The three then spread out to search for him. Carrie then sees Katrina tied to a
pole and goes to rescue her. She is then attacked by Sadler from behind. Sam comes in, but is
shot by Sadler. Al comes in just then and wrestles Sadler to the ground, he somehow manages
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to recover, but just then Carrie shoots him. Sam meanwhile passes away from a bullet wound to
his heart. Later, Al tells Carrie that Sadler couldn’t have killed her sister, as he was in jail during
the time of her murder. Later, Al and Carrie go to Sam’s house to get the data he has collected
over a period of 28 years about the killer. Sam it turns out had photographed the same RV, at
number of crime scenes. She too remembers seeing it on the same day Rachel was murdered.
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Bigtime

Season 2
Episode Number: 23
Season Episode: 1

4 \
Originally aired: Sunday July 28, 2013
Writer: Ed Redlich, John Bellucci
Director: Jean de Segonzac
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Det. Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),
Dallas Roberts (Eliot Delson), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)
Guest Stars: John Scurti (Jack Paulson), James Hiroyuki Liao (Jay Lee), Tawny

Cypress (Cherie Rollins-Murray), Bianca Amato (Alison Sonnenland),
Jeremy Bobb (Treem), Andrew McCarthy (Ari Sonnenland), Danny
Johnson (ESU Leader), Damian Buzzerio (Captain), Ella Rubin (Lara
Sonnenland), J.J. Perez (Faison)

Sumimary: Al and Carrie are asked by the NYPD’s Major Crimes division to help
solve the kidnapping of a young girl. The case has the same M.O. as
two recent kidnappings, one of which resulted in the death of the child.

Carrie Wells and Al Burns are brought in
to help with a Major Crimes kidnapping
case by Eliot Delson, Special Deputy to
the Mayor of New York City. Eliot briefs
them on the case — a young girl named
Lara Sonnenland was kidnapped by un-
known assailants on her way to a local
soccer game — and Carrie and Al get to
work. They meet their new teammates,
Jay, a detective and tech whiz, and Mur-
ray, a former FBI agent turned NYPD de-
tective. Together, the team analyzes the
evidence and discovers that the kidnap-
pers M.O. fits two other kidnappings in

- the area that took place within the last
three years. Jack Paulson, a hostage negotiator, was involved with one of the other cases and
recognizes the kidnapper’s voice from a recording, so Carrie and Al bring him on the case as well.
They stage a sting in an attempt to nab the kidnappers and save Lara, but the kidnappers get
a tip that the cops are involved and never show up. Carrie delves into her memory and pieces
together clues that indicate Paulson was involved in the kidnapping plot. When they confront
him, he admits to framing the kidnappers from the previous two cases and using a second group
of hired thugs to kidnap Lara. Paulson wanted revenge after the kidnappers wrecked his career
and killed a child. Carrie convinces him to right his wrong and help them get Lara back, but
he’s wounded in a shootout with the hired kidnappers and ultimately dies. Luckily, Carrie and
Al arrive in time to save Lara and return her to her family.
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Incognito

Season 2
Episode Number: 24
Season Episode: 2

4 )
Originally aired: Sunday August 4, 2013
Writer: Spencer Hudnut
Director: Seith Mann
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Det. Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),

Dallas Roberts (Eliot Delson), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)

Recurring Role:  Sendhil Ramamurthy (Philip)

Guest Stars: William Jackson Harper (Arnold), Terry Serpico (Willis), Erin Cum-
mings (Eve), Michael Gibson (Heavy Guard), Kevin Prowse (Plain-
clothes Cop), Garrett Hendricks (Uniform 2), Suzy Jane Hunt (Annoyed
Customer), Charleigh E. Parker (Fashion Female Customer)

Summary: Carrie goes undercover with a team of bank robbers when The Major
Crimes Section gets a lead on the gang’s leader, a notorious thief who
doesn’t show his face.

Three masked delivery men unload three
boxes at the entrance of a bank. They
pull guns out of these boxes and walk
into the bank, then subdue the secu-
rity guards and proceed to rob the bank.
Three armed guards, protecting the vault,
are gassed as the bank manager gives the
robbers access to the vault. The robbers
remove their masks and fill their duffel
bags with money. One of the robbers is
Carrie Wells. The leader of the group tells
Carrie to kill a security guard because
he has seen their faces. Carrie points her

gun at the guard.

Two days earlier, at the NYPD Major Cases headquarters, Eliot Delson informs his team about
Kilborn, the man responsible for the bank heists that have put him at the top of the FBI's most
wanted list. Eliot announces that Kilborn’s next target will be in New York. Eve, a woman who is
a master of disguises, is set to arrive that day to help with the bank robbery.

Carrie and Al Burns arrest Eve at the bus station. Al tries to get Eve to open up about Kilborn
in return for a more lenient sentence on her other bank robberies. He is unsuccessful until Carrie

remembers seeing a note on a box Eve picked up at the bus station. Eve received instructions
to meet the other bank robbers at a hotel room. Carrie decides to go, as Eve, undercover to
the meeting. Kilborn doesn’t show up until after the robberies so her identity is safe until then.
Al warns her to be careful and gives her a barrette that acts as a microphone and GPS signal
transmitter.

Carrie meets the other crew at the hotel room that Kilborn told Eve about. When the team of
four is assembled, instructions are sent outlining their code names and boxes of supplies. Two
of the men are hardened criminals and the third is on his first robbery. They will receive further
information the next day.

At police headquarters, Jay Lee identifies the members of the burglar crew, each with a long
list of committed crimes. After finding out which bank is the target, Al plans to have only under-
cover cops in the bank at the time of the robbery. Jay has a photo of Kilborn’s thumb and he
runs it through software in an attempt to discover Kilborn’s identity.
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Before the heist, Carrie meets with Al and Dr. Joanne Webster. Joanne replaced the poisonous
gas with a less powerful gas that will simply knock out the guards. In a truck on the way to the
bank, one of the other robbers says no personal items and throws her barrette out of the truck.
Jay is able to track the burner cell phone that Carrie was given by Kilborn. The lead robber jams
all cell phone signals within a 50 foot radius, and he tells the crew that the target has been
switched. Jay is able to find the truck by tracking sudden cell phone loss in the city.

In the bank, Carrie triggers a carbon monoxide detector, knowing it will send a signal to police.
She leaves the security guard, who wasn’t quite knocked out, alive. The robbery team leaves the
bank with the stolen money. The lead robber asks if Carrie killed the guard, covering for her,
the inexperienced robber says that yes, Carrie blew his head off. Kilborn’s orders are to leave
everything but the money in the truck. Jay’s computer software finds who Kilborn is from the
thumb print. Kilborn is the inexperienced bank robber.

Just before the bank robbers are to meet Kilborn, the inexperienced robber informs the team
that they must give up their weapons first. Carrie pieces together that the inexperienced robber
is Kilborn. She draws her gun and tells the team that the inexperienced robber is a cop. Kilborn
says Carrie is a cop and shoots the other two robbers when they are distracted. Carrie shoots
twice but she only fires blanks. Kilborn keeps Carrie as a hostage but promises to Kkill her. Al
sneaks up on Kilborn and shoots him from a distance. Kilborn grabs Carrie to use as a human
shield and they duck behind a van. Carrie retrieves a knife from one of the dead robber’s boots
and stabs Kilborn in the leg. She wrestles the gun from him and thanks Al for showing up. The
police arrest a limping Kilborn. Al and Carrie walk away as they joke about dating.
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Day of the Jackie

Season 2
Episode Number: 25
Season Episode: 3

e N
Originally aired: Sunday August 11, 2013
Writer: Wendy Battles
Director: Paul Holahan
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Det. Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),
Dallas Roberts (Eliot Delson), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)
Guest Stars: Annika Boras (Jackie M.), Oliver Litondo (Dr. Okoro Dimka), James

Hiroyuki Liao (Jay Lee), Tawny Cypress (Cherie Rollins-Murray), Eric
L. Abrams (Emcee), Alanna Blair (MCS Detective), Lauren Blumfield
(Server), Jake Choi (Waiter), Donovan Christie Jr. (ESU), Robert Far-
rior (Scott), James Hindman (Robert), Kerry Vera Lea (Tess Jones),
Steven Ogg (Larry), Alexandra Rhodie (Female Customer), Emily Shaf-
fer (Andrea), Danielle Slavick (Nina)

Summary: Carrie and Al are unable to discern why a businessman was murdered
in his hotel room until it’'s discovered that his death was collateral
damage in a larger plot to assassinate a diplomat.

A businessman, Mr. Dirkson, checks into
his hotel room. A woman walks into his
hotel room and insists that she’s in the
right room. She invites Mr. Dirkson closer
to help with her zipper.

Carrie buys her usual espresso from
the coffee stand. The radio announces a
trivia contest with skydiving tickets as
the prize. Carrie calls in and answers cor-
rectly to win. Carrie tries to convince Al to
join her skydiving and conquer his fear of
heights.

Al and Carrie arrive up at the crime
scene where Mr. Dirkson’s body lies. Al
believes the murder is a botched robbery.
Al asks the hotel manager for surveillance
of the area but there are no cameras in the upscale tower section of the hotel. The manager urges
them to finish with the room so that he can rent it out again.

At the station, Jay Lee fills everyone in on the background checks he ran on the employees of
the hotel. The concierge, known for tipping off paparazzi to the whereabouts of celebrities, has
also let famous people in through a back door. A paparazzi was there for four and a half hours
shooting, but Jay is having trouble getting the photos.

In her lab, Joanne Webster shows Carrie that Dirkson was poisoned. The killer added strangle
wounds later to make it look like an act of passion. Carrie believes that it was a trained killer.

The woman who killed Dirkson checks into a cheap motel. The motel desk clerk has a former
police dog who barks at her, and she admits she has a joint in her bag.

Carrie and Al return to the crime scene. They realize that the blood was added to make it look
like a burglary so that the poison would not be noticed. Carrie wonders if there is something else
she didn’t spot, and notices something off with the amenities on the desk. Carrie pries open the
vent above the desk. Something is wedged in the duct, so she reaches in and pulls out a mobile
data extraction device, used to copy and send data. The device’s antenna was pointed upwards
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to the room above Dirkson’s. Dirkson came back to his room early and surprised the woman
planting the device.

Cherie searches Interpol for groups using both the poison Dirkson was killed with and the
data extraction device. She finds that the terrorist group Alpha Five have been known to use
both. Cherie says Dirkson just got in the way and he wasn’t the intended target.

Cherie and Al visit the woman, Mrs. Hall, who is staying in the room above where Mr. Dirkson
was murdered. She is signed in as a single guest but her room service charges indicate two
people have been staying there. Mrs. Hall admits that she is staying with Kevin Purcell, who
works press for the United Nations. He is covering a political activist from West Africa, Dr. Okoro
Dimka. Dimka is responsible for attempting to take down the diamond monopoly. This isn’t the
first time he has been targeted: last winter his house was bombed.

The motel desk clerk knocks on the murderer’s room door. He volunteers to help her smoke a
joint. He sees gun parts laid out on the bed and asks about them. The woman says it’s a toy for
her nephew and invites him in. On her computer screen is a website about Dr. Dimka.

Carrie, Al, and Eliot Delson inform Dimka that he is being tracked and his schedule is known
to the killer. They want him to cancel his public speaking dates but he refuses to leave in fear.
His speech at the university is to be viewed around the world. He won’t cancel but agrees to
change the location.

Jay Lee obtains all of the photos from those who entered the back door of the hotel. He
compares all of the photos to the Interpol database, and the killer turns out to be a woman, Jackie
M. She is very dangerous and Interpol considers her a person of interest in eight assassinations
in the last two years. All of her kills have been at everyday locations. Carrie and Al convince Eliot
to let them set up a sting at the restaurant that Dimka was supposed to be dining at.

The woman is preparing drugs and a wig in her hotel room. The desk clerk is dead with a
bullet hole through his forehead.

At the restaurant, everything is ready for Jackie to make an appearance. An old lady enters
who is suspicious of the wait staff. There are multiple complaints about the drinks and food. She
notices a waiter wearing a device inside his sleeve. The old woman is Jackie in disguise and she
makes a break for it. Carrie runs after her but the only entrance is blocked by an undercover
agent who Jackie poisons. Carrie, unable to get out of the restaurant, holds eye contact with
Jackie through a window.

Back at the station, Jay finds a wi-fi signal that leads to a cheap motel in Brooklyn. Carrie
and Al wait outside the motel for backup. Al and Carrie sing a song together before the SWAT
team gets there. The room is empty except for a note about an Internet cafe, but the room will be
searched further for any more information.

Al and Carrie fill Eliot in on the missing Jackie. Jay calls Carrie and informs her that the desk
clerk was found.

Jackie is on the roof of a building overlooking Central Park. She tests out her sniper rifle by
shooting a football in mid-air.

At the morgue, Carrie asks Joanne about any mysterious deaths that have come in. Carrie
hopes that she can find evidence of Jackie killing someone else. A man from an Internet cafe was
shot in the head the same way as the desk clerk. Al and Carrie visit the Internet cafe to look for
clues. They investigate the computer that Jackie used and find details about Dimka’s dressing
room. They think that Jackie is going to sneak in as a journalist.

Jay calls Carrie and says that the search of the motel room turned up nothing. It was so clean
that Carrie thinks that Jackie must have planted the note. Jackie never planned to disguise
herself as a journalist.

In the auditorium, Carrie believes that she has identified a potential spot for Jackie to place
her sniper rifle. Carrie ventures up to where Jackie is on the catwalk, passing a dead guard and
his K9 unit. Carrie tackles Jackie right before she pulls the trigger. Al rushes Dimka off the stage
to safety. Carrie and Jackie fistfight on the catwalk before Carrie pulls her gun out. Jackie says
it could all have been avoided if the undercover agents knew how to make a cappuccino. She
says it’s all about the preparation and sucks the poison out of her ring, dying instantly.

Outside of the building, Jackie’s body is taken away. A dog runs out of the building and up
to Al. Carrie recognizes it and says she saw it dead a half hour ago. Jackie gave the dog a small
coma-inducing amount of poison. She thinks Jackie may have also given herself a small amount.
Al radios this information in.
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The ambulance is later found with two dead paramedics and Jackie is missing. She is spotted
boarding a plane to Columbia. The plane has already landed though and Jackie is gone. Al
comforts Carrie with the fact that they saved Dimka’s life.
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Memory Kings

Season 2
Episode Number: 26
Season Episode: 4

4 )
Originally aired: Sunday August 18, 2013
Writer: Sam Montgomery
Director: Peter Werner
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Det. Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),
Dallas Roberts (Eliot Delson), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)
Guest Stars: James Hiroyuki Liao (Jay Lee), Tawny Cypress (Cherie Rollins-

Murray), Rafael Alejandro Benoit (Twenty-Something 1), Robert Bogue
(Todd Blasingame), Sherry Boone (Lena), Katina Corrao (Mary),
Yvonna Kopacz Wright (Alwyn Pierce), Stephen Kunken (Dale Parsons),
Jonathan David Martin (Faculty Host), Rob Morrison (Assistant), Mark
Nelson (Dr. Eugene Lustig), Ben Rosenblatt (Twenty-something 2), Er-
ica Sinner (Murder Victim), Phyllis Somerville (Ruth)

Sumimary: When the scientist who helped Carrie understand her memory abilities
is murdered, she must track down other people with the same skill in
the hopes that one of them holds the key to finding the killer.

Carrie arrives at the crime scene of a man
who fell off of a building. It is unsure
if he was pushed, fell or jumped. Carrie
is surprised to find that she recognizes
the man, Dr. Eugene Lustig. He is a neu-
rologist who Carrie decided to help. She
joined part of a research team that all had
memory power similar to Carrie. Eugene
is the reason that Carrie didn’t crack up
from thinking about all of her bad mem-
ories constantly.

Jay wonders if it could be a suicide
but Carrie doesn’t buy it since there is
. no suicide note. Carrie and Al investigate
“ the area that Lustig fell from. Carrie finds
clues that suggest the killer used a potted plant to knock Lustig out. Al thinks that maybe it is
just a suicide but Carrie says he is the most positive person she knows. He was the one who gave
her hope when she had none.

Back at the lab, Joanna tells Carrie about the top soil she found on his scalp and under his
shirt. Joanne supports Carrie’s thought that someone else forced Lustig over the balcony. Carrie
has a flashback to when she first met Lustig.

Jay tells Al that the ex-wife is clean but after digging around the university he finds one
professor with a grudge against Lustig. Alwyn Pierce, something of a protege to Lustig, was
difficult to get along with and accused Lustig of rigging her tenure vote against her.

Al and Carrie visit the university to interview Alwyn. She gets aggressive when Carrie says
that Lustig thought Alwyn had fraudulent research. When questioned about her whereabouts
during the murder she says she was sleeping, and they can ask her cat for proof. She rushes
away to teach a class.

Eliot Delson tells Al to ease up on Alwyn until they have some real proof. The university brings
a lot of money to the city so they don’t need the negative press. Jay reveals a security tape which
shows Alwyn stealing a box from the neurology lab. Eliot tells Al to not worry about the search
warrant and just go arrest Alwyn.
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When Cherie and Al show up to Alwyn’s apartment they find her dead body in a chair. There
was no struggle and whoever was the murderer was let in by Alwyn. Carrie finds the box that
Alwyn stole from Lustig’s office. It’s full of tapes from Lustig’s study of Carrie. Carrie has a
flashback of Lustig telling her how lucky she is to remember everything. She says that it is also
a curse because she can’t forget anything. He points out that the one thing she can’t remember
is the day her sister died. She is unable to remember because she had too much adrenaline in
her.

Jay finds that in the days following Alwyn’s burglary, she contacted three of the six memory
study participants. The other three were unable to be reached. Carrie wants to know why she
called. Al thinks if they can find what Alwyn was looking for on the tapes they can find the killer.

Al and Carrie meet up with one of the other study members, Dale. He was contacted by Alwyn
about joining a follow up study, probably to make a name for herself. Dale wasn't interested
though.

Cherie and Jay meet up with another study member Todd. He was in Norway at the time of
the murder and had Alwyn’s phone call the week before. He has no reason to hate Lustig or
Alwyn, he’s too busy making millions of dollars.

Carrie meets up with Ruth, another study participant. Ruth says that Alwyn asked her if
Lustig ever asked her to lie. He of course didn’t but she had to check because one of the group
members told a huge lie. She points Carrie in the direction of their group session. Lustig wanted
to see if they could influence each others recollections. Jay can’t find a tape for that session.
Carrie says whatever is on that tape is the reason Lustig and Alwyn were killed. She looks
behind her and sees a car about to run her down and she jumps out of the way just in the nick
of time.

While the police don’t have the tape, they do have Carrie. She sits down with Al and a stenog-
rapher and recalls the meeting. The team has a long book of things to research to find the one lie.
Carrie remembers a lot of art hanging in Alwyn’s apartment. Dale was the one who talked about
seeing a Vermeer painting. They find out that the painting was in Spain at the time so there is
no way he would have seen it. Whatever he did that day he is willing to kill to keep it secret. Jay
searches the database and finds that a university student was murdered that day and left in her
car.

Carrie confronts Dale about the day that he said he went to an art gallery. He changes his
story about what he said that day. He tells her to check the tape but it’s gone. Carrie shows Dale
the picture of the murdered girl but doesn’t say much more than the fact that he audited them.

Jay has found that there are another 8 possible victims that were killed after being audited
by Dale, therefore Dale may be the serial killer.

Carrie brings in Dale and questions him. She asks if he knows any of the murdered girls and
he says he doesn’'t know them. Carrie remembers that Lustig said that sometimes an extreme
amount of adrenaline can erase a memory, like what happened with her sister. Carrie believes
that this is what happened to Dale’s memories of murdering those girls. She tricks him into
admitting that it was raining the day Lustig died but it was a sunny day. Carrie says she is the
only one who understands him and asks how long he gets where he won’t have memories. He
says that sometimes he doesn’t have memories for a few days. He explains how it started with
him killing a cat. Killing people would give him brief periods of time from all of his memories.

After leaving the interrogation room Carrie has a flashback. She remembers Lustig saying that
nothing brings you into the present like a task, and he suggests she get back into police work.
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Past Tense

Season 2
Episode Number: 27
Season Episode: 5

e N
Originally aired: Sunday August 25, 2013
Writer: Barry Schindel
Director: Matt Earl Beesley
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Det. Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),
Dallas Roberts (Eliot Delson), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)
Guest Stars: Brian J. Smith (John Curtis), Marjan Neshat (Mrs. Sajadi), Opal Al-

ladin (Major Perkins), James Hiroyuki Liao (Jay Lee), Tawny Cypress
(Cherie Rollins-Murray), Rick Bolander (M.C.S. Tech), Bryan A. Mi-
randa (Afghani Driver), Emily Shaffer (Andrea Weston), Michael Shul-
man (Marshall Lebowitz), Eyas Younis (Bashir Sajadi)

Summary: Carrie and Al’s latest case, the murder of an Afghani cab driver, has the
potential to turn into a matter of national security when it’s discovered
that the victim was a government informant.

A man hides his eyes as he walks down
a street and enters a cab. The man and
the cab driver, Bashir Sajadi, are both
from Afghanistan. The man in the cab
says many men would still welcome the
chance to become a martyr and asks Sa-
jadi if that is true. The cabbie stares un-
comfortably and looks back to the road.

In a courtroom, Carrie uses her mem-
ory to prove to the jurors and the defen-
dant that she really can remember every-
thing. She is there to make sure the man
who tried to sell her drugs is put behind
bars.

Al greets Carrie at a crime scene,
where the Afghani cab driver has been
found dead. Eliot Delson says that Sajadi was an informant and this is why he was killed.
Nothing was taken from the cab and there is no blood inside. The murder took place in a busy
area and Carrie says that it must have been worth the risk to the killer.

Jay finds two suspected terrorists that were being investigated by the FBI. They both attend
the same mosque. The cabbie was fast forwarded through his green card application because
he agreed to infiltrate the mosque. Jay also finds that the cabbie received a phone call from a
burner phone minutes before he died. Carrie suggests that it was his wife who called and she
may know the killer.

Jay and Cherie meet with Sajadi’s wife. They tell her that Sajadi did nothing wrong and was
actually helping police. She doesn’t recognize either of the two terrorists. The wife says that the
number that called Sajadi before he died was his best friend Moe, a florist. Al asks why the
records for his phone are hidden. The florist says he called Sajadi because he wanted to watch
a football game with him. Moe says that during the phone call he heard the passenger speaking
Pashto, which is spoken by both of the terrorists.

Al gets upset at Eliot who won’t allow Al to arrest the two suspected terrorists even though
there is so much evidence that they murdered Sajadi. Eliot changes his mind but the federal
tactical team will make the arrests. The tactical team arrests the two terrorists while Carrie
watches from a live feed.
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Carrie visits Webster to see what she can learn from the autopsy. She asks about the injury
on Sajadi’s forehead. Carrie thinks that maybe Sajadi hit his head on the cab. She thinks that
whoever killed him had military experience to detain him like a soldier and check under his shirt
for explosives.

Jay tells Al that the bullet that killed Sajadi is from a gun that is standard issue for the US
army. Carrie looks back in her memory and sees that there is a veteran’s administration annex
near the crime scene. Carrie visits the office to look for information on the soldier who committed
the murder. Carrie gets information on a soldier, John, who fits the description and suffers from
PTSD. During his last deployment, he lost his best friend to a suicide bomber. John forgets the
event to survive but only by remembering can he heal.

Al and Carrie meet with John’s mother, who says that he was never the same after he came
back from the war. He was always on high alert and even pulled a gun on his mother. His
girlfriend left him because she couldn’t handle it. Al finds that John was heading downtown and
he was probably going to meet his mentor, Stanley.

Al brings a tactical team to Stanley’s apartment. Stanley says that John isn’t there but they
still enter his apartment. Al and Cherie tell Stanley that John is a murder suspect and they don’t
want anyone else to get hurt. Stanley shows the police where he keeps the weapons but John
has already took them. John is loose in the city with an assault rifle and semi automatic pistol.

Carrie examines footage of the suicide bomb that killed John’s friend in Afghanistan. She
suspects that John is having a traumatic episode where he thinks he is hunting the people who
murdered his friend. She thinks that John has been following Moe. Moe is delivering flowers to a
wedding and Carrie suspects that is where John is.

At the wedding John points his gun at Moe and orders him to the ground. The NYPD surround
the building as the wedding party runs out. They send a team with optics in to see what John
is doing. John holds a phone that is the detonator to explosives that have been attached to Moe.
John’s doctor is on the way but they don’t have time. John is trying to find answers but Moe
can’t help him.

Carrie goes into the building in the hopes that she can help John remember what happened
in Afghanistan. Carrie tells him what he sees and remember isn’'t true but she can help him
remember what really happened. She says that if he tries he can remember what really happened
but he is afraid. She asks why his friend left cover before the suicide bomber killed him. The
reason his friend left cover was to get one of the men out. He leaned into the car and looked
back at John. The reason he left cover was to get John a bottle of water. He breaks down and
surrenders to police.

Eliot tells Carrie that he is nominating her for a medal of valour. He could not be more proud
of her. Cherie says that she sees now that Carrie works by her own rules. Cherie has her own
rules too and pulls some strings to get green cards for Sajadi’s family. Al says that sometimes
our worst memories makes us forget our best ones.
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Line Up Or Shut Up

Season 2
Episode Number: 28
Season Episode: 6

e ™)
Originally aired: Sunday September 1, 2013
Writer: Sam Montgomery
Director: Peter Werner
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Det. Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),
Dallas Roberts (Eliot Delson), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)
Guest Stars: Angel L. Caban (Matias Nadal), Ben Becher (Stevie McKinnon), Dennis

Christopher (Lukas Emminger), Ilene Kristen (Naomi McKinnon), Juan
Castano (Francisco Nadal), Makenzie Leigh (Celine Emminger), Olivia
Birkelund (Gisele Emminger), Peter Allas (Nick Castigan), Tommy
Walker (Mullin), Vito D’Ambrosio (Marcus Krinkowski)

Summary: Carrie and Al investigate when a young man is found dead in a luxury
sports car he was delivering to a diplomat.

A man in a red Ferrari escapes from po-
lice in a high speed pursuit. The next day
he is found in his car dead from a gun-
shot.

Carrie arrives at the crime scene and

talks to Al about the details of the case.
They don’t know who the body belongs
to but the car is registered to a Swiss
diplomat, Lukas Emminger. Carrie sus-
M pects that the Swiss diplomat has some
@ | enemies.
# Jay says the victim’s fingerprints
aren’t in the system but it was involved
in a police chase the night before. Al and Carrie leave to visit Lukas Emminger. He is moving
back home soon but bought the car because it would make more sense financially to ship it
there rather than buying it in Switzerland. The car has yet to be delivered to him though so he
didn’t know it was involved in a crime. Carrie thinks someone is targeting him and they ask for
a list of his recent associates.

Al and Carrie visit the man who sold the car to Lukas. The owner, Castagan, says that the
murdered man is Ezekiel Nadal, one of his best delivery boys. They visit Ezekiel’'s father and
brother at their home. His father didn’'t even know he had another job. His brother Francisco
shows Carrie Ezekiel’s bedroom. She accidentally walks into Francisco’s room at first. She asks
how Francisco got the bruise on his face and he says he fell off his bike. Carrie asks some
questions and Francisco said that maybe Ezekiel owed someone some money.

Dr. Webster examines the body with Carrie. Whoever killed Ezekiel did it from up close and
knew it wasn’t Emminger. There are some markings on the body that Carrie saw in Francisco’s
room and Dr. Webster attributes it to a gang.

Jay, with the help of Carrie, searches for how the markings could be related to a gang. They
come across an illegal street racing club that the Nadal brothers must have been a part of. Carrie
suspects that the leader of the club, Stevie McKinnon, may be the one who Ezekiel owed money
to.

Carrie and Al visit Stevie’s house to question him about the Nadals. They tell him they know
he is the leader of the street racing club and he runs out of the house with his car keys. He gets
into his car and drives away. After a high speed chase they manage to catch Stevie.
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Back at the station, Al questions Stevie. He admits to beating up Francisco because he owed
Stevie money. Ezekiel was supposed to pay for him but never showed up. Ezekiel was supposed
to give Stevie $10,000. Stevie says that if he had to get money fast he would bring a car to a chop
shop. Al researches local garages and finds Juno’s garage may be the one he is looking for.

Al and Carrie go to the garage and question the owner. At first she denies ever seeing Ezekiel
but when they threaten her with jail time she admits to seeing him. He tried to sell her the Ferrari
but she wouldn’t take it because it was fake.

Cherie goes with Al to the place that sold Emminger his car. When they get there it is closed
and the inside is a mess. They find Castagan’s body in the trunk of a car.

Back at the station, Jay finds evidence about texts that Ezekiel received and maps of the cars
at Castagan’s. The cars are switched around but it looks like they are never sold and it is a
front for something else. Jay finds that Emminger has bought three cars from Castagan. Cherie
suggests that Al talk to Eliot before questioning Emminger and other car buyers about the cars.
Eliot wants them to approach certain members on the list with discretion.

Carrie and Al question Lukas about the other cars. Al tells Lukas that the people he gave the
cars to may be angry after finding out the cars are fake. He says he didn’t know they were fake
and hasn’t talked to Castagan lately. They head to Krinkowski Ltd. to see if they know anything
about importing cars. While there, Carrie sees a man who was a delivery man for Castagan. They
run after him and end up in a warehouse full of cars. The man they are chasing opens fire and
Al keeps him busy while Carrie sneaks up on him.

They bring him into the station for questioning along with the importer. They both blame each
other for the murder of Castagan. Carrie wants to find out who killed Ezekiel even though Eliot
is worried about what they will do that may offend Lukas. The embassy has already requested a
letter of apology from the NYPD.

Dr. Webster finds some vaccines in Ezekiel’s blood that suggests he was going to visit a tropical
country. Carrie remembers seeing Lukas’ daughter had a bandage on her arm from what looks
like a vaccine shot. She offers to bring the letter to Lukas herself.

After she hands the letter to Lukas, Carrie asks why he didn’t mention that his oldest daughter
was in love with Ezekiel. Lukas refuses to let them talk to his daughter Celine but she volunteers
to talk. They were supposed to leave for India the night he was murdered. Lukas’ wife says that
Lukas was the one who sent the text. Celine accuses Lukas of murdering Ezekiel and leaves the
room. Lukas was just trying to protect his family. Celine threatens to slash her wrists with a knife
but Carrie talks her out of it. Al arrests Lukas but he isn’t worried because he has diplomatic
immunity.

At the station Eliot tells Carrie that while Lukas did have diplomatic immunity, the ambas-
sador can waive that privilege at any time. So Lukas will stand trial for murder.

Carrie and Al reminisce about old memories together on the way to the subway.
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Maps and Legends

Season 2
Episode Number: 29
Season Episode: 7

( N
Originally aired: Sunday September 8, 2013
Writer: Quinton Peeples
Director: Jean de Segonzac
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Det. Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),
Dallas Roberts (Eliot Delson), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)
Guest Stars: James Hiroyuki Liao (Jay Lee), Tawny Cypress (Cherie Rollins-

Murray), Ito Aghayere (Reporter), Jeremy Beck (John Patton), Sean
Cullen (Gordon Frost), Lou Martini Jr. (Building Manager), Kathleen
Wise (Female Neighbor)

Sumimary: The murder of an urban explorer leads Carrie and Al to search for the
killer, but discover clues the victim was following to locate a treasure
hidden under the streets of New York.

In a library, a strangely dressed man
coughs as he reads from his book. He
looks to be sleeping when the librarian
checks on him. The librarian finds that
he is dead and has a strange rash on his
face.

Carrie enters the crime scene with
Joanne and Al, all of them wearing haz-
mat suits. They aren’t sure what the man
is infected with yet but it looks like he es-
caped from a hospital. Joanne finds that
he isn’t contagious and died from being in
contact with material used for building a
bomb. To die from this he must have been
in contact with a large amount of C4 for
an extended amount of time. Eliot doesn’t want anyone to panic so tells them to keep the bomb
part secret.

The police search his apartment with the help of the building manager but his room mate is
missing. Some gas masks and climbing equipment are found in his closet but no trace of the
hazardous material is found. Cherie finds tickets for trespassing.

Jay finds that the dead man and his room mate have many videos on Youtube of them urban
exploring. He says it will take some time to track the guy who records and uploads the videos
but Al says he knows a quicker way.

Jay and Al pay a visit to the man who issued the tickets. He gives them a name, Alex, and
says he even gave one of them a citation yesterday. He gives them the location and Al and Carrie
wait there for the man. They see a hole open in the ground and Alex climbs out of it. They bring
him in for questioning. Alex didn’t even know that John was dead and claims he doesn’t know
how he came into contact with C4. The room mate, Harold, was more into treasure hunting so
he suggests they talk to him. Carrie takes a turn with questioning Alex. She asks if he wants to
come on board as a special advisor.

Jay says that the dead man was reading books about Alfred Goodrose, a painter. He was
reading the man’s diary in the library. It claims he knows the location of a huge amount of gold
that was supposedly cursed. There has been an explosion from C4 outside the city. It was just a
small amount though so Jay thinks the missing room mate was there to test a small amount of
his C4.
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Eliot is sorry but Homeland Security is taking over their case. They believe they are part of
a terrorist group that will bomb a gas and energy meeting that is happening in town. Eliot says
they are no longer on the case but Carrie says they can still investigate the homicide portion of
the case. Eliot allows them to continue on it. Jay is glad they are still on the case because he has
some GPS information about an area they should check out.

Alex prepares them for the exploration. Jay tracks them by GPS from the station. Al is a little
apprehensive but wants to prove he can keep up with them. As they go deeper Jay loses track of
them. The three explorers reach a room and take their back packs off. Carrie points out a closed
door that she remembers seeing open in a video. She goes in and it is there that they find the
materials for making the bombs. The room is rigged to explode and they run out of it right before
there is an explosion. Alex’s leg is hurt and they need to get him out but he can’t walk. Carrie
says she knows the way out and leaves by herself.

The police know there was an explosion underground but they don’t know where Carrie and
Al are. While Carrie makes her way back the batteries in her flashlight die. Al makes a splint
for Alex’s leg when an alarm starts going off. Poisonous hydrogen sulfide is seeping in from
somewhere so Al helps Alex to leave the area. Carrie uses her memory to guide her through the
dark. Meanwhile Al and Alex struggle through the tunnels.

Carrie makes it out of the tunnel and sends the transit officer down after them. The officer
finds Al and Alex soon after. Joanne calls Carrie and says the guy they are looking for died in
the test blast a week ago. Carrie doesn’t see how that’s possible because the transit officer said
he gave a ticket out to him yesterday. Carrie suspects that the transit officer is the one making
the bombs and goes back into the tunnels. She can’t get through because of the gas though
and turns back. Cherie says they have discovered the transit officer was shipped ingredients for
constructing bombs. The officer locks Al and Alex into a side tunnel with a train heading for
them. They manage to make it out and meet Carrie at the nearest subway terminal.

Alex says that the last map he made was in the financial sector because that’s where John
thought the treasure was. Carrie remembers an entry in Goodrose’s journal that points them to
the mural on the library ceiling that was also painted by Goodrose. Jay finds the location where
the painting was created. Al and Carrie explore the nearest station and Alex points them in the
direction of the old station from the 20’s. They hear drilling and head on. Al shoots one of the
transit officers who has a gun. The lead man sets off the explosives and says they can either save
the people or chase him, but not both. Al and Carrie manage to dismantle all of the bombs but
lose the transit officer. When he turns up top side he is surrounded by police officers.

Al takes Carrie through a secret tunnel that leads to a beautiful view of the city. They remi-
nisce about old days and enjoy the view.
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Till Death

Season 2
Episode Number: 30
Season Episode: 8

( \
Originally aired: Friday April 4, 2014
Writer: Barry Schindel
Director: Jan Eliasberg
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Det. Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),
Dallas Roberts (Eliot Delson), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)
Guest Stars: Brette Taylor (Eileen Brenner), Elizabeth Alderfer (Lauren), Jeremy

Shamos (The Dean), Larry Pine (Guest Star), Otto Sanchez (Guest
Star), James Hiroyuki Liao (Jay Lee), Tawny Cypress (Cherie Rollins-
Murray), Ryan Barry (Harvey Reynolds), Jimmy Palumbo (ESU Cap-
tain),

Summary: Carrie and Al pose as a married couple to catch a killer who may
be responsible for a series of unsolved homicides that Al investigated
years earlier.

Several years ago, NYC was in an uproar
because of a Central Park rape that be-
came sensationalized in the media. There
was a massive manhunt at the time and it
eventually resulted in the arrest of Shawn
Manning. He was an African-American
kid from a poor neighborhood so his
odds of beating the charges were low al-
ready. But he somehow got lucky with his
lawyer. The lawyer, Christopher Jenkins,
never doubted his innocence and even af-
ter Manning was convicted he still tried
to pursue the case.

Now fast forwards 12 years and Jenkins is gunned down in a parking lot.

He was giving a speech at the Bar Association and was on his way to fetching his car so he
could give a co-worker a ride home when someone murdered him and then made it appear like a
robbery. Carrie however was lucky to see through the ploy.

She noticed that the car door was open and yet Jenkins was a few feet away. Almost as if he
willing turned his back on someone he trusted. So naturally Carrie and Al looked into Jenkins’
acquaintances and although they were suspicious of one of clerks — they couldn’t find any
reason why someone would want to harm the lawyer.

He was a nice guy and though he once put Al through the ringer on the stand — neither of
them held any harsh feelings. Al explained that Jenkins was just that type of man. As in no one
could think of holding something against him.

But the Manning case popped up during their investigation. Apparently, Manning was quietly
released after 12 years and he was seen in the exact same area that Jenkins was killed in.

They questioned Manning’s Aunt Rhonda and she did her best to put Al and Carrie off. She
told them that her nephew never did anything wrong to begin with and that out of everyone he
would be the least likely person to kill Jenkins. No, she claimed Manning was trying to get his
life back on track so he wouldn’t do something stupid enough to jeopardize it.

And yet he ran.

Carrie and Al spotted him trying to hide from them and when they called out his name — he
ran. He also escaped them by jumping onto a passing garbage truck for a free ride.
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Running did not help his case and neither did the idiotic visit he paid to his rape victim.
Manning went to see her in person and she freaked out and attempted to run away. Attempted
because she ended up falling while running and she bruised her face when he planted it into the
concrete.

The victim had blacked out her whole experience in the park and she was never able to identify
Manning, but he had confessed and so she always assumed he was her attacker. Yet there’s a
small chance he wasn’t.

Jay found evidence that Manning and Jenkins were still in contact and the team thinks it
might be because Manning found the real culprit behind the rape.

Manning and Jenkins both went to a low down pizza joint named Gino’s prior to Jenkins’s
death. And phone records do show that Manning kept calling the place. Now, at first the guys
thought he was just trying to get a job, but no one pushes that hard to work as a busboy. So Jay
dung deeper and he picked up on something odd — every time Manny called the restaurant, the
restaurant would then call someone named Robert Cordero or Bobby as he likes to be called!

Bobby had a rap sheet with at least two rapes on it.

Once Carrie and Al found out about Bobby, they started to suspect he could have been the
real guy in the Central Park case. His MO matches up and all they all have to do is place Bobby
near the crime.

The victim couldn’t help though she did remember the sound of cop on a horse afterwards.
They followed this lead and caught up with the officer that was first to respond. And despite the
years passing, the officer can clearly recall Bobby acting shifty around the park, but then why
isn’t that in her file?

The whole file she gave her superiors was whitewashed of any real evidence and the team
lucked out on questioning Bobby about 12 years ago seeing as he was recently killed — by the
same gun that killed Jenkins.

All these bodies piling up aren’t looking good for the division. And Gordon Frost, the man
primed to become the next Manhattan DA, is definitely adding on pressure. He’s demanding
Elliot find Manning and arrest already.

Nevertheless they couldn’t do anything without any real evidence and when they did find some
— it all pointed to Mr. Frost. He was in charge on Manning’s case and he buried evidence in order
to get a conviction. When Manning and Jenkins started digging again then it alerted Frost.

He has a bright future ahead of him and he didn’t want to risk Manning’s situation harming
that. So after attaining things like DNA and the murder weapon — an arrest was made!

Frost will go to jail for the double homicide and as for Manning. His name will be cleared, but
what does really mean after everything he’s been through!

And as for Al and Carrie. They're fighting over location because Al wants to move to the city
and Carrie was hoping he would stay in Brooklyn! Is just it because it’s closer to her?
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Flesh and Blood

Season 2
Episode Number: 31
Season Episode: 9

( \
Originally aired: Friday April 11, 2014
Writer: Bill Chais
Director: Jean de Segonzac
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Det. Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),
Dallas Roberts (Eliot Delson), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)
Guest Stars: Annika Boras (Jackie M.), Alex Dreier (son David), Anthony Grasso

(Jimmy Cerrano), Colin Donnell (Steve Stone), Erik Gersovitz
(Teenager), Gene Young (Bellman), Jamie Jackson (Victor), Jeff Talbott
(Bruce Conti), Jeremy S. Holm (Sergei), Kareem Savinon (Guy), Karen
Aldridge (Ellen Hewitt), Rachel Leslie (Nurse), Rachel Stern (Tara Cer-
rano), Robert John Gomes (Marshal), Stewart J. Zully (Muscat), Victor
Slezak (Robert Thorne), Victoria Mack (Petra)

Summary: A blast from the past leads Carrie to investigate the seemingly ordinary
death of a science teacher in a hospital. Soon, however, Carrie and Al
are following a lead to a dangerous sleeper cell and a mysterious plot
to uncover.

Jackie is back! She risked her cover in
order to return and murder a man in
his hospital bed. If she had left him
alone then Ted Muscat could have died
naturally from his illness, but she went
through the trouble of tracking him so
Ted must be more than he seems.

Ted was a high school science teacher.
One that loved by both faculty and his
student which is really rare. However
Carrie had a hunch about him and she
made Jay dig deeper into Ted’s back
ground.

Besides being a seemingly good teacher, Ted was also Alpha Five operative. At least he used
to be before he was reported dead three years ago along with several of his compadres. And just
when Carrie started to delve deeper into Jackie’s motive — a second operative showed up dead.

So it looks like Jackie is working her way through all the Alpha Five operatives that allegedly
died.

Yet the operatives weren't as retired as they had the world believing. Jay found highly detailed
plans at one of the operatives’ homes. As in they were building a nuclear bomb.

Later on at the office, ICA approached Carrie and Al. They've been on to the idea that the
Alpha Fives were planning a terrorist attack and they've also figured out that Jackie must have
been a part of their team. But that doesn’t actually explain why Jackie would be killing off her
partners and Carrie even says so.

The agents believe that Jackie is merely the cleaner. She’s making sure they’re plans don’t
leak to the outside world before the bomb is ready. And to do so she had to start killing off the
underlings.

Carrie on the other hand doubts the agents’ theories. She feels like they're too quick to un-
derestimate Jackie and she was right. They baited Jackie with one of the Alpha Five members
they had under surveillance and still she managed to get to the operative despite the fact he was
heavily guarded.
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Jackie would have gotten away if it wasn’t for Carrie. Carrie broke protocol to go into the
building and it was good thing too. Because she was the only one that could have and in fact did
spot Jackie’s trademark ring.

But just because Carried was the one to bring in doesn’t mean her team has first dibs. The
ICA agents quickly and quite aggressively quarantined their terrorist. Jackie was there’s and they
weren't so big on sharing. However Carrie was able to convince them to give her a minute alone
with Jackie seeing as they were old friends and all.

Jackie wanted to tell her something but she couldn’t do it with the agents watching so she
ended up lucky that she had taken precautions earlier. Without Carrie’s knowledge, Jackie had
hid things in her memory.

And Carrie did find out what Jackie wanted her to, but she also found out more than what the
other woman was planning on. Jackie needs Carrie’s help to get something to the elusive Viktor,
a top Alpha Five operative, and in return Jackie will get her son back.

She had a little boy with Viktor and when she tried to leave Alpha Five he took her son. Jackie
thought he had died with his father three years ago when the plane they were supposed to be
on crashed, but once she learned the truth — she began hunting her old cronies. Though she
denies Kkilling at least one of them. What she did do was get the key the bomb needs.

Without it Viktor can’t set off the bomb.

Jackie would have told this to the ICA agents, but she knows that Viktor has men inside of
the organization. And Jay even found proof that the agents on her case weren’t randomly picked
— they specially volunteered for the job.

Jay also found out that the bomb and plan behind it were originally thought up by American
forces working with Al Qaeda. They were hoping to set off a war in the Middle East and somehow
Viktor got mixed up with that.

Carrie and Al attempted to get Jackie away from the ICA agents yet they were caught and
Jackie was once again taken into custody. But the agents didn’t take her to their official office.
Unless Viktor’s secret headquarters suddenly became the stopping point for ICA.

Jackie handed the USB with the key for the bomb and Viktor had gallantly given her a few
seconds to see her son alive and healthy.

She saw her son before she handed over the USB and so when Viktor found out that he'd
been set up — it was too late to hurt Jackie further. The task force came in one big sweep. They
picked up the ICA agents along with Viktor. And though Jackie will most likely spend the rest of
her life in prison — she now knows that her son is safe from his father.
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Manhunt

Season 2
Episode Number: 32
Season Episode: 10

( N
Originally aired: Friday April 18, 2014
Writer: Barry M. Schkolnick
Director: David Platt
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Det. Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Det. Al Burns),
Dallas Roberts (Eliot Delson), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)
Guest Stars: Ito Aghayere (Reporter Kristine Johnson), Sean J. Cullen (Gordon

Frost), Adriane Lenox (Aunt Rhonda), Alison Anne Daniels (Hotel
Guest), Ben Cole (Mark Brennan), Chris Chalk (Shaun Manning),
Franky G (Bobby Cordero), Jennifer Cody (Paula White), Joanna
Rhinehart (Eve Watson), José Baez (Pizza Cook Gino), Purva Bedi
(Rupa Nair), Raul Casso (Chris Jenkins), Sepideh Moafi (Lisa Mar-
tinez), Stephen Reich (Man)

Summary: The murder of a prominent lawyer leads Carrie and Al to reexamine
a rape case that moved Manhattan thirteen years before. Soon, they
realize that the case was not as clear cut as it was portrayed by the
media, and an innocent man may have been wrongfully convicted.

Tonight’s episode of "Unforgettable” be-
gins with a flashback of a woman rid-
ing her bike through Central Park after
dark. She sees something and screams
out loud and then the screen goes black.

Present — A man finishes giving a
speech at the bar association and heads
to his car in the parking garage. He real-
izes he isn’t alone and calls out "hello?”

Carrie and Al are with a real estate
agent looking at a potential apartment for
Al. He asked Carrie to come along with
him because real estate brokers will take
him more seriously if they think he is in a relationship.

Carrie and Al receive a phone call and head to the parking garage. Chris Jenkins, the lawyer
that was giving a speech last night was shot to death. His watch and his wallet is missing, but
they are certain that he wasn’t mugged. He was shot in the back, which means he trusted the
shooter, and most likely knew them.

They head to Jenkin’s office and speak to his co-worker Lisa Martinez. She can’t imagine
one of his clients would want to harm him, because he "gave his all to them.” Carrie thinks it
is strange that Chris’s glasses case were lying on his desk since he was wearing them when
he was murdered. They trace the glasses they found at the scene of the crime and realize they
belong to one of the law students at Chris’s practice named Mark. Mark insists that he didn’t
kill Chris Jenkins, but he found him in the parking garage dead. He dropped his glasses when
he was taking a file out of Jenkin’s briefcase because he wanted to protect him. The file he took
was a defamation lawsuit. A man named Simpkins was suing him because he got his daughter’s
murder case thrown out. Simpkins has an alibi though-he was at an AA meeting.

Chris Jenkins’ received a phone call from a payphone the day of his death. They are able
to get a photo from street cameras of the man on the payphone. They recognize him as Shawn
Manning, the "Millenium Monster.” Shawn was charged in 2000 for raping a woman in Central
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Park. Chris Jenkins represented Shawn, but they lost the case and he spent 12 years in prison.
Al and Carrie pay Shawn’s Aunt Rhonda a visit, and Rhonda says that Shawn was with her all
night last night and he has no ”ill will” against Chris.

As they are leaving Shawn’s Aunt’s house they find him hiding in the back yard. They chase
him down an alley and out into the street. He jumps on the back of a garbage truck and rides
away before they can catch him.

Carrie and Al head back to the office to regroup. They run Chris Jenkins’ credit cards and
realize he bought lunch at Gino’s Pizzeria. And, they had seen a Gino’s menu in Shawn’s bedroom
at Rhonda’s house. They head to the pizzeria and question the owner. He says that Shawn
Manning came in once to eat lunch with Chris Jenkins. They check out the pizzeria’s phone
records and realize that Shawn called the pizzeria six times from Rhonda’s house. And every
time he called the pizzeria, someone at the pizzeria turned around and called the cell phone of
a man named Robert Cordero. They trace Cordero’s name and find out that he is a convicted
rapist.

Al questions Cordero and accuses him of raping the Doctor in 2000 in Central Park. He thinks
that Shawn knows Cordero is the real rapist and is trying to clear his name. Cordero denies all
allegations.

Shawn Manning pays the Doctor, Rupa that he is accused of raping in Central Park a visit.
When she sees him waiting in her yard for him she turns around and runs and falls in the
sidewalk. Shawn runs away and Carrie and the ambulance arrives at the scene. They don’t think
Shawn had any intention of hurting her, thy think he visited her to see if she could help him
clear his name.

District Attorney Frost pressures them to wrap the case up. He is concerned there is going to
be pandemonium in NYC soon if they don’t catch the rapist and the killer.

Carrie and Al put their heads together and try to figure out how they can clear Shawn’s name
and find Chris Jenkins’ killer. Carrie heads to Rupa’s office and tries to talk to her about the night
that she was raped. He explains to Rupa that she thinks that Shawn is innocent. She shows her
a picture of Cordero but Rupa says she doesn’t remember anything from that night. As Carrie is
leaving Rupa says that all she remembers from the raping was a “clicking metal sound.” Carrie
heads back to the station with pretty much nothing. Carrie is talking to Al about how she went
jogging through the park at night before. She has an epiphany and remembers that when she
went jogging at night she seen a cop on a horse policing the park and the horses hooves made a
clicking sound.

Carrie and Al meet with the mounted officer that was first on the scene during the Central
Park raping back in 2000. They show her a picture of Cordero and she claims that he was
definitely in the park the night Rupa was murdered. They head to the restaurant to pick up
Cordero but someone else got to him first, they find his body shot to death in the dumpster.
Carrie recognizes valet ticket stubs right next to the dumpster, they are the same valet ticket
stubs that Attorney Frost had on his car. She and Al put their head together with Elliot and
realize that Gordon Frost closed the books on Manning’s rape case years ago without substantial
evidence. Now that Manning is free and trying to clear his name, it is going to be exposed he
didn’t follow due process on Rupa’s rape. So, he killed Cordero and Jenkins to keep it under
wraps that he sent an innocent man to jail for 12 years.

Elliot holds a press conference and arrest DA Gordon Frost on live television, and reveals that
they found the murder weapon in his car. Shawn Manning’s name is cleared and Rupa even
offers him a job at her practice.
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East of Islip

Season 2
Episode Number: 33
Season Episode: 11

e N
Originally aired: Friday April 25, 2014
Writer: Spencer Hudnut
Director: Rick Bota
Show Stars: Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster), Dallas Roberts (Deputy Eliot Delson),

Tawny Cypress (Cherie Rollins-Murray), James Hiroyuki Liao (Jay
Lee), Poppy Montgomery (Det. Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lieut. Al
Burns)

Guest Stars: Wayne Knight (Dr. Theodore Blumer), Brian McElhaney (Officer Tim
Gosling), John Bedford Lloyd (George Mortimer), Aaron Dean Eisen-
berg (Travis Harrington), Joseph Sikora (Bob)

Summary: A murdered body washes ashore in the Hamptons, and Carrie and
Al’'s boss offers them a "paid vacation” in his beautiful Southampton
cottage, in order to help local law enforcement find the killer, who may
or may not be related to a previous serial Killer.

Al and Carrie weren’'t even afforded the
right amount of time to get excited about
a paid vacation before they realized Elliot
was actually sending them to the Hamp-
tons just so they can go hunt a serial
killer.

The serial killer has been KkKilling
women in the area for the past decade
and he usually leaves their body to wash
up on shore (as part of the theatrics).
So when a young woman by the name
of Shelly Branigan washed on the private
iz beach of a very wealthy and political in-

it ; ; 3 e : fluential man. Namely the Mayor — Elliot
ended up getting called and he in turn put his best people on the case.

Although he happened to mention the case and where Carrie and Al were going in front of the
whole squad room. A decision he’s bound to regret seeing as his agents were soon joined by Jo,
Jay, and Cherie.

They wanted to enjoy Elliot’s “small” weekend cabin as well, but Al did at least make sure they
worked for this vacation. Jo, herself, thought she’d be a huge asset to a small town coroner’s
office and surprisingly Dr. Bloom wasn’t the country bumpkin she was presuming he would be.

He was more than capable of handling Shelly’s autopsy on his own. After all he did perform
autopsies for two of the serial kKiller’s victims. And that's why he’s knows for sure that Shelly
wasn't killed by the residential serial killer — the MOs don’t match!

Shelly was stabbed by a small knife while other victims were all strangled. But Shelly’s killer
wasn't trying pass her off as a victim of a serial killer. Dr. Bloom and Jo found evidence of
someone trying to tie her to an anchor. If she had stayed tied then her body might have never
been discovered.

She was though and now the mystery is who would killer a blue collar girl from Islip in the
wealthier parts of the Hamptons?

The answer to the location is easy — Shelly had found work nearby. Her father was in an
accident and her family was struggling financially. So she found a job as a waitress. Carrie and
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Al had thought that maybe her possible second job was what put her in harm’s way but they
were wrong seeing as there isn’t a job in the world that would have paid her a one shot of 10
grand.

So they then looked into Shelly’s lifestyle — just to see if she was as squeaky clean as her
parents thought she was. And apparently she wasn’t. Because what was a townie doing at one
of the premier social events of the year?

Shelly had attended the engagement party of Travis Harrington and Lizzy Mortimer. Lizzy was
the pampered daughter of the George Mortimer. He was old money and his family was more
connected than the Bushes.

The specially ordered food at the party was the last thing Shelly had eaten so Carrie and Al
know she died sometime after leaving or worst — during the party. However when they questioned
the Mortimers and the wait staff; everyone claims to have never have even seen Shelly.

The elite had closed ranks around the Mortimers and the only person that verified Shelly was
at the party happened to be a small town kid that managed to befriend some of them. The kid
knows what'’s it’s like to be on the outside looking in and he felt he shared that with Shelly. She
was out of place at the party. And the team soon guessed why.

They thought dear old George might have acted improperly towards her. He dioes have the
reputation of mistreating the local girls. So they got a search warrant and the Luminol picked on
a blood bath.

Mr. Mortimor lawyered up fast and that could have been the end to finding out what really
happened to Shelly. Yet the Mortimers’ maid had evidence that someone else could have wanted
to kill Shelly. And this new suspect was also at the very same party.

Well, it’s not like the impending groom was going to miss his own engagement party.

Travis was the poor kid that did good. He was going to be joining his future father-in-law’s
firm and he was marrying into money. But Shelly was from his past. The one he desperately tried
to hide from his new family.

Travis and Shelly used to date back when they were teenagers. That relationship changed once
they became pregnant. Shelly had the baby and her parents adopted him after Travis signed off
on his parental rights.

So there was the big dirty little secret and the team thought that Travis tried to hide it by any
means necessary. Though they stopped suspecting him when he quickly confessed to the crime.
It sounds weird but it really wasn’t.

Travis had all the reasons in the world to deny deny deny and yet he caved in — as if he was
protecting someone. And if he was willing to go to jail for this person then the only way they
could truly catch the killer was set to a trap using Travis.

They released him claiming they messed up the paperwork and he went straight to his brother.
The brother was the one that killed Shelly. He didn’t want that girl ruining his brother’s chances
of a better life. When the harsh truth is that was never a part of Shelly’s plan — she just wanted
closure and not the money.

The team busted both brothers. Although Travis wasn't the one wielding a clam knife as
weapon; he still attempted to cover up a crime. So it was because of his brother, the one that
worked to put him through a great school, that ended up costing Travis everything.

And as for the team — they enjoyed the rest of their impromptu vacation. Jo even started a
summer flirtation with Dr. Bloom.
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Omega Hour

Season 2
Episode Number: 34
Season Episode: 12

( )
Originally aired: Friday May 2, 2014
Writer: Wendy Battles
Director: Oz Scott
Show Stars: Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster), Dallas Roberts (Deputy Eliot Delson),

Tawny Cypress (Cherie Rollins-Murray), James Hiroyuki Liao (Jay
Lee), Poppy Montgomery (Det. Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lieut. Al
Burns)

Guest Stars: Aaron Dean Eisenberg (Travis Harrington), Brian McElhaney (Officer
Tim Gosling), John Bedford Lloyd (George Mortimer), Wayne Knight
(Dr. Theodore Blumer), Kelly AuCoin (Alpha Omega), lan Bedford
(George), Natt Brian (Mayoral Aid), Nick Chinlund (Ron Skinner),
Frankie Faison (Mayor), Britt Lower (Tanya Sitkowski), Kevin Mc-
Cormick (Andrew), Brian Roland (Pastry Chef), Marnye Young (Snobby
Woman)

Summary: When Carrie and Elliott are attending a party sponsored by the mayor,
a group of criminals seizes control of the building, and demand a hefty
ransom. It is up to Carrie to thwart their plans by playing from the Die
Hard book.

The Mayor went out of his way to in-
vite Major Crimes to a grand opening
and then when they arrived — he ignored
them. Al who could have been counted on
to come up with smart remarks had to
miss out on the whole getting snubbed.
He couldn’t make it because he was in
a wedding party and so it’'s just Carrie,
Joanne and Eliot in attendance for the
Mayor’s showboating.

And that scenario left Carrie without
any protection. Not that she’s in any real
danger per se, but she does have to deal
with an aggressive flirter by the name of Ron Skinner. It’s his party so it would have been rude
for Carrie to dismiss him. He’s opening up a suite of luxury apartments (unlike the city has ever
seen before) and even wanted to show Carrie one of the suites... preferably alone. Though he
quickly changed his mind on that front when he realized she was a joint package with Joanne.

As for Eliot, he was leaving with the Mayor when Skinner decided to join them. He had had
enough of his own importance by then and wasn’t in the mood to stick around.

All three men were in the elevator when it suddenly stopped. However it wasn’t maintenance
error like the Mayor and Eliot were hoping. Unbeknownst to them, they had been hijacked.

Their elevator dropped several feet and then abruptly stopped. Apparently, the masterminds
behind the rigging didn’t want to kill anyone unless they have to — they're end game is all about
money. So holding both the Mayor and one of New York’s wealthiest pedestrians came in handy
for them and Eliot being there as well was just the topping.

Eliot was able to connect the criminals straight to the NYPD and Al was told about the ransom
demand the same time as the captives.
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The man in charge is calling himself Alpha Omega. He was also at the party although his
latest tactics show that he wasn’t looking to buy. It seems he was actually surveying the place
for any weaknesses and guess what — he didn’t find any!

Skinner built the most technological advanced apartment building in world, but he let his
paranoia get away from him. He was a security nut and he was deadly serious about it. As in he
turned his apartment building into a fortress. The police can’t get in and the bad guys know that
for a fact.

They had taken the last stranglers at the party as hostages thinking it would all be easy. They
broke into the building’s security system and can monitor everything that’s going on outside. Yet
they overlooked what could happen from the inside.

Joanne and Carrie were still at the party when the gunmen showed up. They were smart
enough to take cover before getting noticed.

Carrie wants to help take down the gunmen, much to Al's dismay, and keep her boss safe
during the process. But it’s hard to do that while also protecting Joanne. Jo, for all her spunk,
isn’t cut out for field work and luckily she knows it. Joanne left Carrie by herself in order to take
care of one of the injured hostages. She didn’t want to drag the other woman down.

And Carrie used her newfound position to actively pursue the gunmen. She managed to take
out several of them though her main concern was with what’s going on in the elevator.

Skinner can’t raise the money to ransom himself or his friends and the Mayor’s office hasn’t
exactly been forthcoming. So this definitely doesn’t look good for everyone trapped inside the
building. Omega is threatening to begin killing people if they don’t get their desired hundred
million.

Jay thought that was rare for them. These people are known as cyber hackers. They would
normally go for robbing a back rather than use hostages.

Carrie was able to work through the men guarding the hostages. And with some assistance
from Joanne, they were able to release the last partygoers. Joanne went with them to make sure
they would be alright leaving the building, but sadly for Carrie; she couldn’t finish of the rest of
the criminals on her own.

The men that were left guarding the surveillance cameras are the most dangerous. They and
their leader were in charge of that elevator and they have the power of killing 3 people with a
mere press of a button. And when Carrie tried to take them; they ended up catching her instead.

Al has a plan to help the remaining the hostages though he wanted to hear from Carrie first.
He needed to reassure himself that she was alright before he risked everything by turning off the
power grind. In turning the power off — the backup breaks should kick in without interference.

But Al's plan still won’t work in their favor. Carrie escaped her captors in time to give Al the
go ahead and only then, when everything was said and done, did she realize that there was a
bomb in the building.

Omega tied a bomb to the elevator wires and when the power shut down he then activated it.

Carrie quickly helped the men inside before the bomb could do away with all of them. Though,
as it turns out, the bomb didn’t do any damage. Why? Because it was never met to.

Omega didn’t want the money. He did all of this to get the city to turn the power grind off like
Jay had suspected earlier. Al had dismissed that theory, but Carrie convinced him Omega’s plan
was much larger than just robbing banks. Omega wanted to crash the market.

He was a cyber-terrorist and thought the he could start the world anew by removing the
ugliness of greed. It was crazy scheme and he hadn’t counted on either Al or Carrie.

They went back into the building and found Omega hiding in Skinner’s panic room. And they
managed to disable him before he could release his deadly computer virus onto the world.

What did they get in return for such acts of bravery — a speech! The Mayor gave them a thank
you speech. When, really, whatever happened to a key to the city?

88



Unforgettable Episode Guide

Reunion

Season 2
Episode Number: 35
Season Episode: 13

4 \
Originally aired: Friday May 9, 2014
Writer: Bill Chais, John Bellucci
Director: Paul Holahan
Show Stars: Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster), Dallas Roberts (Deputy Eliot Delson),

Tawny Cypress (Cherie Rollins-Murray), James Hiroyuki Liao (Jay
Lee), Poppy Montgomery (Det. Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lieut. Al
Burns)

Guest Stars: Pico Alexander (Jason), Chris Bowers (Lance Burke), Fiona Choi
(Camryn), Brian Edwards (CSU Worker), David Furr (Hank Bron-
ski), Josh Green (Teen Hank Bronski), Emily Kratter (Young Melanie),
Katherine McNamara (Young Carrie Wells), Raffaella Meloni (Mean
Girl 1), Olivia Nikkanen (Vicky Lanister), Lyrica Okano (Didi), Jessica
Phillips (Melanie Lambert), Stephen Scott Scarpulla (Teen Joey Falk),
Bradley Stryker (Greg Zoller), Michael Tisdale (Carl Benson), David L.
Townsend (Joey Falk), Amy Wilson (Bella Florence), Mick Angel (Jock)

Summary: Carrie’s high school reunion is suddenly cut short when an alum
shows up dead. Carrie has to remember back 22 years to understand
the events that led to this crime.

Al and Carrie attend one of the most
dreaded events known to man — her 20th
anniversary high school reunion. Former
classmates’ attentions are swiftly taken
off of "scary Carrie” when one of their
own, Tommy, is found murdered on the
bathroom floor. She was “scary Carrie”
because her memory talents were not ap-
preciated back then.

Pieces slowly come together thanks to
Carrie’s inner memory lane. Earlier in
the evening, Tommy had been showing
them pictures on his phone. However, af-
ter scrolling through his cell, Carrie no-
tices one picture is missing. It’s a photo
of a denim jacket with a distinct pattern on the back. The jacket was worn by another classmate
named Vickie the night she was killed in a hit and run when they were in the 10th grade, some
22 years ago.

A week ago, Tommy, who was having money troubles, had been babbling on and on about
Vickie and something big happening on the night of their reunion to fellow classmate Hank.
Carrie figures there must be a connection there. She questions a former high school teacher
who had a thing for young girls especially Vickie. He mentions Vickie used to complain about a
student who kept following her.

That trail leads them to yet another classmate named Greg who knows his way around a
claw hammer, the same weapon used to bludgeon Tommy. Greg and Carrie were in algebra class
together until he flunked out. Greg is innocent. He was just another outsider who genuinely
cared about Vickie. For the record, the outsiders were students such as Carrie who did not fit in
with the cool crowd.
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It turns out that denim jacket is a very important piece to the puzzle. It had actually belonged
to Hank who had two girls, Melanie and Bella, fighting over him and his jacket at the time. Carrie
has a theory, a correct theory. Melanie, who is now a rich woman, killed Vickie in a fit of rage
and a case of mistaken identity all those many years ago. She believed the girl walking along the
road wearing said jacket was her rival Bella, but it was Vickie. If only Vickie hadn’t taken the
jacket. Tommy, who was a witness to the crime, was unfortunately a loose end that needed to be
tied. He was right. Something major did happen the night of their class reunion.
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New Hundred

Season 3
Episode Number: 36
Season Episode: 1

( )
Originally aired: Sunday June 29, 2014
Writer: Ed Decter, Spencer Hudnut
Director: Peter Werner
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lt. Al Burns), Dallas

Roberts (Eliot Delson), James Hiroyuki Liao (Jay Lee), Tawny Cypress
(Cherie Rollins-Murray), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)

Guest Stars: Anna Ladner (Ms Smith), Arianda Fernandez (Sophie), Barthelemy
Atsin (Grant), Boris Kodjoe (Agent Simms), Caitlyn Mclaughlin
(Younger Sister), Caleb McLaughlin (Older Brother), Cristina Lippo-
lis (Olivia Black), Faye Kingslee (Padma Jindal), Hani Avital (Kristen
Greene), Kaliswa Brewster (Jenny), Les J.N. Mau (Indonesian Man), Li
Jun Li (Natalie Lee), Michael Carlsen (Bennie), Nicholas Calhoun (Evan
Rusk), Phil Oddo (Street Vendor), William Andrew Brewer (Detective),
Ari Barkan (Abe the Thug)

Summary: Carrie and Al work alongside the secret service as they investigate a
murder. As the investigation continues it soon becomes apparent they
have come across a counterfeiting ring run by an assasin.

We see Carrie working at a cash counter-
feiting operation overseeing it and coach-
ing them on how to make the bills seem
more real. Two thugs come in and says
they caught a guy trying to crash the
party. They pull off his hood — it's Al.
Later, Carrie sits in the diner watching
two kids play concentration. The little
girl is losing and her brother is hassling
her. When he looks away, Carrie flips two
cards over to help her.

She tells Joanne there’s no harm in
using her perfect memory to help people.
Joanne rattles off of a list of tormented
younger sisters that turned out fine. She
asks Carrie if she’s ovulating and that’s why she’s acting maternal. She says she bets Al wants
kids and wants to know why they're not together. Joanne says the tension between them is hot.

Just then, Carrie gets a call from Al and says something is going on with Jay. She has to
leave but first flips over some more cards for the girl and tells Joanne she’s not ovulating. Jay
thanks Al for helping and says his sister’s ex hubby is missing. He missed his custody visitation
with their dog. He says Natalie is freaked and she’s normally level headed. Carrie is mad that Al
brought her down to use her super powers on a dog.

Natalie shows them a pic of of Evan and says he’s never late to see Derek Jeter — their
Pomeranian. She says the divorce was rough on him and his personality has shifted and he’s
trying to win her back. He was a struggling musician who is trying to work real jobs. They come
into his room and Al sees the guy is face down on the bed. He’s dead. He calls in the gun shot
crime to CSU while Natalie screams in anguish.

Jay comforts his sister. Al tells Carrie the body is still warm so the shooting was recent. She
sniffs lingerie and says it hasn’t been worn and thinks this was staged. Al says a guy checks into
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a hotel this time of day for just one reason. Al thinks it may have been a hooker that killed him.
Natalie tells Al that Evan was free to do what he wanted since they were divorced but says this
doesn’t make sense.

She says he liked girls and they liked him back but he never needed to pay for it plus he was
broke. Carrie asks her about the lanyard Evan wore. She says it was her lanyard that she gave
him to keep his work ID in and he wore it to prove to her that he was responsible. Carries comes
to see Joanne and she says that her leg is hurting from yoga training she’s been doing to help
her bed skills. Carrie is icked out.

Joanne say the bullet is a unique caliber from an Indonesian assault pistol. Carrie thinks to
the crime scene and says she saw a flag from Indonesia outside the hotel. Joanne is impressed,
then annoyed with her recall. The round was armor piercing but it came from nowhere near
them. They agree a prostitute wouldn’t be carrying ammo like that.

Jay studies evidence on his ex brother-in-law. He says the hotel room shows no one else
entered with a key card except Evan. There is one entrance with no security camera at the back.
He mentions the Indonesian angle and Jay is working his credit card. Eliot tells Carrie and Al
that he’s giving the case away because of Jay’s involvement. He says he’ll make sure the 17th
keeps it a priority and says it has to go to homicide.

Carrie says that Evan’s truck might be missing and his ID and keys are gone. Francis comes
in and says he has the truck. He introduces himself to Carrie — Special Agent Frank Simms —
Secret Service. He says he’s taking over the case. He says it’s part of an ongoing counterfeiting
investigation. Eliot says he’s going to make a call but then caves in.

Frank says that it takes three holy grails of counterfeiting the new hundred dollar bills. Carrie
rattles them all off and says she read his memo. He says it’s nice that someone reads and
remembers them but Al says not to be flattered since she’s a freak of nature. Frank says no one
has ever stolen one sheet of US currency paper until today.

He shows them some photos and Carrie says she thinks the magnetic ink is also missing.
Frank won't tell them about the security numbers and he says he’s done with inter-departmental
cooperation until Carrie says she has an Indonesian link but won’t tell him until he agrees to
keep them involved. She walks out with his hundred and Al tells him he’ll never see his money
again. Frank nods in agreement.

Cherie tells Al that Jay found a credit card charge on Evan’s record at the Indonesian place.
She says she heard that Frank was the biggest player in DC since Clinton. Al thanks her and
goes. Al finds Frank has plopped down at a desk. Jennie Shaw, a graphic designer, the paper
maker. Kristin Green, engraver. Olivia Waring, electroplater. Sophie Dietrich, the printer. They're
all art school grads and they all went off the grid four months ago.

Al says they seem too hot to be killers. Frank says Carrie looks too hot to be a cop and asks
about her. Al tells him to focus. He asks why those four girls would do this and Frank says if
they pull it off, it's worth $72 million. They think one of the girls was with Evan at the Indonesian
restaurant. Franks meets her there and she points out the camera. She tells him to give up his
evidence.

Frank says he thinks there’s an Indonesian trader heading to the US to buy the money from
the girls. She says that means they're on a ticking clock. Jay looks at security footage and Carrie
tells Al that she brought him sesame balls. He says to give them to her new partner Frank. They
can’t see the girl’s face and Carrie says she saw that tattoo in the hotel today.

Carrie says she didn’t see her face. She thinks hard and says she did see it. She’s with a group
called Red Door that kills people and does bad things. Carrie picks her out from an Interpol file.
Her name is Padma and she’s an assassin. They wonder what she needs counterfeit money for.
Jay says he has an idea. He works on it.

Frank is aggravated with their lack of progress. Jay says he made contact by posing as some-
one with serial numbers. Frank says even a blind pig finds a truffle and Al is pissed off. Frank
says they give them a legit serial number to get the nibble. Carrie says she’ll go undercover and
both Al and Frank say no. She says they have only one shot.

Frank says she’s brilliant but she doesn’t have enough time to learn enough about counter-
feiting to go undercover. She tells Frank to try her. He does and she’s a super quick study. She
catches all the fakes and then he gives her something harder to discern. She snags that one as
a fake too. He asks if she took an online memory course and she says she’s a walking online
memory course.
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She tells him she has HSAMS. He’s heard of it. She tells him to give her a date and she rattles
off facts. He tells her she has some mind on her and she says it can be a curse. She says she
thinks she’s ready and he agrees. She leaves and he realizes she again took his legit $100s. Al
rants to Frank about putting Carrie in danger and he says they will need her alive to get the rest.

Frank wants to put a tracking device on her but Al says no way. He says the Mata Hari group
and Indonesians will sniff it out. They argue over jurisdiction and who will handle what. Natalie
talks to Jay and he says they will find out who did it. Natalie says she was going to tell him she
wanted him back but then it’s too late.

Jay tells her that Evan called him and told him that he was working hard to be the man she
wanted him to be. He says that he was hopeful. Natalie tells him to promise to get the guy and
he does. Frank, Al and Carrie go over the plans. She says she’ll give one serial number and then
arrange the payment and future meeting. The two guys argue over who she should call if she
needs help.

She heads off to the meet. They watch her on security cams. Her tracker is offline and Al isn’t
surprised. Carrie gets on the elevator and recognizes a guy from the hotel. There are several of
them and they throw a bag on her hand, break her cell phone and shove her into a van. Al, Frank
and Jay go running in a panic. Jay says they have something. There was a van that left right
after she was taken.

Al and Frank are angry and blaming each other. Carrie is driven away in the back of the van
but can see some stuff through the window from where she worked her hood off. She notices the
sound of planes, feel of a rough road, sounds of ships. Then she’s at a warehouse and is pulled
out. She’s taken into the counterfeiting operation and Padma tanks her hood off.

She says this is not a nice way to start a relationship and says it may affect her Yelp review.
They tells Padma she had no trackers on her, but a tail and Carrie says it’'s her associate. She
says to untie her then she’ll give the serial number. She asks for a pen and writes it on Padma’s
hand. She scrawls it there. They go to check it. It clears on the database.

Carrie says they should have more faith and Padma says to give her all the numbers now and
live. Carrie says to wire the money and she’ll get them because she knows they have to have the
numbers to operate. Padma says if the serial numbers don’t show up when they wire it, she’ll kill
her. She asks to use a phone to call her associate to transfer the numbers to the website they
want.

She tells Carrie to hurry. She calls Al and they tell Jay to run a trace. She calls Roy and asks
if Carl or Darcy are around or he can talk. She says he needs to send the items they talk about
in an hour or else. She says then he’ll be on a first class flight to Barbados. They hang up the
phone on her and Padma crushes it. She gave some codes to help. Al says that Carl was his old
partner and Darcy was his wife.

They live in a specific part of town and then they realize where she is in Bayonne. There are 28
minutes left and Padma says she hopes her associate comes through. Carrie says he always does.
Padma checks the proofs and then puts a gun to one of her partners. She says she thought the
Red Door helps oppressors instead of oppressing people. Carrie tells her that killing the woman
won'’t help her cause.

They drive to figure out why he called her Roy. He says there was a fireman who lived near him
that had a corrugated garage. He sends Jay to look for that. They roll up and he tells everyone to
fan out and look for the garage. Padma tells them to get rid of the girls. Carrie says she wouldn’t
since she needs them to fix it. She says the bills need fixing so they don’t get pinched. She asks
where the dryer is.

Padma tells the girls to do what she says and Carries says, let's get to work. Al spots an
orange corrugated door. He walks towards it and says Roy was a Syracuse fan who painted his
door orange. He says to track his phone and Jay says to wait for backup. He leaves his phone
under a dumpster, throws away his gun and badge and pounds on the door.

Carrie gives directions on adding pumice to the dryer and says any Seven Eleven clerk could
tell. They haul Al in and unbag him. Padma says to kill him but Carrie says it’s her associate
Roy. Padma slaps the guy who let him follow him. Carrie says she’s not better than the people
that murdered her parents. Carrie recalls some from the sheet that Frank has and rattles off
5,000 numbers.

She tells Padma to lower her weapons and she’ll give her 3,000 more numbers. Frank and the
backup are at the warehouse. She hands over thousands more when they hear that an alarm
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has been breached. They collect up Carrie and the others and she says there was a card on the
board that’s missing now. She rattles it off and says it’s a tail number.

Sure enough, Padma pulls up on a motorcycle to a hangar. She’s got cash and a cache of
weapons. The Indonesian buyer is there and he trades her the weapons for the cash. She plans
to use them against the US. The guy doesn’t care about her cause so she shoots him too. The
police are there then and a gun battle breaks out. Carrie shoots Padma in the shoulder and they
have them all subdued.

Carrie tells Frank that New York gets her first and Frank says there are enough charges to
go around. They tell Jay to have at her and he arrests her for Evan’s murder. Carrie asks Frank
what happens to all the money and he starts a money bonfire. He asks her to dinner and hands
over his number. She says he’s confident that he’ll call and he says she owes him money.

She asks if he trusts her and he says not one bit. Al comes over and says he doesn’t like
Frank. Then he tells her that he’s a player. Al tells Carrie to throw the stack she swiped from the
hangar onto the bonfire or he’ll arrest her. She asks if he wants to run off to Mexico but then
tosses it into the blaze.
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The Combination

Season 3
Episode Number: 37
Season Episode: 2

4 \
Originally aired: Sunday July 6, 2014
Writer: Daniele Nathanson
Director: Matt Earl Beesley
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lt. Al Burns), Dallas

Roberts (Eliot Delson), James Hiroyuki Liao (Jay Lee), Tawny Cypress
(Cherie Rollins-Murray), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)

Guest Stars: Afrim Gjonbalaj (Edon), Bryan Terrell Clark (Andre "AK” Kade),
Christopher Algieri (Johnny), Danielle Guldin (Megi), Desmin Borges
(Troy), Ethan Herschenfeld (Agim), George Hampe (Dustin), Janelle
Gaeta (Dafina), Jason Cerbone (Bobby), Lemuel H. Carter II (Mr.
Parker), Michael Cullen (Casey), Taylor Gildersleeve (Anna)

Summary: Carrie and Al investigate when a championship boxer is beaten to
death. The probe focuses on the victim’s past and why he apparently
didn’t defend himself or fight his attacker.

There’s a street parade going on to cele-
brate Italian culture. A guy staggers up,
all bruised and battered and collapses
in the street. He’s recognized as a boxer
— Johnny D’Amato and people shout for
someone to call 911. Carrie is in a record
shop looking at vinyl and some guy is
talking about a Red Hot Chili Peppers al-
bum. She says the set list isn’t what he
says. She says the encore was a cover of
Dr Funkenstein. She says he’s selling a
bona fide mix tape.

She gets a call from Al and heads to
the crime scene. Johnny is dead. She
3 says she was a fan and just sat near him
at the Pacquiao. He’s not happy to hear she went with Francis, the secret service guy. He says
the guy sure is in New York a lot. Cherie is there and says that Johnny wasn’t attacked there
and CSU couldn’t track the blood trail. Moses, his driver, says he picked up him up and dropped
him at 1 pm on Broadway.

Carrie looks around and comes back to Al. She says word on the street is that he threw his
last fight and Al says that would piss off a lot of people. Al tells Jay to put a list together of all
the people that would have been hurt by him throwing the fight. Jay points out Audre Kade, a
rapper, that manages Johnny. Eliot introduces Al to "AK” and says he’s donated $100k to finding
Johnny’s killer. Ak had been managing Johnny for two years and had been a fan for even longer.

Before him, he just had his crusty trainer Casey. Eliot says AK doesn’t know anything. Al asks
if he threw a fight but AK says Johnny wouldn’t have ever done that. He says he was in Vegas
for business over the weekend and came to them as soon as he touched down. Al says Eliot is
in some odd circles. Eliot tells him to go find out who killed Johnny because everyone is on his
ass about it. Joanne tells Al she’s a huge boxing fan and used to be the on call doc for boxing
matches.

She says COD was asphyxiation from his own blood. She says he had too many breaks to
figure anything out. She says he was hit with something but she’s not sure what — she says
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maybe a metal pipe because the injuries are circular. She says she’ll know more once she boils
his head. Cherie tells AL she spoke to Johnny’s mom and she had no clue about him throwing
a fight because she didn’t watch them. He has an older brother Bobby who hasn’t turned up —
he’s a day laborer. His dad is in Hawaii and isn’t in touch.

Jay says AK is in the minority and says social media all thinks Johnny took a dive. Jay shows
him fight footage and tells him to look at round three. He just drops his gloves and Al says it
doesn’t look like the Johnny he knows. Jay and Al digress into a boxing debate and they wonder
if he took a dive, who would have gotten him to do it. Al tells him to look at ties to organized
crime.

Al says his trainer Casey McGraw would be really mad if he took a dive. Casey had a record
for roughing up fighters that didn’t win. Al and Carrie head to the gym to talk to Casey. He says
everyone loved Johnny. Carrie wants to talk boxing with Casey and rattles off a bunch of stats
and asks for just a minute of his time. He tells his boxers to take a break and then sits to talk
with them. He’s got a split knuckle and says he was at home with his cat when it happened.

Casey says whoever killed Johnny killed him because he was his best. He says there is no
way Johnny threw the fight. Carrie says it didn’t look good and Casey says he was distracted but
he didn’t know what was bothering him. He says he was a quiet guy who internalized but would
have never taken a dive. He says he wouldn’t have done that to him. Carrie asks if he was like a
dad to him and he says he and Bobby both. He says he knew Johnny had that special sauce.

Casey says he was a star. He shows them some footage of Johnny sparring with him and says
he was quick as a rabbit. Carrie emulates it and Casey tells her to pop her hips at the end. She
does and Casey says she’s got special sauce too. Al agrees that she’s saucy. Jay pokes Al about
Sugar Ray then tells him that Johnny had some unusual connection and shows him a woman
named Dafina who has ties to the Albanian mob and he filed restraining orders against some of
her family.

Agim, Edon, Megi and Dafina. He says they are all scary as hell. Al and Carrie show up to
talk to the Albanians. Al hassles her about showing off her boxing skills for Casey. He reminds
her she punched him and he says because he was hitting on someone. They show up and find a
camera crew there. The guy is excited and runs the camera crew over.

Carrie says they're there about Johnny’s murder. Dafina says she knew him from growing up
and she says she’s been helping him out since high school and says she and her girls all back
him like a syndicate. She says they were proud of him. She says he was pissed off about being
on their show — Staten Island Syndicate Wives — and took out the restraining orders so they
couldn’t tape him. She loved him but he was a jerk.

She says Johnny was a homewrecker and says he was banging Magi. She says Magi had the
hots for her since high school and was sleeping with someone. He asks if she told Edon and she
says she would not have set her brother-in-law up for murder and says that they’ve been on film
all week. A guy shows up yelling that they’ll pay for Johnny and Carrie recognizes him as Bobby
and calls out to him. He has a baseball bat that he’s swinging around and says Johnny is dead
because of them.

He says they killed Johnny and Carrie tells him to out the bat down. She says his mother
shouldn’t have to bury two sons in one week and he puts the bat down then collapses in tears. Al
puts his gun away. Carrie says they’'ve been looking for him and he says he’s been nowhere. He
says he can’t believe his brother is gone and says Johnny told him he was afraid of the Albanians.
He says they knew Johnny was going to make it big so they took him under his wing.

Bobby says a couple of months ago they wanted him to do something he didn’'t want to do and
wouldn’t tell Bobby because he wanted to protect him. He says he shouldn’t have gone to work
but he needed the money. He says he swore to his mom that he would look out for Johnny and
begs them to find who did it. Al says they need to get him home. A producer on the show runs
over to talk to them and says he’ll get them the footage they want.

He says the footage on them was amazing and says they should do a show — Major Crimes,
NYC. He offers them a shot to be cable famous and Al says she’s already famous in his eyes
and she says it's a no. They head back to the office. Joanne says she thinks he was punched to
death and there were no defensive wounds, no drugs and not much alcohol. She shows Carrie
scratches and thinks the person was wearing a heavy ring. His lower teeth were knocked out.
They look like boxing injuries.

Carrie thinks about the combination Johnny is known for. He was killed by his own combo.
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Jay watch footage from the reality show and laughs at the insane drama and profanity. Al says
they're bringing in Casey. Jay shows them some footage. Edon and Magi are arguing about him
wearing a pink tie. Jay says the alibis are air tight and shows them cursing at the camera crews
in their bedroom.

Jay says the show is addictive and shows Agim getting a pedicure. Carrie points out a girl in
the footage and recognizes her — she was in a photo on Casey’s desk — his granddaughter Anna.
She’s in the reality footage with Johnny and is seen in the background. Carrie says the two were
clearly in a relationship and Carrie thinks she may be pregnant. Jay pulls up her address and
they think that’s where he was before he died and maybe Casey was there.

Carrie says she doesn’t think it was him. He calls Cherie and she’s at Casey’s gym and tells
them that he’s dead — looks like a gunshot wound.

At the gym, Cherie says it doesn’t look like a robbery and Al says it can’t be a coincidence.
Anna is there and she asks why everyone is dying. Al asks her about Johnny and is surprised
he knows. He asks who would want to hurt Casey and she says everyone loved him and that he
was like a father to half the kids in the neighborhood. She says other fighters might have had it
in for Johnny but she never saw the side of him that was the killer in the ring. She says he was
gentle.

Al asks her about the baby and she says she lost it six weeks ago on a Sunday. Al says he’s
sorry and she says Johnny was sweet when she told him the news. She says he told her that she
had made him seen what was important and he said he was going to retire and open a gym. She
says they talked about it the morning he died and they were going to tell Casey, get married and
try for another baby.

Anna is distraught. Al explains to Cheri that’s why Johnny lost the fight — he had just found
out about the miscarriage. Bobby has an alibi and the slug from Casey’s is a 9 mm. Al recalls
that AK’s bodygaurd packs that. Al asks AK about Johnny’s retirement and his dislike for Casey.
They break the news that Casey is dead and he says he didn’t want that. Al says they think he
had his bodyguard kill Johnny and Casey and says they know his bodyguard Parker wasn’t on
his private plane.

Carrie asks for Parker’s gun and then she asks AK what it’s like to kiss a girl with a lip ring.
She says he’s the one that Magi has been sleeping with. She says the Albanian mob won’t like
to hear that. Parker hands over the gun and AK says Eliot won't be happy about that. She takes
his other piece as well. Cherie points out bloody pallets and a shirt a homeless guy found.

Carrie looks around and then says the pallets haven’t moved since yesterday. She says they’re
set up like a hiding place. She crouches behind them and then looks over at the cop cars. She
recalls the set up from the street fair and then thinks about the police line and says he could have
walked right out. She thinks about what she saw and then recalls a guy with a Fire Department
shirt on. She says Bobby was there and he lied about not being there. She says she saw him.

Al and Carrie head to the construction site where Bobby has been laboring. They tell him they
need to talk and he takes off at a run. They give chase. Al calls in for back-up. Carrie is hot on
his heels and he trips her and she loses her gun. He locks her outside of a floor and then when
Al comes in, he whacks him and takes him down. Carrie runs down the scaffolding outside to try
and intercept. She hops into a plastic garbage chute and then nails him with a one-two punch.

Al tells Bobby that it’s going to hurt for a while and says she popped her hip. Carrie says they
found his brother’s blood on his toolbox and his brother’s championship ring that he killed him
with. Carrie says he impressed her by pulling the stunt at the reality shoot then having someone
punch his time card to alibi him. She says she knows Johnny was supporting him but then cut
him off about a month ago.

Bobby says he begged him to keep helping him but he said no. He says he went to the festival
to talk to him but he wouldn’t listen, so he hit him. Carrie says he wouldn’t hit you back and he
says his brother thought he was nothing and that’s why he wouldn’t hit back. He says he didn’t
mean to kill him. Al says the most he’ll get is manslaughter for Johnny and they need more to
get him on Casey.

Carrie says she met Casey and didn’t like him. She asks what he thought of him. Bobby says
he wanted to train and was there first — sweeping up when he was 10. He says once Casey saw
Johnny, he was done with him and wouldn’t even let him in to watch his brother box. He says he
asked to work for them at the new gym he was starting with Casey but Casey said to cut him off
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and called him a parasite. Carrie says that Casey was the parasite and she says it’s all Casey’s
fault.

Carrie says she would have shot him through the heart and Bobby says that’'s why he killed
him — he took everything from him. Bobby says he never meant to hurt Johnny. Carrie says she
believes him. Eliot and Al watch as she gets both confessions. Later, she smiles at Al and Eliot
calls her the confession whisperer. He says he likes the empathy card she played and she says
it’s a rope a dope.

Eliot says AK doubled the reward money and donated it to the local Boys and Girls Club and a
case of vodka to major crimes. Eliot says he couldn’t accept it and Carrie asks if it’s in his trunk
and Al says it’s in his Hamptons House and Eliot says it’s a place they're never invited again. Al
asks if she’s dating Francis and he hassles him and he says next time, he’s the one taking her
to a fight. She says let’s do it right here and now. She stands and squares off against him. They
fake spar. She punches him right in the kisser.
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The Haircut

Season 3
Episode Number: 38
Season Episode: 3

( )\
Originally aired: Sunday July 13, 2014
Writer: Quinton Peeples
Director: Matthew Penn
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lt. Al Burns), Dallas

Roberts (Eliot Delson), James Hiroyuki Liao (Jay Lee), Tawny Cypress
(Cherie Rollins-Murray), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)

Guest Stars: Dan Amboyer (Eric Oliver), Happy Anderson (Gavin), Sheldon Best
(Journalist #1), Enzo Cellucci (Joey Quinones), Yuval David (David
Croupier), Scott Drummond (Dwayne Storm), Anthony Fazio (Pappa-
razzi #1), Jabari Gray (RNN Director), Boris Kodjoe (Francis Simms),
Teresa Lim (Annabel Parker), Randall Newsome (Calvin Claridge),
Clancy O’Connor (Journalist #2), Kelly Overton (Emily Swain), Brian
Wiles (Pemberton Ward)

Summary: Carrie and Al delve into the murky waters of office politics and gov-
ernment scandals when a reporter who broke a salacious story about
the director of the NSA is found murdered. Meanwhile, Agent Simms
returns to assist Carrie, and Al reconnects with an old girlfriend who
may be able to help on the case.

Annabel, a reporter who exposed NSA of-
ficial General Clearage’s alleged involve-
ment in a scandal, makes headline news
again when her body is found inside a
hotel room. Joanne cites accidental over-
dose as the cause of death. However, Car-
rie begs to differ. She recalls seeing a re-
cent news broadcast where Annabel is
seen writing with her left hand. People
can’t or normally don’t use their less than
dominant hand to shoot themselves up
with. Since Annabel’s needle mark is in
her left arm, Carrie rules her death as
homicide as they all stand back look-
ing amazed. So who saw fit to give poor

Annabel a hot shot and why?

Naturally, the almost-disgraced general is a prime suspect, but fresh flowers found in a vase
at Annabel’s apartment with note signed by the initials DG lead Carrie to suspect there might
have been some hanky-panky going on between Annabel and her boss, Donovan Gates. He denies
it of course.

Al tries to pump his former flame and contact, Lt. Colonel Emily Connors for information
but she is a loyal General Clearage supporter and she warns Al to tread lightly on the matter.
Meanwhile, Agent Sims is back in town to pretty much warn Carrie of the same thing. There is a
whole lot of flirting going on amongst these four.

After noticing a mystery man on the elevator of the hotel, Al and Carrie track down a former
cameraman of Annabel who was also smitten with the young reporter. According to him, the
hotel has a secret stairwell for celebrities to use in order to escape those pesky paparazzi types.
Annabel often used the hotel room to interview folk who valued discretion. The crime-fighting
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duo later find another cameraman who has in his possession photos of General Clearage leaving
the hotel a half an hour from the time Annabel got off the elevator.

Annabel’s assistant, Matt, suddenly quits right before it’s discovered he is the one behind
her missing emails. Matt is a super computer geek who is eventually found murdered also. The
murderer took out Matt motherboard with a bullet to the head.

Al meets with Emily again. This time she gives him a hint: check out a certain book from the
library. He does and after a few mumbo-jumbo code breaking moments, the NYPD’s system is
hacked and Carrie receives an invitation to meet with this mastermind.

Carrie enters a building that is so dark until all she can see is the silhouette of a woman
and the infrared dots over her body as hidden sharp shooters keep their weapons trained on
her. The lady, who apparently is part of some secret agency, promptly tells Carrie if she starts
to feel nervous then Carrie is a goner. The mystery woman said “they” only wanted to block the
general’s appointment. Annabel was an asset. No government agency was behind the deaths of
Annabel or Matt.

After Al finally gets his chance to chat with the general, we learn the whole scandal story was a
fake. Annabel had a conscience and wanted to fix things. That was what their meeting at the hotel
was about. So who didn’t want her to set things right? Turns out it was the network’s golden
boy Pemberton Ward. He just couldn’t fathom having a retracted story out there thus ruining
the network’s reputation. To Pemberton, it was more than a job. The boss and co-workers were
family. Hmm, yet he thought it necessary to rub out two members of his "family.”
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Cashing Out

Season 3
Episode Number: 39
Season Episode: 4

( )\
Originally aired: Sunday July 20, 2014
Writer: Spencer Hudnut
Director: Jean de Segonzac
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lt. Al Burns), Dallas

Roberts (Eliot Delson), James Hiroyuki Liao (Jay Lee), Tawny Cypress
(Cherie Rollins-Murray), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)

Guest Stars: Adria Arjona (Suzy Houchen), Otto W Gross (Memory Game Kid),
Michael Simon Hall (Gambler), Joseph Mancuso (Scott Standley),
George Weisgerber (Gambler), Alex Ziwak (Serbian Mobster), Yaya Da-
Costa (Molly) Constantine Maroulis (Germ), Morgan Spector (Dean),
David Yuval Cohen (Poker Dealer), Mario Polit (Security Guard),
Patrick Cooley (Security Guard #1), Michael Zlabinger (Will), Ty
Michael Robinson (Larry), Jackson Kaufman (Jackson), Jayden Rey
(Lulu), Andrew Leggieri (Blackjack Dealer), Anthony Mazza (ESU)

Summary: A city official is murdered, and Carrie recognizes the victim as someone
she played poker with at an underground casino. She then puts her
career on the line by admitting her illegal activities and volunteering
to go back to the tables undercover.

A city official is murdered, and Carrie rec-
ognizes the victim as someone she played
poker with at an underground casino.
She then puts her career on the line by
admitting her illegal activities and volun-
teering to go back to the tables under-
cover.

103



Unforgettable Episode Guide

104



Unforgettable Episode Guide

A Moveable Feast

Season 3
Episode Number: 40
Season Episode: 5

Writer:
Director:
Show Stars:

Guest Stars:

Summary:

Originally aired:

Sunday July 27, 2014

Gina Gold, Aurorae Khoo

Andy Wolk

Poppy Montgomery (Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lt. Al Burns), Dallas
Roberts (Eliot Delson), James Hiroyuki Liao (Jay Lee), Tawny Cypress
(Cherie Rollins-Murray), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)

Colin Egglesfield (Sewell), Craig Bierko (Marco), Rupak Ginn (Robert),
Jolly Abraham (Gita), David Shih (Zenji), Nikka Graff Lanzarone
(Heather), Julian Medina/Jacob Medina (Stevie), Eli James (Pe-
ter), Jonathan Berenson (Director), Asa Somers (Holliman), Angela
Pietropinto (Phyllis), Jerry Matz (Harold), Woodie King Jr. (Barry),
Winslow Bright (Assistant), Lorenzo Beronilla (Dead Chef Yamato),
Christina Brucato (Debbie), Blake J. Evans (Duke Callahan), Guyviaud
Joseph (Uniformed Officer), Natalie Knepp (Giuliana Lantini), Melany
Walter (Onlooker)

Carrie and Al must find the connection between a murdered coast
guard officer, a celebrity chef who threw him out of his restaurant and
a missing block of C-4 before the explosives are used.

fore the explosives are used.
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Stray Bullet

Season 3
Episode Number: 41
Season Episode: 6

Originally aired:
Writer:

Director:

Show Stars:

Guest Stars:

Summary:

Sunday August 3, 2014

Barry M. Schkolnick

Christine Moore

Poppy Montgomery (Det. Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lt. Al Burns),
Dallas Roberts (Eliot Delson), James Hiroyuki Liao (Jay Lee), Tawny
Cypress (Cherie Rollins-Murray), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)
Aaron Costa Ganis (Dominic Moreno), Brendan Griffin (Brendan
Quinn), Christopher Livingston (Danny Murphy), Owiso Odera (Cap-
tain Melvin Stearns), Margot White (Kathleen Quinn), John Doman
(Vincent Quinn), Gabrielle Porter (Beth Bronson), Rich Duva (IAB
Agent), Elena Hurst (Alma Payn), Rudy Mungaray (Hector), James
Harkness (Rudy), Jeb Kreager (Range Officer)

A parolee Al helped put in jail is murdered, and Internal Affairs targets
him as the prime suspect in the case. Meanwhile, Carrie conducts an
off-the-books investigation to prove Al is innocent.

A parolee Al helped put in jail is mur-
dered, and Internal Affairs targets him
as the prime suspect in the case. Mean-
while, Carrie conducts an off-the-books
investigation to prove Al is innocent.
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Throwing Shade

Season 3
Episode Number: 42
Season Episode: 7

4 )
Originally aired: Sunday August 10, 2014
Writer: Michael Reisz
Director: Paul Holahan
Show Stars: James Hiroyuki Liao (Jay Lee), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster), Poppy

Montgomery (Det. Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lt. Al Burns), Dallas
Roberts (Eliot Delson), Tawny Cypress (Cherie Rollins-Murray)

Guest Stars: John Bolger (Declan Macauley), Josh Stamberg (Robert Bright), Julie
Ann Emery (Shelby), Larisa Polonsky (Amanda Temple), Josephine
Huang (Assistant), Matthew Lawler (Dave O’Bannon), Mitch Longley
(Pete), Chris Rivaro (CSU Investigator), Dena Tyler (Gina O’Bannon),
Andrea Cirie (Marcia Harrison), Britt Lower (Tanya Sitkowsky),
Roberta Colindrez (Pam Lisotta), Deborah Twiss (Reporter)

Summary: When one of Eliot’s oldest friends, the campaign manager for a may-
oral candidate, is murdered, he is forced to face his past and current
demons as Carrie and Al work to uncover the Kkiller.

When one of Eliot’s oldest friends, the
campaign manager for a mayoral candi-
date, is murdered, he is forced to face his
past and current demons as Carrie and
Al work to uncover the Kkiller.
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The Island

Season 3
Episode Number: 43
Season Episode: 8

4 N\
Originally aired: Sunday August 24, 2014
Writer: Michael Reisz
Director: Oz Scott
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Det. Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lt. Al Burns),

Dallas Roberts (Eliot Delson), James Hiroyuki Liao (Jay Lee), Tawny
Cypress (Cherie Rollins-Murray), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)

Guest Stars: Caitlin McGee (Louisa), Matthew Porretta (Bruce Miller), James Fran-
cis Ginty (Wendell Kuryak), Orlagh Cassidy (Shelley Miller), Peter Al-
brink (Jordan), Mark Ryan Anderson (Sam Miller), Michael Bakkensen
(Dr. Paul Hughes), Drew Beasley (Quinton), Erica Camarano (Norma),
Laura Harrier (Amber), Woodie King Jr. (Barry), Stephen Lin (Hus-
band), Michael F. McGuirk (Sean), Howard W. Overshown (Ray Pu-
laski), Julian Silver (Eddie), Anna Weng (Wife)

Summary: Carrie and Al’s investigation into the death of a college dropout takes
a surprising turn when they discover he had been living in an off-the-
grid community on an abandoned island near Manhattan.

Carrie and Al's investigation into the
death of a college dropout takes a sur-
prising turn when they discover he had
been living in an off-the-grid community
on an abandoned island near Manhattan.
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Admissions

Season 3
Episode Number: 44
Season Episode: 9

( )
Originally aired: Saturday August 30, 2014
Writer: Sean Crouch
Director: Michael Pressman
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Det. Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lt. Al Burns),

Dallas Roberts (Eliot Delson), James Hiroyuki Liao (Jay Lee), Tawny
Cypress (Cherie Rollins-Murray), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)

Guest Stars: Stevie Lynn Jones (Kendall Wilson), Mike Doyle (John Hibbert), Wrenn
Schmidt (Vicki Wilson), James Martinez (Robert Chavez), Andre B.
Blake (Cameron), Aurelie Claudel (Camille Cosgrove), Adam Griffith
(Marco Hunter), Edmund Donovan (Derrick Hibbert), Dylan Hartigan
(Wyatt), Kim Ramirez (Maid), Ryan John McGinnis (Marshall), Georgia
Hays (Judy), Andrew Hovelson (Emil), Katherine Reis (Lacey), Christo-
pher Pena (ESU), Kevin Kevin (Security Guard)

Sumimary: The murder of a CEO leads Carrie and Al to dig into the secrets of
students and faculty at an elite prep school where the victim’s child
attended.

The murder of a CEO leads Carrie and
Al to dig into the secrets of students and
faculty at an elite prep school where the
victim’s child attended.
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Fire and Ice

Season 3
Episode Number: 45
Season Episode: 10

( )
Originally aired: Sunday August 31, 2014
Writer: Ed Decter, Quinton Peeples
Director: Darnell Martin
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Det. Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lt. Al Burns),

Dallas Roberts (Eliot Delson), James Hiroyuki Liao (Jay Lee), Tawny
Cypress (Cherie Rollins-Murray), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)

Guest Stars: Dora Mavrakis (Actress), Laith Nakli (Usman Khan), Aaron J. Nel-
son (Elton Katanaka), Hrach Titizian (Jean-Luc Augustin), Ramone
Wilkinson (Christopher), James Colby (Capt. Burch), Lauren Velez
(Aisha), Ashley Aufderheide (Maya Rawlins-Murray), Postell Pringle
(Bomb Tech), Meghan Refferty (Megan), Rock Kohli (Bilal), Ito Aghayere
(Reporter #1), Dan Schachner (Reporter #2), Tuffy Questell (Super),
Rob Leo Roy (Museum Director)

Sumimary: Carrie conducts a secret investigation when Homeland Security takes
over a bombing case from Major Crimes and concludes that it is tied to
terrorism. Meanwhile, Webster makes friends with Murray’s daughter.

When Homeland Security takes over
a bombing investigation from Major
Crimes, Carrie doubts their conclusion
that it's tied to terrorism and secretly
continues her own investigation. Mean-
while, Webster makes friends with Mur-
ray’s daughter.
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True Identity

Season 3
Episode Number: 46
Season Episode: 11

( )
Originally aired: Sunday September 7, 2014
Writer: Sean Crouch, Daniele Nathanson
Director: Nick Gomez
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Det. Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lt. Al Burns),

Dallas Roberts (Eliot Delson), James Hiroyuki Liao (Jay Lee), Tawny
Cypress (Cherie Rollins-Murray), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)

Guest Stars: Lola Glaudini (Gwen Stein), Troy Garity (Jake Thompson), Hunter
Emery (Craig Zadoc), Adrian Rieder (Jeff), Kenneth Lee (Charles), Ja-
son Schuchman (Oliver), Vince Oddo (Ben), David H. Holmes (Pete),
James Michael Reilly (Tim), Desiree Rodriguez (Desiree), Alex Charak
(Brett), Caleb Eberhardt (Wayne), Manuel Herrera (Alex), Jason Cottle
(Lee), Bubba Weiler (Joe), Jackie Cruz (Maria)

Summary: Carrie and Al investigate the murder of a high-end matchmaking ser-
vice employee and discover the victim had many secrets. As they un-
cover each one, the suspect list grows longer.

Carrie and Al investigate the murder of a
high-end matchmaking service employee,
but each secret they uncover in the vic-
tim’s life only serves to create a new pos-
sible suspect and motive.

117



Unforgettable Episode Guide

118



Unforgettable Episode Guide

D.O.A.

Season 3
Episode Number: 47
Season Episode: 12

Originally aired:

Writer:
Director:
Show Stars:

Guest Stars:

Summary:

Sunday September 14, 2014

Quinton Peeples

Matt Earl Beesley

Poppy Montgomery (Det. Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lt. Al Burns),
Dallas Roberts (Eliot Delson), James Hiroyuki Liao (Jay Lee), Tawny
Cypress (Cherie Rollins-Murray), Jane Curtin (Joanne Webster)
Michael Dempsey (Eddie Sands), Ashley North (Russian Maid Slave),
Ryan Shams (Eric Koban), Michael Siberry (Thomas Carlyle), Keith
White (Stage Manager), Tyrone Henderson (Dr. Millar), Babs Olusan-
moukun (Goodacre Oyensi), Roderick Hill (August Kincaid), Michael
Pemberton (Logan Sale), Todd Faulkner (Murphy), Hakey Sanford (Ha-
ley)

Carrie is unable to utilize her perfect memory after an assassin slips
her a potentially fatal dose of poison that attacks her brain. Al desper-
ately searches for an antidote.

Carrie is unable to utilize her perfect
.. ' memory when an assassin doses her with
" e ' a deadly poison that attacks her brain,
leaving Al on a desperate hunt for the an-
tidote
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Blast From the Past

Season 4
Episode Number: 48
Season Episode: 1

4 N\
Originally aired: Friday November 27, 2015
Writer: Bill Chais
Director: Matt Earl Beesley
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Senior Detective Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lieu-

tenant Al Burns), James Hiroyuki Liao (Senior Detective Jay Lee), E.J.
Bonilla (Junior Detective Denny Padilla), Alani Anthony (Medical Ex-
aminer Delina Michaels), Kathy Najimy (Captain Sandra Russo)

Guest Stars: Casey Siemaszko (Lt. Greg Zartane), Skeet Ulrich (Eddie Martin), Dal-
las Roberts (Elliot Delson), Michael Barra (Grendel), Robbie Tann
(Austin), Joseph Tudisco (Saul), Carla Brandberg (Housekeeper), Se-
bastian Martinez (Cody), Phil Oddo (Detective), Cruz Rodriguez (Child
at Birthday Party)

Summary: Major Crimes is in for a surprise when Carrie’s long-lost husband,
Eddie, shows up investigating a meth crew from Daytona Beach.

Major Crimes is in for a surprise when
Carrie’s long-lost husband, Eddie, shows
up investigating a meth crew from Day-
tona Beach.
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Gut Check

Season 4
Episode Number: 49
Season Episode: 2

4 N\
Originally aired: Friday November 27, 2015
Writer: Spencer Hudnut
Director: Jace Alexander
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Senior Detective Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lieu-

tenant Al Burns), James Hiroyuki Liao (Senior Detective Jay Lee), E.J.
Bonilla (Junior Detective Denny Padilla), Alani Anthony (Medical Ex-
aminer Delina Michaels), Kathy Najimy (Captain Sandra Russo)

Guest Stars: Armando Riesco (Zeke), Rachel Dratch (Rosie Webb), Dallas Roberts
(Elliot Delson), Jeff Pucillo (Marvin Arcane), Rob Morgan (Chief Tullen),
Dave Bachman (Jerry Hayes), Joe Tuttle (Officer Weaver), Brenda Lee
Perez (Waitress), Jay Ward (John)

Summary: When two security guards are gunned down in a hotel room, Major
Crimes discovers thet they were protecting the star witness, Rosie
Webb, of a high-profile securities fraud case. Callie and Al must de-
liver the witness (and her dynamical personality) to Miami with the
cartel and a hit man at their heels.

When two security guards are gunned
down in a hotel room, Major Crimes dis-
covers thet they were protecting the star
witness, Rosie Webb, of a high-profile se-
curities fraud case. Callie and Al must de-
liver the witness (and her dynamical per-
sonality) to Miami with the cartel and a
hit man at their heels.
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Behind the Beat

Season 4
Episode Number: 50
Season Episode: 3

Writer:
Director:
Show Stars:

Guest Stars:

Summary:

Originally aired:

Friday December 4, 2015

Karen Campbell

Matt Earl Beesley

Poppy Montgomery (Senior Detective Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lieu-
tenant Al Burns), James Hiroyuki Liao (Senior Detective Jay Lee), E.J.
Bonilla (Junior Detective Denny Padilla), Alani Anthony (Medical Ex-
aminer Delina Michaels), Kathy Najimy (Captain Sandra Russo)
Ashanti (Stella), George Katt (Marko Vrioni), Duane McLaughlin (Raj),
Barry Shabaka Henley (Leo Hackett), Peter Falls (Matt Wexler), Aria
Shahghasemi (Davis Bennett), Anu Valia (Simone), Simon Feil (Bernie),
Rod Brogan (Hipster Dad Dave), Dante E. Clark (Student #1), Nick
Erkelens (Student #2), lan Etheridge (Mark), Mario D’Leon (Doorman),
Dylan Prince (Second Chair Trumpet), Angelline Chung (Trumpet Stu-
dent), Lynn Marocola (Police Officer), Nicholas Marocola (Police Offi-
cer), Dillon Mathews (Jazz Goer), Phil Oddo (Detective)

A music student’s murder leads Carrie and Al to an illegal nightclub
owned by an Albanian mobster.

an Albanian mobster.
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and Al to an illegal nightclub owned by
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Dollar and Scents

Season 4
Episode Number: 51
Season Episode: 4

Writer:
Director:
Show Stars:

Guest Stars:

Summary:

Originally aired:

Friday December 4, 2015

Timothy J. Lea

Paul Holahan

Poppy Montgomery (Senior Detective Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lieu-
tenant Al Burns), James Hiroyuki Liao (Senior Detective Jay Lee), E.J.
Bonilla (Junior Detective Denny Padilla), Alani Anthony (Medical Ex-
aminer Delina Michaels), Kathy Najimy (Captain Sandra Russo)
Elisabeth Gray (Manette Huet), Vince Nappo (Phillipe Huet), Michael
Braun (Special Agent Drew Miller), Karl Josef Co (Saru), Jonathan Lee
(Deshu), Natalie Toro (Sonia), Zachary Unger (Sad Kid), Charles Hen-
dricks (Uniform), Pascal Yen-Pfister (Sommelier), Naila Gomez (Kid #1),
Jonah Halperin (Kid #2), Zoe Manarel (Kid #3), Dillon Mathews (Jazz
Club Patron), Phil Oddo (Detective), Prashant Rai (Boyfriend)
Following her nose helps Carrie link the murders of a deli employee
and a computer hacker to a seductively handsome securities dealer.

securities dealer.
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Following her nose helps Carrie link the
murders of a deli employee and a com-
puter hacker to a seductively handsome
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All In

Season 4
Episode Number: 52
Season Episode: 5

4 N\
Originally aired: Friday December 18, 2015
Writer: Bill Chais, Spencer Hudnut
Director: Jean de Segonzac
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Senior Detective Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lieu-

tenant Al Burns), James Hiroyuki Liao (Senior Detective Jay Lee), E.J.
Bonilla (Junior Detective Denny Padilla), Alani Anthony (Medical Ex-
aminer Delina Michaels), Kathy Najimy (Captain Sandra Russo)

Guest Stars: Matthew Del Negro (Hunter Ellis), Ray Abruzzo (Shane McCloud),
Tonya Glanz (Julie), Allison Mackie (Holly), Yvonna Kopacz Wright (Lin-
den’s Lawyer), Anthony Ordonez (Zack), David Michael Garry (Ganz),
Shawn Andrew (Hulking Man), Khris Davis (Security Guard), Lauren
Martin (Pit Boss), Lino Del Core (Dealer), Mark Lotito (Dewar Linden),
Christopher Gray (Teenager), Steve Mason (Stunt Fisherman)

Sumimary: Carrie and Al investigate a murder that leads them to Atlantic City,
New Jersey, and Carrie runs into an old flame.

Carrie and Al investigate a murder that
leads them to Atlantic City, New Jersey,
and Carrie runs into an old flame.
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The Return of Eddie

Season 4
Episode Number: 53
Season Episode: 6

Writer:
Director:
Show Stars:

Guest Stars:

Summary:

Originally aired:

Friday January 1, 2016

Emmy Grinwis

Paul Holahan

Poppy Montgomery (Senior Detective Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lieu-
tenant Al Burns), James Hiroyuki Liao (Senior Detective Jay Lee), E.J.
Bonilla (Junior Detective Denny Padilla), Alani Anthony (Medical Ex-
aminer Delina Michaels), Kathy Najimy (Captain Sandra Russo)
Julian Silver (Eddie), Dominic Colon (Orlando Martinez), Nicholas
Tucci (Bud Mayer), Kara Jackson (Rachel Parks), Leanne Agmon (Uma
Fugard), Kenneth Maharaj (Clerk)

In a quick mart robbery gone wrong a tabloid crime cameraman is
killed. Carrie and Al soon realize that this wasn't a random act of
violence but a cover-up for something much bigger.

In a quick mart robbery gone wrong a
tabloid crime cameraman is killed. Car-
rie and Al soon realize that this wasn’t a
random act of violence but a cover-up for
something much bigger.
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We Can Be Heroes

Season 4
Episode Number: 54
Season Episode: 7

( )
Originally aired: Friday January 8, 2016
Writer: John Paul Roche
Director: Laura Belsey
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Senior Detective Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lieu-

tenant Al Burns), James Hiroyuki Liao (Senior Detective Jay Lee), E.J.
Bonilla (Junior Detective Denny Padilla), Alani Anthony (Medical Ex-
aminer Delina Michaels), Kathy Najimy (Captain Sandra Russo)

Guest Stars: Maddie Corman (Gwen Allen), Stephen Barker Turner (Kenneth Allen),
Frank Whaley (Jim Garrett), Marcia Haufrecht (Dorothy), Johnny Hop-
kins (Sean), Alexis Genya (Ilsa), Jackson Kaufman (Mason Allen), Ha-
ley Sanford (Ali), Mike Massimino (ESU Officer), Kevin Anton (Crime
Scene Detective), Brian Avers (Mel), James Russell (Sean), Mohammed
Hossain (Reporter), Juri Henley-Cohn (Kareem Hakimi), Graham Sib-
ley (Jordan Scott / Gregory Chernov), Forrest Weber (ESU), Fajer Al-
Kaisi (Malik Hakimi), Gregg Micheals (Homeless Man), Todd Detwiler
(Demolition Man), Donal Brophy (Mick)

Summary: The son of a prominent scientist is kidnapped, but the investigation
reveals a deeper plot for revenge.

The son of a prominent scientist is kid-
napped, but the investigation reveals a
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Breathing Space

Season 4
Episode Number: 55
Season Episode: 8

Originally aired:
Writer:

Director:

Show Stars:

Guest Stars:

Summary:

Friday January 15, 2016

Louisa Hill

Oz Scott

Poppy Montgomery (Senior Detective Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lieu-
tenant Al Burns), James Hiroyuki Liao (Senior Detective Jay Lee), E.J.
Bonilla (Junior Detective Denny Padilla), Alani Anthony (Medical Ex-
aminer Delina Michaels), Kathy Najimy (Captain Sandra Russo)
Aaron Lazar (Elon Musk), Dawn-Lyen Gardner (Erica Campbell),
Alysia Reiner (Joan Chen), Gianmarco Soresi (Mike Wilcox), Jacque-
line Antaramian (Guest Star), Ramsey Faragallah (Guest Star), Lau-
ren Blumenfeld (DeeDee / Barista), Paul Pryce (Randy Rupert), Marc
Chouen (Young Dad), Kevin Anton (Crime Scene Detective), Lucas Hall
(Simon Sheffield)

Major Crimes determines that the kidnapping of a prominent sci-
entist’s son was not a crime of opportunity but rather a calculated
scheme for revenge.

a calculated scheme for revenge.
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Shelter from the Storm

Season 4
Episode Number: 56
Season Episode: 9

4 )
Originally aired: Friday January 15, 2016
Writer: Timothy J. Lea, Karen Campbell
Director: Andy Wolk
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Senior Detective Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lieu-

tenant Al Burns), James Hiroyuki Liao (Senior Detective Jay Lee), E.J.
Bonilla (Junior Detective Denny Padilla), Alani Anthony (Medical Ex-
aminer Delina Michaels), Kathy Najimy (Captain Sandra Russo)

Guest Stars: Michael Nathanson (Guest Star), Ben Bailey (Guest Star), Jackie De-
batin (Guest Star), Brandon Micheal Hall (Guest Star), Joe Lisi (Guest
Star), Will Blagrove (Robert 'R-Dubbs’ Wiggins), Shevy Gutierrez (Uni
Cop), Cameron Meyer (Fiona Kopinski), Liam McNeill (John), Austin
Michael Young (Fireman #1), Collin Meath (MC), George R. Sheffey
(Ray Kopinski), Jeanine Ramirez (NY1 News Reporter)

Sumimary: A hurricane forces Carrie and Al to seek refuge in a rundown precinct
house and fend off a gang sent to free an elusive drug kingpin.

A hurricane forces Carrie and Al to seek
refuge in a rundown precinct house and
fend off a gang sent to free an elusive
drug kingpin.
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Game On

Season 4
Episode Number: 57
Season Episode: 10

( )
Originally aired: Friday January 22, 2016
Writer: Jeff Pfeiffer
Director: Kate Woods
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Senior Detective Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lieu-

tenant Al Burns), James Hiroyuki Liao (Senior Detective Jay Lee), E.J.
Bonilla (Junior Detective Denny Padilla), Alani Anthony (Medical Ex-
aminer Delina Michaels), Kathy Najimy (Captain Sandra Russo)

Guest Stars: Martin Donovan (William Houston), Dave Quay (Guest Star), Susan
Heyward (Guest Star), Trevor Long (Foster Lee Nolan), Kate Easton
(Hannah), Tara Westwood (Lisa Hexler), Jenny Leona (Genevieve), Erik
Liberman (Daniel Lebenstrom), Jason Babinsky (Sam Rose), Christian
Daly (Frank), Declan Mulvey (Runner #66), Jay Hieron (Runner #78),
Cleve Asbury (Victim), Adam DeCarlo (Development Guy), Raul Meru-
elo (Jason Rios), Tod Rainey (Assassin)

Summary: When a young man turns up dead inside in a popular haunted-house
attraction, Carrie and Al are called in to investigate, and soon find
themselves in a world of high-stakes video games and hi-tech corpo-
rate espionage.

When a young man turns up dead inside
in a popular haunted-house attraction,
Carrie and Al are called in to investigate,
and soon find themselves in a world of
high-stakes video games and hi-tech cor-
porate espionage.
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About Face

Season 4
Episode Number: 58
Season Episode: 11

Originally aired:

Writer:
Director:
Show Stars:

Guest Stars:

Summary:

Friday January 22, 2016

Jacob Copithorne

David Platt

Poppy Montgomery (Senior Detective Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lieu-
tenant Al Burns), James Hiroyuki Liao (Senior Detective Jay Lee), E.J.
Bonilla (Junior Detective Denny Padilla), Alani Anthony (Medical Ex-
aminer Delina Michaels), Kathy Najimy (Captain Sandra Russo)
Graham Sibley (Guest Star), Corey Parker Robinson (Guest Star),
Brian Avers (Guest Star), Juri Henley-Cohn (Kareem Hakimi)

When a hot lead turns up in a cold case of a missing surgeon, Carrie
and Al find themselves on the trail of two con artists. But unmasking
the truth may have explosive consequences.

When a hot lead turns up in a cold case
of a missing surgeon, Carrie and Al find
themselves on the trail of two con artists.
But unmasking the truth may have ex-
plosive consequences.
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Bad Company

Season 4
Episode Number: 59
Season Episode: 12

( N\
Originally aired: Friday January 22, 2016
Writer: Bill Chais
Director: Jamie Sheridan
Show Stars: Poppy Montgomery (Senior Detective Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lieu-

tenant Al Burns), James Hiroyuki Liao (Senior Detective Jay Lee), E.J.
Bonilla (Junior Detective Denny Padilla), Alani Anthony (Medical Ex-
aminer Delina Michaels), Kathy Najimy (Captain Sandra Russo)

Guest Stars: Liza Colon-Zayas (Laura Barton), Heather Tom (Guest Star), Gary
Cole (Guest Star), Christopher Parker (Tommy Newton), Katie Groves
(Monique), José Baez (Biker), Sid O’Connell (Cyclops), Blake DeLong
(Sammy Gavlak), Patrick Gallo (Shane Barton), Justin R.G. Holcomb
(Ethan Crowne), Norm Golden (Ralph)

Summary: When Captain Russo is suspected in the murder of an informant, Car-
rie and Al enter into a cat and mouse game with a crooked former cop.

When Captain Russo is suspected in the
murder of an informant, Carrie and Al
enter into a cat and mouse game with a
crooked former cop.
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Paranoid Android

Season 4
Episode Number: 60
Season Episode: 13

Writer:
Director:
Show Stars:

Guest Stars:

Sumimary:

Originally aired:

Friday January 22, 2016

Spencer Hudnut

Matt Earl Beesley

Poppy Montgomery (Senior Detective Carrie Wells), Dylan Walsh (Lieu-
tenant Al Burns), James Hiroyuki Liao (Senior Detective Jay Lee), E.J.
Bonilla (Junior Detective Denny Padilla), Alani Anthony (Medical Ex-
aminer Delina Michaels), Kathy Najimy (Captain Sandra Russo)
Bruce Davison (Guest Star), James Lorinz (Emmet Grinwis), Jack
Koenig (Guest Star), Judith Lightfoot Clarke (Angela Condon), Rox-
anne Day (Kristina Payne), Katie Groves (Monique), Ken Arnold (Sam
McQuaid), Glen Mac (Peter Roach), Mohammed Hossain (NYPD Offi-
cer), James Bodnar (Officer Sanford), Chris LaPanta (Sam McQuaid),
Phil Oddo (Carnival Goer), Alex Anagnostidis (Guy in Hat)

When a shooter on the loose triggers a flashback that doesn’t add up
with Carrie’s perfect memory, the team at Major Crimes discovers that
a nefarious conspiracy is at play and trained killers are among them.

among them.
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rie’s perfect memory, the team at Major
Crimes discovers that a nefarious con-
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Actor Appearances

A 0213 (Jock)
Jacqueline Antaramian................cociiiiiiiiiia. 1
JOlly ABTanam........ouvieinrieiiiee i, 1 0408 (Guest Star)
0305 (Gita) Kevin Anton . e e SRR 2
Eric L. ADTamsS .....ovvuiiiiiiiiiieieieinenenenenenens 1 0407 (Crime Scene Detective); 0408 (Crime Scene
0203 (Emcee) Detective)
Ray ADIUZZO . ..o .o 1 Leo Aramburu.............oooiii 1
0405 (Shane McCloud) . 0102 (CSU Cesar)
Juan Luis Acevedo.......ooviiiiiiiiiii i 1 Michael Arden... ISASAEAARRERAR AR 1
0106 (Building Manager) . 0198 (Joe Williams)
Justin AdamsS . .....oiii i e 1 Adria AGONA. ..ot 1
0122 (Young Sam) 0304 (Suzy Houchen)
TIMOthY AQAINS « .+ eeveeeee oo 1 Heidi Armbruster ...........coviuiiiiiiiiiiiieannnn.. 1
0101 (Steve Latman) 0103 (Sandra Smith)
T60 AGNAYETE ... e eeee e e 3 Jo Armeniox.. R R L L R PR E PR PR PR PER PR PR 1
0207 (Reporter); 0210 (Reporter Kristine Johnson); 0107 (Angie)
Ken Arnold ..ot 1
0310 (Reporter #1) '
Leanne Agmon .........ooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1 0413 (Sam McQuaid)
0406 (Uma Fugard) Madison Arnold ...t 2
Fajer Al-Kaisi......ovvuiiiiiiiin it 1 0101 (Saul Wanamaker); 0102 (Saul Wanamaker)
0407 (Malik Hakimi) Cleveoisllz)ury‘ AR R LT PR P R P PR LR PR P PR PRLRPRERPY 1
Peter AlbrinK .......ooouiiiiii i 1 Ashanti (Victim) 1
0308 (Jordan) s ag4103 St 11 ..........................................
Elizabeth Alderfer..............oiiiiiiiiiiiii i, 1 (Stella)
0208 (Lauren) Alesandra ASSante .........covuiiiiiiiiiiii i 1
Brad Aldous 1 0106 (Socialite #1)
0113 (Silli.ti """""""""""""""""""""""" Barthelemy AtSin..........c.covvieiiiiiiiniiinnenneen. 1
Karen Aldridge .........coovviniiiiiiiii e 1 0301 (.Grant)
. Kelly AUCOIN .. vvveteieieee e eeaeaene 1
0209 (Ellen Hewitt)
Pico AleXander ..........vvviiiiiniiiiiiieieeeaianannns 1 0212 (Alpha Omega)
0213 (Jason) Ashley Aufderheide ...t 1
Gillian Ale 1 0310 (Maya Rawlins-Murray)
0108 )gaura) """""""""""""""""""""" JOBY AUZEIIINIE. . .o ett ettt e 1
Christopher Algieri..............oooiviiiiiiiiiiiiinn.. 1 . 0107 (Jose)
0302 (Johnny) Brian AVersS. . ..ot e e 2
Oval Alladin Y ) 0407 (Mel); 0411 (Guest Star)
p Ly A Hani Avital........oooiiiii i 1
0205 (Major Perkins) .
Peter Allas 1 0301 (Kristen Greene)
0206 (Nle Cast1 an) """"""""""""""""" Che Ayende. ........oouiiuiiiiiiiiiiiii i, 1
Bianca Amato & 1 0102 (Dr. Raker)
0201 (Alison Sonnenland)
Joseph Amato...........oooiviiiiiiiiii i 1 B
0103 (Miles Berkowitz)
Dan AMDbDOYET .. ....euti ittt 1 JOSE BACZ . ..ttt 1
0303 (Eric Oliver) 0412 (Biker)
Audrey AIMEY ......ooiiiiiiiii i 1 Jason Babinsky ... 1
0111 (Nurse #1) 0410 (Sam Rose)
Alex Anagnostidis............coiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1 Dave Bachman................cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaen, 1
0413 (Guy in Hat) 0402 (Jerry Hayes)
Happy ANderSOom . .....c.vuiniinitii i eiaenaeaenns 1 BenBailey...........oooiiiiiiii i 1
0303 (Gavin) 0409 (Guest Star)
Mark Ryan Anderson..............oooovviiiiiiiiinn.. 1 Michael Bakkensen.................ooviiiiiiiiiinan... 1
0308 (Sam Miller) 0308 (Dr. Paul Hughes)
Stephen Lee Anderson.............cooovviiiiiiiiiian., 1 Ari Barkan........c.cooiiiiiiiiiii i 1
0122 (Will) 0301 (Abe the Thug)
Shawn ANAIreW . ......vuiniii i 1 Tim BarKer ..ottt e 1
0405 (Hulking Man) 0113 (Officer)

Mick Angel..... ..ot 1 Michael Barra...........ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1
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0401 (Grendel) Sherry Boone............cooiiiiiiiiiii i
SCOtt BAITOW ..ot 1 0204 (Lena)

0122 (Worker) Annika Boras.........ooiiiiii i
Ryan Barry .......c.oouiiiiiin it 1 0203 (Jackie M.); 0209 (Jackie M.)

0208 (Harvey Reynolds) Desmin Borges...............ooooiiiiiiii i
Gary Basaraba .............oooiiiiiiiiiii i 1 0302 (Troy)

0105 (Lt. Willard) Chris BOWers.........oiuiiiiiiiiiiiiii i
Michael Basile.............uuuueuieiiiiiiiiiieeeaaaaaaa... 1 0213 (Lance Burke)

0104 (Firefighter) AmiBrabson ...l
Chris BaUer .. ...o.inii e 1 0119 (Sonya)

0104 (Dennis Halsey/Guard) Peter Bradbury...........c.oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii
Deborah Baum . .........oiiiieiiiiiiie e i 1 0120 (Nicholas)

0115 (Gwen) Carla Brandberg ...t
Drew Beasley.......ooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaiiaiaaiaaaanns 1 0401 (Housekeeper)

0308 (Quinton) Michael Braun .........c.oiiiiiiiiiiii i iiiiai e,
Ben BeCher......oooiiiiiiii e 1 0404 (Special Agent Drew Miller)

0206 (Stevie McKinnon) Daniel BreaKer........c.viiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieneannns
Jeremy BeCK. ......ooiiieiie i 1 0108 (Checkout Guy)

0207 (John Patton) William Andrew Brewer.............c.ooviiiiiiiiennnnnn.
TIan Bedford..........oiiieiiii i 1 0301 (Detective)

0212 (George) Kaliswa Brewster.........cociviiiiiiiiiiininnnnenn..
Purva Bedi.......oooviiiiiiiii e 1 0301 (Jenny)

0210 (Rupa Nair) NattBrian ...
Chris Beetem.............ooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1 0212 (Mayoral Aid)

0114 (Duane Tate) Winslow Bright.................oooi
Kyle Beltran ...........oooiiiiiiiiiiia... 2 0305 (Assistant)

0101 (Henry); 0102 (Henry) Nicole Brill.........oooiiiiiiiii i
Tina Benko........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii, 1 0112 (Donnamarie Recco)

0122 (Lois) Rod Brogan............coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinann..
Rafael Alejandro Benoit............oovveiiiiiiiinneea.. 1 0403 (Hipster Dad Dave)

0204 (Twenty-Something 1) Donal Brophy ..........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie
Peter BeNSOM ..ottt ettt 1 0407 (Mick)

0109 (Father Anselm) Ayana Brown..............ooooiiiiiiiiiiiin i
Jonathan Berenson . ..........ooveiiiiiiiieeeinnennnn.. 1 0111 (Mom)

0305 (Director) ChristinaBrucato..............coiiiiiiiiii i
Lorenzo Beronilla . .........o.ovviiieiiiaiiieiin ., 1 0305 (Debbie)

0305 (Dead Chef Yamato) Michael J. Burg ..........................................
Sheldon BeSt . .....uuuueeeiee e, 1 0102 (Man)

0303 [Journalist # 1] Karl Bury ......... Sreeeeeeieii e
Craig BierKo . .....ooiiiiii i 1 . 0121 (Detective Franks)

0305 (Marco) Kristen Bush........... LR LR T LR P TP T L PEPEPREPPLPER
Olivia Birkelund...............oooiiiii e 1 ,0106 (Laur el Harrison)

0206 (Gisele Emminger) Damian Buzzerlo: ........................................
Edwin J. Birmingham ......................oooon 2 José (1;31221 (Captain)
SO BIOR v e e ! 0210 (Pizza Cook Gino)

0119 (Tommy)
WIIl Blagrove .......oouiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1 C

0409 (Robert 'R-Dubbs’ Wiggins)
Alanna Blair..............oooiiiinin 1 Angel L. Caban.........cc.oouiiiiiii i

0203 (MCS Detective) 0206 (Matias Nadal)
Andre B. Blake..............oooo 1 Nicholas Calhoun ..........cocviiiiiiiiiiiii i,

0309 (Cameron) 0301 (Evan Rusk)
Laurence Blum............coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiineen.. 1 Bianca CamacCho . ..ovovee

0121 (Robert Jensen) 0117 (Delores Gonzales)
Lauren Blumenfeld ..., 1 Erica Camarano. ............eeeeeeieeeeeeenaaaaaaanann..

0408 (DeeDee / Barista) 0308 (Norma)
Lauren Blumfield ..........................oo 1 Michael CarlSen.........c..ovuiiniuiiiiiiiiieiiannanns

0203 (Server) 0301 (Bennie)
Jeremy Bobb ... 1 Clark Carmichael ............ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniannn.

0201 (Treem) 0107 (Pierre-Henry)
RoBoddie........coiiiiiii i 1 Jasmine Carmichael.......o.oveeeee e

0121 (Pizza Guy) 0117 (Kim Jacobs)
James Bodnar..................oon 1 Victoria Cartagena.............coovviiiiiiiiiiiiniiniinn,

0413 (Officer Sanford) 0103 (Maria Ortiz)
Robert Bogue.............oooiiiiiiiiiiii i 1 Orlagh Cassidy......ccoviuiiiiniiii i

0204 (Todd Blasingame) 0308 (Shelley Miller)
Rick Bolander..........c.ooiiiiiiiiiii i 1 Brad Cassini ........oviiiiiiiiiiiiii i

0205 (M.C.S. Tech) 0120 (Uniform Cop)
John Bolger ... 1 Raul CasSo .....ovuiiiiiiiii e

0307 (Declan Macauley) 0210 (Chris Jenkins)
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Juan Castano .......o.viiiiii i 1 0406 (Orlando Martinez)

0206 (Francisco Nadal) James Colby. .. ..ot 1
Kyle Catlett...........oooiiiiiiii 1 0310 (Capt. Burch)

0102 (Max Seiferth) Ben CoOle. ...ttt e 1
FUlvio CECEIe. ..ottt e 1 0210 (Mark Brennan)

0119 (Harlow) Gary Cole. ..ot 1
Derek CecCil.....coiviniiii i 1 0412 (Guest Star)

0109 (Adam Collier) QuIinn M Colgan.......o.uiuiiiiniii it 1
ENZO CellUCC. . \vvvtteeiiitee e it e eaiiieeeannns 1 0104 (Anna Halsey)

0303 (Joey Quinones) Roberta Colindrez...............cooviviiiiiiiiiinn.., 1
Jason Cerbone . .......ouuuieeeei i 1 0307 (Pam Lisotta)

0302 (Bobby) Patrick Cooley........ovuiiiiiiiiii it 1
Dahlia ChacCom .......uvuiiieeeetiiiiiieeeeeeiiannnns 1 0304 (Security Guard #1)

0103 (Lina) LiNO DEl COTe. ..ottt 1
Omar Chagall .........ooviiieeiiiiiiieeeiiiiieeeeanns 1 0405 (Dealer)

0120 (Mario Cruz) Maddie COrman .......o.ovrtiirtiie it nneennenns 1
ChrisChalk ...ttt 1 0407 (Gwen Allen)

0210 (Shaun Manning) Katina Corrao.........cooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinn, 1
AleX CharaK .......ooviiiiie e 1 0204 (Mary)

0311 (Brett) Daniel COSZIove . ... ..o.viuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaeaanns 1
Paula Leggett Chase ...........covvieeniieeinieainneann.. 1 0113 (Chad Martin)

0111 (Wife) David Costabile ..ot 1
Will Chase .. .o it e e e ieaeaens 1 0102 (Dr. McCardle)

0118 (Reed) Jason Cottle. ...t i 1
Clem CheUNg. ..ottt ittt it 1 0311 (Lee)

0101 (Mr. Lin) Lucy Cottrell...........oooiiiiiiiiiii e 1
Nick Chinlund...........cooiiiiiiiiii i 1 0111 (Young Coed)

0212 (Ron Skinner) Liam Craig........coooviiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1
Crystal ChIU. ...ttt 1 0108 (Manager)

0101 (Girl’s Friend) Susan Cremin.......oo.vnvninin e, 1
Fiona ChOi.....ooviie et it 1 0108 (Young Alice)

0213 (Camryn) Chris Critelli.......coouiiiiii i e 1
Jake Choi......ooiiiii i 1 0113 (Pledge)

0203 (VVaiter) Jackie Cruz... et 1
Marc ChOUCIL. ...t 1 0311 (Maria)

0408 (Young Dad) Michael Cullen ..........cc.ouiiriiiiriieiiiiiaeananns 1
Angela Christian ..........oo.evviiiiiniieiiiaineen.. 1 0302 (Casey)

0104 (Allison Forrest) Sean Cullen .......ooiiii it e 1
Donovan Christie Jr........vvviiinininininiiinininnenens 1 0207 (Gordon Frost)

0203 (ESU) Sean d. Cullen..........cooiiiiiiiiii it 1
Dennis Christopher..............cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaan, 1 . 0210 (Qordon Frost)

0206 (Lukas Emminger) Erin Cummings .........cooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiinnen, 1
AngellineChung ... 1 Jane %Zl?rztigive] 9
St 04,0 3 (Trumpet Student) 0114 (Joanne Webster); 0115 (Joanne Webster)

eve CirbhUS. .. ..ottt 1 Tawny Cypress 6
And 0107. {Lou Nagle) 0201 (Cherie Rollins-Murray); 0203 (Cherie Rollins-
rea Cirie. ...t 1 N )

0307 (Marcia Harrison) Murra}y); 0204 (Cherie Rolhns—Murr.ay]; 0205

(Cherie Rollins-Murray); 0207 (Cherie Rollins-
Bryan Terrell Clark ..., 1 Murray): 0208 (Cherie Rollins-Murray)
0302 (Andre "AK” Kade) urrayl; ! . urray.
Dante E. ClarK ......cooiiiiniiiiii e 1

0403 (Student #1) D
Judith Lightfoot Clarke....................oooiiian 1

0413 (Angela Condon) Vito D’AMDBIOSIO . .. v vttt eeiitteeeiieeeeeiaaeanns 1
Aurelie Claudel..............cooiiiiii i 1 0206 (Marcus Krinkowski)

0309 (Camille Cosgrove) MATio D’LEOM . ...ttt 1
Malachy Cleary..........coooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinn., 1 0403 (Doorman)

0105 (Det. Jim Kelly) Yaya DaCosta ........ovvviiiiiiiiiiiiiaiaaiieieeiaaaann, 1
Robert Clohessy .......coooviiiiiiiiiiiii i 1 0304 (Molly) Constantine Maroulis (Germ)

0113 (Jack Healy) Christian Daly............vvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiianenaaa... 1
Karl Josef Co. vt 1 0410 (Frank)

0404 (Saru) Alison Anne Daniels .........oovvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiian. 1
Jennifer Cody ........oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 1 0210 (Hotel Guest)

0210 (Paula White) Yuval David.......ooviiiiiniiiiinin ittt 1
David Yuval Cohen...........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiininen... 1 0303 (David Croupier)

0304 (Poker Dealer) KRIiS DavisS .. o.vii i i 1
ScottCohen..........ooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1 0405 (Security Guard)

0111 (Dr. Sam Barlow) Bruce DaviSOm. . ....vutiiiii i i 1
Liza ColOn-Zayas........c.viiiiiniiniiiiiiiainnenannes 1 0413 (Guest Star)

0412 (Laura Barton) Roxanne Day ..........cocoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiininen.n. 1
Dominic Colom ..ot 1 0413 (Kristina Payne)
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Adam DeCarlo........ooviuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1 JIan Etheridge. ...
0410 (Development Guy) 0403 (Mark)

Blake DeLong ..........cooiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 1 Blake J. EVans .........cooviiiiiiiiiiiiii i
0412 (Sammy Gavlak) 0305 (Duke Callahan)

Kelly Deadmon ............coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i, 1 OmarEvans.............oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i,
0106 (Kelly Latimer Voice) 0113 (Delivery Man)

Frank Deal ..........cooiiiiiiiiiii e 1
0102 (Surgeon) F

Jackie Debatin..........ooiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1
0409 (Guest Star)

Iris Delgado. . ...vvveinti it 1 Frankie Faison ...
0110 (Mrs. Garcia) 0212 (Mayor)

Michael DEMPSEY ....vvvveieeeeeeeeeeeeeaeiaaiaaiaannnns 1 Peter Falls.... oot i
0312 (Eddie Sands) 0403 (Matt Wexler)

Todd DEtWIler ... ....uuee e 1 Carmine Famiglietti.......................
0407 (Demolition Man) 0116 (Tony)

James DiSalvatore ... .....oouvininiiiiiiiiiiiiaanns 1 Ramsey Faragallah...................oooo
0112 (Jerry Mason) 0408 (Guest Star)

Thuliso Dingwall ..........coviieiuiiiiiiaiiieeaneean.. 1 Robert Farrior...........ooiiiiiiiiiiii
0105 (Malcolm) 0203 (Scott)

KiI DIFECOT . . . .., 1 Todd Faulkner .............oooeiiiiiiiiii i,
0115 (Kate) 0312 (Murphy)

JONT DOMAT .« e vt et e e e e et 1 Anthony Fazio.................oiiiii
0306 (Vincent Quinn) 0303 (Papparazzi #1)

Colin Donnell. . ........uuuuieiiieiii 1 Simon Feil ...
0209 (Steve Stone) 0403 (Bernie)

Edmund DONOVAL. . . .......uueeeeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeaaaanns. 1 Arianda Fernandez...................oiiiiiiiiiii
0309 (Derrick Hibbert) 0301 (Sophie)

Martin DONOVAIL. . ..o v ettt 1 Jennifer Ferrin ...t
0410 (William Houston) 0111 (Janine Barlow)

Brendan Dooling . .........o.vevititaiiaiieaiean.. 1 Daniel Flaherty. ...
0113 (Frat Boy #2) 0110 (JJ Clayburn)

MIKE DOYIE. ...ttt et et 1 Ari FHAKOS .. ..o
0309 (John Hibbert) 0106 (Joseph Farley)

RAChEl DratCh . ..ot 1 Olivia FIYNI .. .ooveee i
0402 (Rosie Webb) 0122 (Young Carrie)

AleX DI€IOT . . ...t 1 Alexandra FONg ..........ooooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiii .
0209 (son David) 0101 (Girl at Midvale)

Scott Drummond. ..........uiiiiiiii i 1 Harriett D. FOy ......ooiiiiiiii i
0303 (Dwayne Storm) 0114 (Nurse)

Carl DUCEIIA . ..ot 2 Anna Friedman..............oooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniii
0116 (NYPD Officer); 0117 (NYPD Officer) 0109 (Katie Monaghan)

Deanna Dunagan .........oeuveiieineinenneennennnenn.s 4 Robert Funaro.........coooiiiiiiiiiiiii i
0102 (Alice); 0106 (Alice); 0107 (Alice); 0109 (Alice) 0110 (Herb Waters)

Deanna DUNGAN. ....oovtiitiii e e e e e, 1 David FUIT. ..ot
0101 (Alice) 0213 (Hank Bronski)

RichDuva ... 1
0306 (IAB Agent) G

Jason DWOoraK . .....o.viriiiiiii it 1

0113 (Miles Novak)

Franky G ....ooouiiniiiiii i
E 0210 (Bobby Cordero)
Janelle Gaeta........oovvuiiiiinii it
0302 (Dafina)

Kate EQston .......oiiiiiiiii it 1 Patrick Gallo .......oiiiii i
0410 (Hannah) 0412 (Shane Barton)

Caleb Eberhardt...........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaan. 1 Serafim Gan..........ooiiiiiiiii e
0311 (Wayne) 0101 (Russian Priest)

Brian Edwards ...........ooiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1 Aaron Costa GaniS.......ovvriiiiriiniininienneanns
0213 (CSU Worker) 0306 (Dominic Moreno)

Colin Egglesfield ... 1 Dawn-Lyen Gardner...............ooooviiiiiniiniinn...
0305 (Sewell) 0408 (Erica Campbell)

Aaron Dean Eisenberg................cooiiiiiiiiiiin, 2 Troy Garity .....oooviiiii
0211 (Travis Harrington); 0212 (Travis Harrington) 0311 (Jake Thompson)

Hunter EMery .......ooouviuiiiiiiiniiiiiiiineneennn. 1 David Michael Garry............cooviviiiiiiiiinnin...
0311 (Craig Zadoc) 0405 (Ganz)

Julie ANn Emery .........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i, 1 Gabriel Gaston ..ot
0307 (Shelby) 0116 (Spence)

Linda Emond.........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnaen.. 1 Samuel Ray Gates ...
0103 (Debi Moser) 0111 (Louis)

Nick ErKelens ..........oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1 Alexis GENYA. .. .vvitieiti e
0403 (Student #2) 0407 (llsa)
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Erik Gersovitz.......cooviiiiiiiiiii it 1 Lucas Hall.........ooiiiiiii i
0209 (Teenager) 0408 (Simon Sheffield)
Anne Clare Gibbons-brown..................coovevienn... 1 Michael Simon Hall .............ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnen,
0109 (Hannah) 0304 (Gambler)
Michael GIbSOn..........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1 Jonah Halperin.............coooiiiiiiiiiiiin i
0202 (Heavy Guard) 0404 (Kid #2)
Taylor Gildersleeve...............ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiian, 1 Steve Hamm. ..ottt
0302 (Anna) 0102 (Uniform Cop)
Rupak Ginn............ooooiiiiiiiiiii i 1 George Hampe. ......oouiiiiiiii i
0305 (Robert) 0302 (Dustin)
Maury Ginsberg...............ooiiiiiiii 1 James Harkness ........oveeiiiiiiiniiiiiniiinneiinnes
0104 (Isaac Brezner) 0306 (Rudy)
James Francis Ginty..................oooooinn 1 William Jackson Harper...........coooiviiiiiininnaenn.
0308 (Wendell Kuryak) 0202 (Arnold)
Afrim Gjonbalaj ..........oooiiiiiiiii 1 Laura Harrier. . ....ooooieiiiiiiiiie e ciiiiie e,
0302 (Edon) 0308 (Amber)
Tonya Glanz.......c.coviiiiiniiiiiiiiii i 1 Dylan Hartigan . ........oouveeeeiiiiiieeeeaniiineeeannnns
0405 (Julie) 0309 (Wyatt)
Lola Glauding.....ovvvnininini et ie e e e iiieeeeans 1 Frank Harts . ..o oot e e
0311 (Gwen Stein) 0105 (CSU Tech)
J\\[0) 1 o 1 W€ 70) U U<:3's 1 Marcia HAufreCht .. ... oo
0412 (Ralph) 0407 (Dorothy)
Robert John Gomes.................oo 1 GeOTGia HAYS ...\ttt eee et
0209 (Marshal) 0309 (Judy)
Mateo GOmezZ............ooiiiiiiiii 1 Brad HEDErlee .......o.ovouiiiiiie i eiiieeiineeennanns
0117 (Juan) 0104 (Gary Wright)
Naila Gomez.. ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 1 Barrett HEIMS ......oouiiiiiiii i
0404 (Kid #1) 0113 (Jeremy Hall)
Sofia Jean GOMEZ . ......c.oveitiriieiaieianannanannn 1 Tyrone Hendersomn . ..............ouiuininiiiiiinns.
0101 (Catherine Grant) 0312 (Dr. Millar)
Omar Gonzalez. ..............oooiiiiiiii 1 Charles Hendricks ...........ooooiiiiiiiiiiii i,
0102 (Mr. Banico) 0404 (Uniform)
Elain R. Graf}ar'rl e e 1 Garrett Hendricks. . .....oooiiiieiiiieiiiieiiieeiinn
0105 (Virginia White) 0202 (Uniform 2)
Anthony Gr ASSO. . cvvehii 1 Juri Henley-Conn......oovviieiiiiiiieeeiiiiiee e
) 0209 (Jimmy Cerrano) 0407 (Kareem Hakimi); 0411 (Kareem Hakimi)
Christopher Gray ...........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinn... 1 Barry Shabaka Henley...................cccveeveeenn....
0405 (Teenager) 0403 (Leo Hackett)
Elisabeth Gray ................ooooiiiii 1 Mariltt HENNET . .. ..ottt et et e e eeeeeeanns
Jabalf)iélc(;)lf}a(Manette Huet) . 0109 (Edie Tripp)
AR STTtrrrrrrrrrrrrrrerererereseserereses Danny Henriquez ...
0303 (RNN Director) 0108 (Frank Antos)
JoshGreen..................... SCRREETTEPREPPEEPREPRRPPED 1 Gabe Hernandez . . .........oooooooo
0213 (Teen Hank Bronski) 0111 (Man)
Brendan Griffin...............oooiiiiiiii i 1 Manuel Herrera
0306 (Brendan Quinn) T
Adam Griffith......... ... 1 Ethan Herschenfeld. . ... ... ...\
0309 (Marco Hunter) 0302 (Agim)
OttO W GIOSS t vttt ettt e e e e e i 1 . N
0304 (M G Kid) Patrick Heusinger.................oooooiiiiiiiiii oo,
. emory Game 0106 (Dean Mark Claman)
Katie Groves.......oovvuiniiiii ittt iiinieiineens 2 Susan Hevward
0412 (Monique); 0415 (Monique) VWAL .t
. . . 0410 (Guest Star)
Nicole Guidetti .....oovvniiniii i 1 Jay Hieron
’I‘homoalsoglgN oman) 1 0410 (Runner #78)
LY resren e Roderick Hill ... ..ot
0101 (Ken Harbert) . .
. . 0312 (August Kincaid)
Danielle Guldin ...t 1 X
. James HIndman.............ooiiiiiiiniiniiinnnennn.
0302 (Megi)
. 0203 (Robert)
Shevy Gutierrez..............coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 1
. Jonathan Hogan .............c..coiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnen...
0409 (Uni Cop) i’
0110 (Priest)
Jack Gwaltney ... 1 .
0109 (Sean O'Malley) Justin R.G. Holcomb. ...
0412 (Ethan Crowne)
Jeremy S. Holm ...
H 0209 (Sergei)
David H. HOIMeS . ....ovviiiei i ie e e ieieieeeaens
Olli HaasKivVi....ovnenininn i 1 0311 (Pete)
0121 (Man) Roxanna Hope.............ooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinna
Jacqueline Hahn ..., 1 0101 (Wendy Wilson)
0116 (Evelyn) Anne Rose Hopkins ...,
Brandon Micheal Hall.................ccoiiiiiiniinnnn. 1 0109 (Shannon Spicer)
0409 (Guest Star) Johnny HopKins ........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinininninn,
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0407 (Sean) 0107 (Alex Logan)
Mohammed HOSSaiN ....ovvviininiiinniiiiiiieneanann. 2 Kevin KeVIn. ....ouiuitiiii i ieieieieieaeanns 1
0407 (Reporter); 0413 (NYPD Officer) 0309 (Security Guard)
Mike HOUStON ...c.ovninii e 1 Woodie King Jr.....c.oouiuiiiii i 2
0102 (Erik Newsome) 0305 (Barry); 0308 (Barry)
Andrew HOVElISON.......c.oviiiiiiii i 1 Faye Kingslee........c.cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiininen. 1
0309 (Emil) 0301 (Padma Jindal)
Josephine Huang ...................ooooiiiiinin 1 Natalie Knepp .........coooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1
0307 (Assistant) 0305 (Giuliana Lantini)
Adam Huber.............oo i 1 EzraKnight.... ... 1
0113 (Frat Boy #1) 0101 (Hank Sturgis)
Charlie Hudson III ..., 1 Wayne Knight ..........c.oo i 2
0105 (Jerome "J-Dog” Dixon) 0211 (Dr. Theodore Blumer); 0212 (Dr. Theodore
SuzydJane Hunt...................ooooiin, 1 Blumer)
0202 (Annoyed Customer) Boris Kodjoe.........coooiiiiiiiiiiii 2
Elena Hurst ...t 1 0301 (Agent Simms); 0303 (Francis Simms)
0306 (Alma Payn) Jack Koenig .........ooooiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1
Jackson HUrSt ..ot 3 0413 (Guest Star)
0112 (Steve Cioffi Jr.); 0116 (Steve Cioffi Jr.); 0119 ROCK KONl ..ot 1
(Steve Cioffi Jr.) 0310 (Bilal)
Elias Koteas ........cooiiiiiiiiiiii e 1
I 0122 (Sam Rhodes)
Emily Kratter..............oooiiiiiiii i 1
Lemuel H. Carter Il ........oeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeneen, 1 0213 (Young Melanic)
Jeb Kreager.......oouviniininiiiiiiii it 1
0302 (Mr. Parker) 0306 (Range Offi
. ge cer)
Michael Ingram...............ooiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1 Iene Kristen 1
0118 (Norman) Bristen: - L LR LT T L PR TP PR TP PREERPPRERPPIE
. (Naomi McKinnon)
Marin Ireland. ..ot 1 StEPhEn KUMKETL . . eovveee oo 1

0116 (Sarah Green) 0204 (Dale Parsons)

Christina Jacl.{s.on """""""""""""""""""""" 1 Chris LaPanta...........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaaenn 1
0102 (Olivia) .
. 0413 (Sam McQuaid)
Jamie JaCKSOM .. ..oviiiiee ittt 1
0209 (Victor) Anna Ladner ..........oooiiiiiiiiiiii i 1
0301 (Ms Smith)
DL = T - 1) o) o 1 .
Nikka Graff Lanzarone................cccoviiiiiinnennnn.. 1
0406 (Rachel Parks)
0305 (Heather)
ElJames.....ooiiiii it 1 .
Nick Lashaway ........ccouviniiiiiiiiiniiiiiiiiinenn.. 1
0305 (Peter)
0120 (Max)
Kahan James........o.oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiaianans 1
Matthew Lawler...........oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiainnannn 1
0106 (Trent) R
. 0307 (Dave O’'Bannon)
EriKJensen .......oovuiiiiiiiiiiii ittt 1
X Aaron Lazar .......ooiiiiiii i e 1
0110 (Jim Clayburn)
K 0408 (Elon Musk)
Robert M. JIMENeZ . ......c.viiiiiiiiiiieiiieneanannn 1
Kerry VeraLea..........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniinnan., 1
0118 (Cop)
0203 (Tess Jones)
ClarK JONNSOM ..ottt i e e e e eeeeaas 1
0117 (Clay Jacobs) (O T -1 S 1
0110 (Frank Lang)
Danny Johnson .......c.c.covuiiiiiiiiiiiii .. 1
Jonathan Lee..........coouiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1
0201 (ESU Leader)
. 0404 (Deshu)
Ejyp JONNSON. ... vtiii it 2 K th L 1
0105 (LeShawn Doyle); 0106 (LeShawn Doyle) enne B ettt e
. 0311 (Charles)
Jennifer C. JONNSON .....ovviiiiiiiiii i 1
Jordan Leeds.......ooviriiiiiii it 1
0116 (Mona) .
0108 (Reginald Donner)
WA\ 10 A ) o 1S 1 S
0112 (Ron Pappas) Andrew Leggieri.........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin. 1
. 0304 (Blackjack Dealer)
Stevie Lynn Jones. .........ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1 N it
, Makenzie Leigh............cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 1
0309 (Kendall Wilson) . :
G . 0206 (Celine Emminger)
uyviaud Joseph ... 1 X X A
0305 (Uniformed Officer) Victoria Leigh. ... 3
0101 (Young Carrie); 0102 (Young Carrie); 0108
(young Carrie)
K Adriane LenoX . .....oouvuintiiiiniieiieineiennens 1
0210 (Aunt Rhonda)
George Katt..........ooooiiiiiiiiiii 1 Jdenny Leona............ooooiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1
0403 (Marko Vrioni) 0410 (Genevieve)
Andrew Katz......oooiiiiiiii it 1 Rachel Leslie ........oovvuiiiiini i 1
0101 (Norman) 0209 (Nurse)
Jackson Kaufman..................ocoiiiiiiiiiiannn... 2 Frank Lewallen............cooviiiiiiiiiniiiininnnen.. 1
0304 (Jackson); 0407 (Mason Allen) 0115 (Bill)
Chance Kelly ........ooouiuiiiiiiiii i 1 Lidun Li. ..o 1
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0301 (Natalie Lee) Eden Marryshow..........c.ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinninn... 1
James Hiroyuki Liao...........cocooiiiiiiiiiiiiin ... 6 0104 (Ramon Garza)
0201 (Jay Lee); 0203 (Jay Lee); 0204 (Jay Lee); Jonathan David Martin.................cooiiiinen.... 1
0205 (Jay Lee); 0207 (Jay Lee); 0208 (Jay Lee) 0204 (Faculty Host)
Erik Liberman...........cooiiiiiiiniiiiniiiiiinanann.. 1 Lauren Martin.........oooeiiiiiniiiiniiiiiniinnenens 1
0410 (Daniel Lebenstrom) 0405 (Pit Boss)
Teresa Lim......ooouiiiiii i it 1 James Martinez .........oviiiiiiiiii i 1
0303 (Annabel Parker) 0309 (Robert Chavez)
Stephen Lin ... 1 Sebastian Martinez ...........c..ooviiiiiiiiiiinnnn... 1
0308 (Husband) 0401 (Cody)
Chad LIndsey.......coovvvviiiiiiiiiini i 1 Lou Martini Jr. ....oviiini i 1
0104 (Young Doctor/Tom) 0207 (Building Manager)
Tom LipinsKi . ... 1 IR LY oY) s D 1
0113 (Colin Marsh) 0405 (Stunt Fisherman)
Cristina LIppolis. ... 1 TOM MaSOTL. ..ottt ettt e 1
0301 (Olivia Black) 0105 (Pat Burns)
JOC LAST coiiiiii i 1 Mike MaSSIimiNO . ..o v oo, 1
0409 (Guest Star) 0407 (ESU Officer)
Oliver Litondo ....o.vvvt it ie et 1 Dillon MatheWs . . oo oo, P)
0203 (Dr. Okoro Dimka) 0403 (Jazz Goer); 0404 (Jazz Club Patron)
Christopher Livingston ...................o 1 JEITY MAZ . ..ot 1
0306 (Danny Murphy) 0305 (Harold)
John Bedford Lloyd ... 2 Les JN. MU ... .oneieie it 1
0211 (George Mortimer); 0212 (George Mortimer) 0301 (Indonesian Man)
Trevor Long.......oovuiniuiiiiii i 1 Wayne MAUGAINS . ........uveenreaneeine e ineeenens, 1
0410 (Foster Lee Nolan) 0102 (Dr. White)
Mitch Longley ... 1 Dora MavraKiS. .....oouiuiiiei e 1
J O3LO7 .(Pete) ) 0310 (Actress)
ames LOTiNz........ooviiiiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaeeaann, ;
0413 (Emmet Grinwis) Connéllallg/[ay. .............................................. 1
- (Libby)
JLY =1 ¢ 70 5 1 o JPA A 1 Anthony MAZZA . oo oo, 1
0405 (Dewar Linden) 0304 (ESU)
Britt LOWer .. ...t 13 Christopher MCCAND. v e e e e, 1
0111 (Tanya Sitkowsky); 0113 (Tanya Sitkowsky); 0103 (Thad Ralston)
0114 (Tanya Sitkowsky); 0115 (Tanya Sitkowsky):  ancrew McCarthy..................oo oo !
0116 (Tanya S}tkowsky); 0117 (Tanya S}tkowsky); 0201 (Ari Sonnenland)
0118 (Tanya Sitkowsky): 0119 (Tanya Sitkowsky): Kevin MCCOITIHCK . . ..ottt e e e e e e e e 1
0120 (Tanya S%tkowsky); 0121 (Tanya S}tkowsky); 0212 (Andrew)
0122 (Tanya Sl.tkowsky); 0212 (Tanya Sitkowski): Brian McElhaney............oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnnn... 2
. 03?07 (Tanya Sitkowsky) 0211 (Officer Tim Gosling); 0212 (Officer Tim Gosling)
Justine Lupine......... LrTTrTrrrrreresseresseeenesnees 1 Caitlin MCGee .....oviit it i eieeanans 1
0106 (Ashley Phillips) 0308 (Louisa)
Ryan John McGinnis ..............ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiian, 1
M 0309 (Marshall)
Boris MCGIVET ...ttt eeieiee e 1
GIEN MaC ... 1 0117 (Martin)
0413 (Peter Roach) Michael F. McGuirk. ..ot 1
Nicholas Maccarone. ..............coooeuuuiineeeeeennn.. 1 0308 (Sean)
0120 (Thom Muso) Caleb McLaughlin.................coooiiiiiiiniannt, 1
Victoria MacK. ......cooiiiiiiiiiii it 1 0301 (Older Brother)
0209 (Petra) Duane McLaughlin...............cooooiiiiiiiiiiiiat, 1
AllSON MACKIE . .. ..ottt e e e eei e 1 0403 (Raj)
0405 (Holly) Katherine McNamara ........ovveninininenenenenenenenens 1
Kenneth Maharaj............ooovveeeeiiinnneeeeiinnnnn... 1 0213 (Young Carrie Wells)
0406 (Clerk) Liam McNeill .. ..o 1
Stephen Mailer.............ooviuiiiieeiiiiiiieeiinnn... 1 0409 (John)
0103 (Brett Langley) Adam McNulty ... 1
Temur Mamisashvili..................oooiiiiiiiiinnn.. 1 0104 (Sgt. Patrick Woodson)
0101 (Isaac) Drew McVety ..ot 1
Z0€ Manarel........oouniiie e 1 0109 (Daniel Monaghan)
0404 (Kid #3) Caitlyn Mclaughlin..................ooooiiiinat, 1
J0SEPh ManCuSO .......ovviiiiiieiiiieeeieiaaiaaaaaann. 1 0301 (Younger Sister)
0304 (Scott Standley) Collin Meath. ... 1
Anthony Mangarno ..........eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneinannnnnn 1 0409 (MC)
0119 (Michael) Julian Medina/Jacob Medina...............covvvvenen.n. 1
Terrence Manml.........oouiuneieeie e iaannns 1 0305 (Stevie)
0106 (Stephen) Raffaella Meloni ..., 1
Lynn Marocola ...........ooeuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiininiinenn.. 1 0213 (Mean Girl 1)
0403 (Police Officer) Jamil Mena......o.ouiiiiiiiiiii ittt 1
Nicholas Marocola .........ouviiriiiiiiiiiiiianeann, 1 0109 (Ruben Lobato)
0403 (Police Officer) Chazz Menendez ..........oovuuiiii i 1

155



Unforgettable Episode Guide

0113 (Frank Dorner) 0303 (Journalist #2)
Jenny Mercein..........ooviuiiiiiiiiiiiniiiniiiinaennns 1 Kevin O'Donnell..........cooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniii.., 1
0121 (Reporter) 0107 (Marshall Green)
Raul Meruelo. ..o 1 Ryan O'Nam .....ovviiiiiii e 1
0410 (Jason Rios) 0103 (Tom Martin)
Omar Metwally .......ovuueiiniii i 2 Brian O'Neill...........ooooiiiiiiii 1
0103 (ADA Adam Gilroy); 0104 (ADA Adam Gilroy) 0101 (Frank Harbert)
Cameron MEYET .......c.ueuiiieniiniieiiieeaennenanns 1 Kevin O'ROUTKe. ... ..ottt 1
0409 (Fiona Kopinski) 0112 (Jack Feeney)
Gregg Micheals.........c.ooiiuiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiiiiii et 1 Phil Oddo.....ooviiii e 5
0407 (Homeless Man) 0301 (Street Vendor); 0401 (Detective); 0403 (De-
Beatrice Miller. ...t 1 tective); 0404 (Detective); 0413 (Carnival Goer)
0122 (Katrina) 741 0 TT I @ T U Lo 1
Jacob Ming-Trent.............coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiininann 1 0311 (Ben)
0103 (Walter) OWISO OAEIra. .. oviit ittt et ciieieeenns 1
Bryan A. Miranda .........c.ooeuiiiiiiineinneineinennn... 1 0306 (Captain Melvin Stearns)
0205 (Afghani Driver) StEVEN OZZ .ottt 1
Sepideh Moafi......ovvveieiiiiiii i 1 0203 (Larry)
0210 (Lisa Martinez) Nneka OKafor .......ovvviiiiiiiiii it ieaeannss 1
) 330) o301 (0] 7= s LU 1 0118 (Kayla)
0402 (Chief Tullen) Lyrica OKamnO . .....oeutiiii e aeenes 1
ROD MOTTISOIN . . .o ettt ettt 1 0213 (Didi)
0204 (Assistant) Babs Olusanmoukun .........c.coviiiiiiiiniiininennnn.. 1
Declan MUlvey. .......ouverniiiii i 1 0312 (Goodacre Oyensi)
0410 (Runner #66) Anthony Ordonez .............oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinennen... 1
RUAY MUNGATAY ..o eeeeeaaeeeeens 1 0405 (Zack)
0306 (Hector) Howard W. Overshown...............coiiiiiiinnannn.. 1
15 CY IS ALY (8 Uy o) o | 2 0308 (Ray Pulaski)
0101 (Rachel); 0102 (Rachel) Kelly OVertomn.......c.ovuvuiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaenenns 1

0303 (Emily Swain)

Laith NaKl.....oooiniii it 1
0310 (Usman Khan) JIL PaiCe . .o 2
VANCE NAPPO -« .ttt 1 0117 (Molly Benedict); 0118 (Molly Benedict)
0404 (Phillipe Huet) Jimmy Palumbo............coooiiiiii 1
ManU NaTAYAT ... ..ottt eteeenteeareeaineeannneenns 1 0208 (ESU Captain)
0102 (Sami) Annie PariSse........coouiiiiiiiiii i e 2
AIfredo NATCISO . ... ev ettt 1 0102 (Elaine Margulies); 0105 (Elaine Margulies)
0105 (Det. Richard Franco) Charleigh E. Parker................cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiinn, 1
Arthur J. Nascarella ...........coooeevuieeiniieaineeann.. 1 0202 (Fashion Female Customer)
0119 (Stefano Cioffi) Christopher Parker.............c.ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnne... 1
Michael Nathanson ...............oooeeiiiiiiieiiinnnnn. 1 0412 (Tommy Newton)
0409 (Guest Star) Stivi PaskoSKi .. .vvvinii i 1
Matthew Del NeGro. . .....covuureeeeeiinnneeeeeiinnnnnnnn. 1 0105 (Det. Anthony Cantone)
0405 (Hunter Ellis) JOE Passaro. ... ..o 1
Aaron J. Nelson ..., 1 0119 (Guest #1)
0310 (Elton Katanaka) Benjamin Pelteson.................oooooiiiinn 1
Mark NelSON . ... ...uuveeeeeeeieee e 1 0111 (Dad)
0204 (Dr. Eugene Lustig) Michael Pemberton...................ooooiiiiiii 1
Marjan NesShat .......ovvuuiinieeeeiiiiieeeeeeeeiinnnnn. 1 0312 (Logan Sale)
0205 (Mrs. Sajadi) Christopher Pena ... 1
Randall NEeWSOmMe . .....c.vvuiriiiiiiiii e, 1 0309 (ESU)
0303 (Calvin Claridge) Jason Pendergraft.....................oooo 1
Olivia NikKanen ...........coouiiiiiiiniiiniinninen... 1 0106 (Mark)
0213 (Vicky Lanister) BrendaLee Perez..................oooiiiiiiiiiii, 1
Michael De Nola.........covuuuiieeeiieeeaiiiieenannns 1 0402 (Waitress)
0114 (Cook) JJ.Perez......ooooiiiii 1
Ashley NOTth .......c.oiiiniiiiii i 1 0201 (Faison)
0312 (Russian Maid Slave) Mason Pettit. ... e 1
0111 (Arthur Greene)
O Jessica Phillips........cooiiiiiiiiiiii i 1
0213 (Melanie Lambert)
Angela Pietropinto................oooooiiinnnnn 1
Caitlin O’Connell..........coiiiiiiiii i 1 0305 (Phyllis)
0112 (Edith Feeney) Larry Pine ... 1
Deidre O'Connell..........ooviiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1 0208 (Guest Star)
0105 (Sue Kelly) Dascha PolancCo........c.oouiiiiiii i 1
Sid O'Conmnell. .. ...t 1 0110 (Estella)
0412 (Cyclops) Mario Polit. ... ..o e 1
Clancy O'COMNOT ... ettiie it 1 0304 (Security Guard)
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Larisa PolonsKy ..ot 1 Adrian Rieder. ...
0307 (Amanda Temple) 0311 (Jeff)
Matthew Porretta............ccooiiiiiiiiiiii i, 1 Armando Ri€SCO......o.viiiiii i
0308 (Bruce Miller) 0402 (Zeke)
Gabrielle Porter ... 1 Stu’Large’ Riley..........cooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i
0306 (Beth Bronson) 0118 (Augie Security Guard)
Drew Powell .....coviiiiiniiieii ettt ie e e ieieaeaens 1 Steven Rishard.............cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i
0108 (Kevin McMillan) 0102 (Tom Kunis)
Dylan Prince............oooiiiiiiiiiiii i 1 Chris Rivaro............oooiiiiiiiiiiii i
0403 (Second Chair Trumpet) 0307 (CSU Investigator)
Postell Pringle ... 1 Dallas Roberts...........ooooviiiiiiiiiii i
0310 (Bomb Tech) 0401 (Elliot Delson); 0402 (Elliot Delson)
Kevin Prowse ..o 1 Corey Parker Robinson .....................oooooan,
0202 (Plainclothes Cop) 0411 (Guest Star)
Paul Pryce......c.oouiiiiii i 1 Nicolette Robinson..............coooiiiiiiiiiin i,
0408 (Randy Rupert) 0113 (Mena Levy)
Jeff Pucillo. ..o 1 Ty Michael Robinson................c.oooooiiiiiiiiate
0402 (Marvin Arcane) 0304 (Larry)
Sebastian Roché ...t
Q 0116 (Victor Cushman)
Cruz Rodriguez..............oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin .,
0401 (Child at Birthday Party)
Grim Reaper @...........ooooiiiiiiii 1 Desiree ROAIigUEZ. ... .couuviiiiin i,
0106 (Bouncer) 0311 (Desiree)
Dave QUuay.......cooiiiiiiiiiiii i 1 WIHAM ROGETS .. ...ttt ee et et e,
0410 (Guest Star) 0111 (Denny)
Tuffy Questell ...t 1 Sophia ROKNIN . ... ..uuteeee e
0310 (Super) 0118 (Ella)
Brian Roland .............oiiiiiiiiii i
R 0212 (Pastry Chef)
Ernesto ROSas.......ccoiviiiiiiiiiiiii it
Prashant Rai...........cooiiiiiiiiiii i, 1 0116 (Don)
0404 (Boyfriend) LuKe ROSEIN....uiuiiii i
R 0110 (Uniform Cop)
Tod RAINEY .. .ovviiiii e 1 Ben Rosenblatt
0410 (Assassin) o BenRosenblatt. SRE LR LT LR PP EEPREPPERPRERPPE
0204 (Twenty-something 2)
Jason Ralph.........ooooiiiiiiiiiiii 1 Rob Leo Ro
22
0106 (Zeke) 0310 (Museum Director)
Sendhil Ramamurthy............coooooe. 1 Ella RUDIN . ..ottt
Jeani(r)lzeofga(i}ilrlgf] 1 0201 (Lara Sonnenland)
0409 (NY1 News Reporter) Jameg;({)l;s(sseézr.l]. .........................................
Kim Ramirez...........oooiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1
0309 (Maid)
Maria Elena Ramirez.............coooiiiiiiiiinnnennnn.. 1 S
0110 (Hilda Perez)
EmmaRamos ...........ooooiiiiiiiiiii 1 Tracy Sallows ........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiii i
0105 (Snack Bar Cashier) 0122 (Karen)
Marisa Redanty ... 1 OttoSanchez...........ooviiiiiiiiiii i
0108 (Annoying Woman) 0208 (Guest Star)
Meghan Refferty...............oooooiiiinnn 1 ANN Sanders ......ooviiiiiii i
0310 (Megan) 0117 (Reporter)
Stephen Reich..................oooonnnn 1 Jay O. Sanders.........coviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i
0210 (Man) 0118 (Jonathan)
James Michael Reilly ...t 1 Nick Sandow .........ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i
0311 (Tim) 0112 (William 'Bud’ Spence)
Alysia Reiner..............oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinn, 1 Hakey Sanford ...............oooiiiiiiiiiinni
0408 (Joan Chen) 0312 (Haley)
Katherine Reis............coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i, 1 Haley Sanford..............oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin
0309 (Lacey) 0407 (Ali)
Jennifer Restivo................ooooiinnnnnnn 1 S0COorTo Santiago........ooviiiiiiiiiii
0110 (Beverly Jackson) 0120 (Lorena Cruz)
Daniel Reton ..o 1 Al Sapienza.........ooooiviiiiiiiiiiiiii
0101 (Casino Dealer) 0115 (Joe Hagan)
Jayden Rey ... ..c.vuiiuiiiiii i 1 Sherri Saum.......ovuiii i i
0304 (Lulu) 0107 (Rosario Sanchez)
Joanna Rhinehart....................ooo i, 1 Aaron Sauter.......ouiitiiii i e
0210 (Eve Watson) 0109 (Gregory Smith)
Alexandra Rhodi€............coviiiiiiiiiiiniiiii e 1 Kareem Savinon...........ovvuiiiirintiienreneaneneenannns
0203 (Female Customer) 0209 (Guy)
Frank Ridley...........oooiiiiiiiiiiiii e 1 Stephen Scott Scarpulla..............coooviiiiiiiiian,

0115 (Burly Man)
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Dan Schachner............ccooiiiiiiiiiiii i 1 PAXCT: IS T0) 0 0 L) o JN P
0310 (Reporter #2) 0305 (Holliman)

Wrenn Schmidt................ooooonnn 1 Phyllis Somerville ...
0309 (Vicki Wilson) 0204 (Ruth)

Jason Schuchman ...........ooviiiiiiiiiieeienenn... 1 GIanNMAarcCO SOTeSI....uututntn it i n i neneaenenen..
0311 (Oliver) 0408 (Mike Wilcox)

Armand Schultz............cooiiiiiiiiiii i 1 PaJ. SOSKO .ttt e s
0115 (David) 0115 (Jake)

19£0) 61 o NS 1o 01 o 1 JOSE SO0 ...t
0201 (Jack Paulson) 0104 (Pablo Hortua)

Lee SEllars . .....ovvniieei e 1 Morgan SPector ........ocoviiiiiiiiiiiii i
0118 (Barry) 0304 (Dean)

(€ TS Y o o D 1 Lesley Stahl ...,
0110 (Det. Ben Cortez) 0103 (Herself)

AATON SErotSKY .. .outiiee e et eeiii e 1 Josh Stamberg............ooooiiiiii
0116 (Glen) 0307 (Robert Bright)

Terry Serpico ............................................. 1 Mike SteInmetzZ. . ...t
0202 (Willis) 0113 (Jonas Heller)

Matt SEIVItO . oo oo oo e 1 Rachel Stern..........oooiiiiiii it
0122 (Dan Marston) 0209 (Tara Cerrano)

Emily Shaffer...........cooiiiiiiiiii 2 Andrew Stewart-Jones................ooo
0203 (Andrea); 0205 (Andrea Weston) 0118 (Ken)

Aria Shahghasemi..........covvieiriiiiiiiinieanieann, 1 Bradley Stryker ...
0403 (Davis Bennett) 0213 (Greg Zoller)

Martin Shakar...........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiii i ieiaeann, 1 AlXIS SUATEZ. ...ttt
0111 (Gordon Kemp) 0117 (Uniform)

JETemy SAINOS ... ...\ttt 1 Nilaja Sun........coooiiiiiiiiiiii
0208 (The Dean) 0107 (lvory)

Ryan Shams. . .......o.oeieiiie i 1 TinoSutras..........ooooiiiiiiiiiii
0312 (Eric Koban) 0110 (Tito Alvarez)

Kellie Overbey Shane ..................oooiiiiiiiont, 1
0109 (Erin O'Malley) T

George R. Sheffey ... 1
0409 (Ray Kopinski) Jff TAIDOLE . oo eeeeeeeeteie s

David Shih. ... e 1 0209 (Bruce Conti)
0305 (Zenji) J276) 0103 (- =1 o | o WA

Michael Shulman .............cooiiiiiiiiiiii i 1 0401 (Austin]
0205 (Marshall Lebowitz) Brette Taylor . .vvvviiieiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeaeeaaaaaaannns

Michael SIberry .......cooviiiiii i 1 0208 (Eileen Brenner)
0312 (Thomas Carlyle) David ThOMPSOM . ...ttt e et eiiiiee e e e eeaaannns

Graham Sibley ..ottt 2 0111 (Skate Punk #2)
0407 (Jordan Scott / Gregory Chernov); 0411 (Guest Jennifer Joan ThompsOon ..........c.ovviiiineeenneen...

Star) 0120 (Sarah Calvin)

Casey Siemaszko.................oooi 1 Rachel Ticotin..............ooooiiiiiiiiiiiiii i,
0401 (Lt. Greg Zartane) 0119 (Sharon)

Joseph Sikora............oooo 1 Michael Tisdale............coooviiiiiiiiiiniiiniiin ..
0211 (Bob) 0213 (Carl Benson)

Julian Silver.............ooiiiiii 2 Hrach TitiZian . . . ..o oe oo oo
0308 (Eddie); 0406 (Eddie) 0310 (Jean-Luc Augustin)

Samantha Silverman ... 1 Heather TOm ......ouininiii e
0106 (Socialite #2) 0412 (Guest Star)

Erica SInner....... ..o 1 Natalie TOTO .« . vvoee e e
0204 (Murder Victim) 0404 (Sonia)

Kate SKINNer ........ooitiiiiiiii ittt ieiieanns 1 David L. TOWNSeNd. . ... voneeeeee e,
0115 (Judge Wilkinson) 0213 (Joey Falk)

Danielle Skraastad.............ccoiiiiiiiiiiiii i, 1 AdA TIOSC . oo oo e e e
0102 (Liza Newsome) 0120 (Jay Krause)

Danielle SIaviCK ......vviriii i 1 Ay TriDDEY . ..o
0203 (Nina) 0105 (Woman/Julie)

Victor SlezaK . ..ottt 1 NichoOlas TUCCL. . . oo oo i,
0209 (Robert Thorne) 0406 (Bud Mayer)

BrianJd. Smith ............ ... i 1 JOSEPN TUAISCO. .« ettt e
0205 (John Curtis) 0401 (Saul)

Charise Castro Smith.....................oooiiiii, 1 RObert TUranO. .....o.vit it ci i i ieeaenns
0120 (Audrey Cruz) 0108 (Lou Kestler)

Cotter Smith..................... 1 Stephen Barker Turner.................oooveiieinnn...
0112 (Jay Barrett) 0407 (Kenneth Allen)

J.Tucker Smith.............o i 1 JoeTuttle. ..o e
0122 (David) 0402 (Officer Weaver)

Sarah SOKOIOVIC .. ...ouviii it 1 Deborah TWisSS . ..vutitii it ii e
0103 (Lauren Garber) 0307 (Reporter)
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Dena Tyler.......covuiniiiiii e 1 Ramone Wilkinson ...............coooiiiiiiiiiiinninn...
0307 (Gina O’'Bannon) 0310 (Christopher)
Stephen Tyrone Williams................ooiiiiiiin...
U 0117 (David Jacobs)
Amy WIlSOon. ... ..ot
Skeet Ulrich ... 1 Bﬂanoﬁfhgzllsvilsfsnce)
0401 (Eddie Martin) Yy WILSON ..o
0107 (Bert)
Zachary UNger ..........ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1 )
. Kathleen Wise .......coviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i,
0404 (Sad Kid) :
X 0207 (Female Neighbor)
James UrbaniaK.........ccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinannn 3 Catherine Wolf
0114 (Richard Simmons): 0118 (Walter Gordon): R LRI T LTt T L P TP EEPPEEPPEEPPRRPPELD
0102 (Eleanor Stein)
0121 (Walter Morgan) K
o (S0 81"40'17/0) & VN
Paul UrCioli.....covvniiiiii it 1
0104 (Sydney Burrell) 0102 (Cable Guy)
Yvonna Kopacz Wright................c..ooiiii,
0204 (Alwyn Pierce); 0405 (Linden’s Lawyer)
Vv Khari Wyatt .........oueireite et
0102 (Keith); 0106 (Keith)
Anu Valia......oovuiiiii i i e e 1
0403 (Simone) Y
RobertVataj..........coooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1
. 0101 (Jerry) Pascal Yen-Pfister..........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinn..
Isidra Vega. .....covuiiniii et 1 ]
X 0404 (Sommelier)
0112 (Tori Guerrero)
Stacey Yen.......ooiuiiiiiiiiiiiii i
Lauren VEIeZ. ......viniiinininie e e e e ieeieaeneenns 1 .
X 0121 (Mina)
0310 (Aisha) . R
. Austin Michael Young....................oooiiiii
Lenny Venito ... 1 :
0409 (Fireman #1)
0105 (Det. Stan Moyer)
GENEe YOUNZ. ...ttt e e e aaeaenes
LuKe VexXIer. ... e et 1 0209 (Bellman)
0111 (Skate Punk #1)
. . Marnye Young.........oovviiiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnns
Caris VUJCEC . ..o i it 1 0212 (Snobby Woman)
0121 (CSU Investigator) E .
YaS YOUTNS . ..ot

0205 (Bashir Sajadi)

W

David Raymond Wagner...............coveiiiiiniinann.. 1
0111 (Husband) MarKk Zeisler. ... e
Peter Van Wagner ...t 1
R 0109 (Attorney)
0112 (Saul Timkin) .
- AleX ZIWaK . . oottt et e
NikKi E. WalKer.......ooouiiiii it iiiieieeens 1 .
X 0304 (Serbian Mobster)
0113 (Paramedic) . .
Michael ZIabinger..........c.oviiiiiiiiiniininiininienenns
Tommy Walker ...........ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 1 )
. 0304 (Will)
0206 (Mullin)
StewartJ. Zully ...
Melany Walter............cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinn.n. 1 0209 (Muscat)
0305 (Onlooker)
JayWard ... 1
0402 (John)
James Waterston...........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 1
0103 (lan Smith)
Nicholas Webber ........vuiuiiiiiiiiiiii i 1
0120 (Adam)
Forrest Weber .......vniniiininii i et iiiiieiennenens 1
0407 (ESU)
Bubba Weiler...........ooiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1
0311 (Joe)
George Weisgerber ..........ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaan 1
0304 (Gambler)
ANNa Weng ........oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1
0308 (Wife)
Tara Westwood .......ooviiiiiiiiii i 1
0410 (Lisa Hexler)
Frank Whaley ..., 1
0407 (Jim Garrett)
Keith White.......coooiiii e 1
0312 (Stage Manager)
Margot White. ..ot 1
0306 (Kathleen Quinn)
Brian Wiles ... ..ottt 1
0303 (Pemberton Ward)
Samira Wiley ... 2

0101 (Gina); 0102 (Gina)
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